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November 26, 2018

To Members of the Board of Education and Citizens of Beaverton School District:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of Beaverton School District (“District”) for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2018 is hereby submitted. State law requires that an independent audit be made of all District funds within six
months following the close of the fiscal year. This report is published to fulfill the requirement for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2018 and consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the District together
with the opinions of our auditor.

This report was prepared by the District's Business Services Department. Management assumes full responsibility
for the completeness and reliability of the information contained in this report. The District’'s management has
established and maintains a comprehensive internal control framework put in place to protect assets from loss, theft
or misuse. Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance the financial statements are free of any material misstatements. The
internal control structure is subject to periodic evaluation by management. As management, we assert that, to the
best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

These financial statements are presented to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the
District’s financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP).

Grove, Mueller & Swank, P.C., Certified Public Accountants, have issued an unmodified (“clean”) opinion on the
Beaverton School District’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018. The independent auditor’s report
is located at the front of the financial section of this report.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

Designed to meet the needs of a broad spectrum of financial statement readers, this Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR) is divided into five major sections:

The Introductory Section includes this transmittal letter, the District’s organizational chart and copies of certificates
awarded for Beaverton School District’s 2017 CAFR.

The Financial Section includes the Independent Auditor’s Report, Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A),
the basic financial statements including notes to the basic financial statements, required supplementary
information, and supplementary information including the combining and individual fund financial statements.

The Statistical Section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year
basis.



The Single Audit Section includes reports from the independent auditor regarding compliance requirements of the
U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Uniform Guidance Compliance Supplement for major federal
programs.

The Compliance Section contains the independent auditor’s report required by the Minimum Standards for Audits
of Oregon Municipal Corporations.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic
financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is
designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The District’'s MD&A can be found
immediately following the report of the independent auditor.

PROFILE OF THE DISTRICT

Beaverton School District, a kindergarten through twelfth grade district, was formed July 1, 1960, following a
successful vote for unification of twelve elementary school districts and one high school district.

The District is a financially independent, special-purpose municipal corporation exercising financial accountability
for all public education within its boundaries. As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, all significant activities and organizations have been included in the financial statements.

The District is located predominantly in Washington County, approximately 10 miles west of Portland, Oregon, and
encompasses over 57 square miles of land. It serves the residents of the City of Beaverton and various outlying
towns and municipalities and is the third largest school district in Oregon.

Student enrollment in the fall of 2017 was 41,016. October 1 enrollment counts are reported to the state in
November of each year, allowing time for data entry and confirmation of student records. An enrolled student is
defined as a student who attends one or more schools or programs within the District. Regardless of the number of
schools or programs attended, each student is counted only once.

ENROLLMENT AND FACILITIES

Number of
Grade Level Programs Enrollment
Elementary School Programs 34 17,802
Middle School Programs 20 9,354
High School Programs 11 11,697
Special Education Programs - 1,613
Charter School Programs 2 550
Total Programs and Enrollment 67 41,016

Growing from an enrollment of 37,613 in fall of 2009 to 41,016, the District has experienced a 9.0% growth in
enrollment over the past ten years. According to a study prepared by the Population Research Center of Portland
State University, the District will see continued enrollment growth, and is expected to reach an enroliment of 44,660
students by 2025.

The demographics of our school district reflect our rich cultural diversity. Our students speak more than 101



languages and dialects. The District’s enrollment includes 51.8% of students of color, and 35.7% of students qualify
for free and reduced lunch status.

The Beaverton School District Board, elected by a majority of the voting electorate, is the governing body responsible
for the District's policy decisions. The seven-member Board has oversight responsibility and control over all activities
related to the District. The Board is accountable for all fiscal matters that significantly influence operations.

District management includes a superintendent, two deputy superintendents, four chief officers, and 139 principals,
vice-principals and district administrators. The District employs 4,065 full-time equivalent personnel, including
principals, vice-principals, administrators, teachers, supervisors, secretarial staff, bus drivers, maintenance
personnel, cafeteria staff and other support staff.

Under Oregon State law, school districts are independent municipal corporations empowered to provide elementary
and secondary educational services for the children residing within their boundaries. The District discharges this
responsibility by building, operating and maintaining school facilities, developing and maintaining approved
educational programs and courses of study, including career/technical educational programs, and programs for
English language learners and special needs students, and providing for transportation and feeding of students in
accordance with District, State and Federal programs. This report includes all funds of the District.

Economic CONDITION

Located in northwestern Oregon, Washington County is one of the six counties that comprise the Portland-
Vancouver Primary Metropolitan Statistical Area (PMSA). The six counties are Washington, Multnomah, Clackamas,
Yambhill and Columbia in Oregon, and Clark in Washington. According to the Population Research Center of Portland
State University, Multnomah and Washington counties together have one-third of the State of Oregon's population.
Washington County's three largest cities are Beaverton, Hillsboro and Tigard. Because the District lies within the
PMSA, economic and demographic data is not available specifically for the District. Data is generally available for
Washington County and for the PMSA.

Washington County covers 727 square miles and includes sixteen incorporated cities such as Beaverton, Hillsboro,
Tigard and Tualatin, as well as a portion of the City of Portland.

Currently, manufacturing accounts for 17% of the total non-farm employment in the Portland PMSA, while trade,
transportation and utilities also accounts for 17%, government jobs 8%, professional and business services 19%,
education and health services 12%, and leisure and hospitality 9%.

A major manufacturing employer in the Beaverton area is Nike, an athletic footwear and apparel manufacturer. Its
286-acre world headquarters campus is located in Washington County, and according to the Beaverton Chamber of
Commerce, it is Washington County’s second leading employer with approximately 10,700 employees.

The Portland-Vancouver PMSA relies heavily on the manufacturing, high technology industries, wholesale trade and
financial activities. According to the Oregon Employment Department, at the end of June 2018, the Portland-
Vancouver PMSA unemployment rate was 3.7%, as compared to the Oregon unemployment rate of 4.0% and the
nation’s rate of 4.0%.

LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING
The District’s unrestricted general fund balance (the total of the committed, assigned and unassigned components
of fund balance) at year-end was 11.8 percent of total General Fund revenues. This amount is above the policy

guidelines set by Board policy for budgetary and planning purposes (a minimum 5.0 percent of total actual revenues
and an additional 5.0 percent sustainability fund). The reserves are maintained to absorb economic downturns, state



revenue-sharing reductions and other revenue shortfalls, and will prudently be used when needed to provide
stability of core programs and legally required activities.

With continued enrollment growth forecasted, the District issued $297.9 million in general obligation bonds in 2016-
17 to support the construction of one high school, one middle school, one elementary school and the purchase of
land for an additional elementary school over the next few years. These were issued as part of the $680 bond
measure passed by voters in May 2014. As the average age of the District’s buildings is in excess of 30 years, funds
will also be used to rebuild and make extensive renovations to facilities throughout the District and enhance
educational technology in the classroom.

MISSION STATEMENT AND PRIORITIES

The District Goal is: WE empower all students to achieve post-high school success.
The Beaverton School District Board adopted the Strategic Plan:
WE Expect Excellence

e  WE teach students knowledge and skills for our evolving world
e WE seek, support and recognize our world-class employees

WE Innovate
e WE engage students with a variety of relevant and challenging learning experiences
e WE create learning environments that promote student achievement

WE Embrace Equity
e WE build honest, safe and inclusive relationships with our diverse students and their families
e WE provide needed support so that every student succeeds

WE Collaborate
e WE work and learn in teams to understand student needs and improve learning outcomes
e  WE partner with the community to educate and serve our students

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Accounting Policies. Governmental funds are used to account for the District’s general government activities.
Governmental fund types use the flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual
basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to
accrual (i.e., when they are “measurable and available”.) “Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can
be determined and “available” means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabilities of the current period.

Expenditures are recorded when the liability is incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt
which is recognized when due, interfund transactions and certain compensated absences and claims and judgments
which are recognized as expenditures because they will be liquidated with expendable financial resources.

The assets and liabilities of the agency fund are recorded on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The agency
fund consists of the Private-Purpose Trust Fund.

The financial transactions for the proprietary fund type are recorded on the accrual basis of accounting. Under the
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded at the time they are earned and expenses are recorded at the
time liabilities are incurred.



The accrual and modified accrual basis of accounting as utilized by Beaverton School District are in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles.

Budgetary Controls. The District is required by the State of Oregon to adopt an annual budget for all funds subject
to the requirements of Local Budget Law as outlined in the Oregon Revised Statutes 294.305 through 294.565,
inclusive. The Oregon Local Budget Law requires the appointment of a budget committee to review and approve
the budget. The budget committee consists of the seven members of the Board of Directors and seven electors of
the District who are appointed by the Board of Directors. The administration proposes a budget to the budget
committee, and the budget committee may modify or approve the proposed budget.

A summary of the approved budget, together with a notice of public hearing, is published on the District website
and in a newspaper having general circulation in the District. A public hearing is held to receive comments from the
public concerning the approved budget. The Board of Directors adopts the budget, makes appropriations, and levies
taxes after the public hearing and before the beginning of the year for which the budget has been prepared. After
adoption, the budget may be revised through procedures specified in State statute and Board policy.

Charter Schools. Oregon statute provides state funding for charter schools that flows through the district for schools
that local boards of education have granted a charter. The District has two charter schools, Arco Iris Spanish
Immersion Charter School and Hope Chinese Charter School, in operation during the 2017-18 fiscal year.

Arco Iris has completed its eighth year of operations. The school educates 310 full-time students in grades 1-8 and
has renewed its charter through 2021-22. The school reports net position of $213,490 as of June 30, 2017.

Hope Chinese has completed its sixth year of operations. The school educates 194 full time students in grades K-5,
and has renewed its charter through 2022-23. The school reports net position of $692,232 as of June 30, 2017.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

The Beaverton School District’s financial statements have been audited by Grove, Mueller & Swank, P.C., a firm of
licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that
the basic financial statements of the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, are free of material
misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the basic financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, and evaluating the overall basic financial statement presentation. The independent auditor
concluded, based upon their audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified (“clean”) opinion
that the District’s basic financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, are fairly presented in all
material respects in conformity with U.S. GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first
component of the Financial Section of this report.

The independent audit of the District’s basic financial statements includes a federally mandated “Single Audit”
designed to meet the special requirements of federal grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit
engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the basic financial
statements, but also on the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and other matters,
and on compliance related to the administration of federal awards. These reports are available in the Single Audit
Section of this report.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting to Beaverton School District for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the year ended



June 30, 2017. This was the thirty-seventh consecutive year the District has received this prestigious award. In order
to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the District published an easily readable and efficiently organized
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. This report complies with both generally accepted accounting principles
and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we are submitting
it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

In addition, the Association of School Business Officials International (ASBO) awarded its Certificate of Excellence in
Financial Reporting to Beaverton School District for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the year ended
June 30, 2017. The District has received this prestigious award for thirty-six consecutive years.

Receiving this Award is recognition that the District has met the highest standards of excellence in school financial
reporting as adopted by ASBO. The District believes that the current Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, which
will be submitted to ASBO for review, will also conform to these standards.

The preparation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report would not have been possible without the efficient
and dedicated services of the entire staff of the Business Services Department. We would like to express our

appreciation to all members of the department, who assisted and contributed to the preparation of this report.

We also thank the members of the School Board for their continued support and dedication to the financial
operations of the School District.

Respectfully submitted,

s n 7 /‘L///i:‘t:-*\

Don Grotting Gayellyn Jacobson
Superintendent of Schools Chief Financial Officer
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The Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting
is presented to

Beaverton School District

for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017.

The CAFR has been reviewed and met or exceeded
ASBO International’s Certificate of Excellence standards.

Charles E. Peterson, Jr., SFO, RSBA, MBA John D. Musso, CAE
President Executive Director
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
Appointed and Elected Officials

Administrative Office 16550 SW Merlo Road
Beaverton, Oregon 97003

Don Grotting Superintendent and Clerk
Carl Mead Deputy Superintendent
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Ginny Hansmann Deputy Superintendent (FY 2018-19)
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GROVE, MUELLER & SWANK, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS
475 Cottage Street NE, Suite 200, Salem, Oregon 97301
(503) 581-7788

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

School Board
Beaverton School District
Beaverton, Oregon

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Beaverton School District, Washington County, Oregon (the District) as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the District’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Beaverton School District, Washington County, Oregon as of June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial
position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.



Emphasis-of-Matter — Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in notes to the basic financial statements, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, the District
adopted new accounting guidance in implementing Government Accounting Standards Board Statement (GASBS)
No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. Our opinions are
not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion
and analysis (MD&A), and required supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information (except as mentioned in the
following paragraph) in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

The combining schedule and budgetary comparison information presented as required supplementary information,
as listed in the table of contents, has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the District’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual fund financial
statements and schedules, other financial schedules, and statistical section, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not required parts of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal, state
and local awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules, other financial schedules and the schedule
of expenditures of federal, state and local awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and
relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.



Reports on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 26, 2018, on
our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Other Reporting Required by Oregon Minimum Standards

In accordance with Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, we have issued our report
dated November 26, 2018, on our consideration of the District’s compliance with certain provisions of laws and
regulations, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and the results of that testing and not to
provide an opinion on compliance.

GROVE, MUELLER & SWANK, P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Ty £l T o

Larry B/ Grant, A Shagholder
November 26, 2018
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

As management of Beaverton School District (the District), we offer readers of the District's financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. We encourage
readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have
furnished in our Transmittal Letter, which can be found on pages i - vi of this report.

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS IMPLEMENTED

The District implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 75, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (GASB No. 75), Statement 81, Irrevocable Split-
Interest Agreements (GASB No. 81), Statement No. 82, Omnibus 2017 (GASB No. 82), and GASB Statement No. 86,
Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues (GASB No. 86) in fiscal year 2017-18. The District anticipates no financial impact
as a result of implementing GASB 81, GASB 82, and GASB 86. The District restated net position as a result of
implementing GASB 75. Additional information can be found in Footnote 18 and 19 of the financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e In the government-wide statements, the liabilities and deferred inflows of resources exceeded the assets and
deferred outflows of resources of the by $29.7 million (net position).

e The District’s total net position decreased by $41.3 million for the fiscal year, which includes a change of $31.5
for activity that occurred in the current year and a decrease of $9.8 million due to restatement of the prior
period net position.

e The District’s governmental funds report combined ending fund balance of $362.4 million, an decrease of $97.1
million from the prior year. Approximately 8.2 percent of this total amount, $29.7 million, is unassigned,
available for appropriation at the District’s discretion. The remaining fund balances are either nonspendable,
restricted or committed: $296.6 million for use on capital projects, $2.2 million for debt service and the balance
of $33.9 million for other purposes.

e At the end of the current fiscal year, the unrestricted fund balance (the total of the committed and unassigned
components of fund balance) for the General Fund was $52.5 million, or about 11.8 percent of total General
Fund revenue.

e Total cost of all the District’s programs was $594.0 million for the fiscal year, an increase of $42.4 million (7.7
percent) from the prior year.

e The District’s total outstanding long-term debt decreased $50.6 million (4.3 percent) during the 2017-18 fiscal
year due to debt service payments and amortization of premiums.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic financial
statements. The District’s basic financial statements consist of three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements. This report also contains
supplementary information intended to furnish additional detail to support the basic financial statements
themselves.



BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(CONTINUED)

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the District’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Net Position focuses on resources available for future operations.
In simple terms, this statement presents a snapshot view of what the District owns (assets), what it owes (liabilities),
and the net difference (net position). Net position may be further separated into amounts restricted for specific
purposes and unrestricted amounts. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities. The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the net position of the
District changed over the year by tracking revenues, expenses and other transactions that increase or reduce net
position. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some
items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused
vacation leave).

In the government-wide financial statements, the District’s activities are shown in one category as governmental
activities. All of the District’s basic functions are shown here, such as regular and special education, child nutrition
services, transportation, and administration. These activities are primarily financed through property taxes,
Oregon’s State School Fund and other intergovernmental revenues.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 21 - 22 of this report.

Fund financial statements. The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District’s
funds, focusing on its most significant or “major” funds — not the District as a whole. A fund is a grouping of related
accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or
objectives. The Beaverton School District, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure
and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the District can be divided
into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. To be considered a major fund,
the fund must meet criteria established by generally accepted accounting principles.

Governmental funds. The governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information
may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund Balance Sheet
and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances are reconciled to the government-wide
Statements of Net Position and Activities.

The District maintains eight individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental
funds Balance Sheet and the governmental funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances for the General, Debt Service, and Capital Projects Funds, all of which are considered to be major funds.
Data from the two additional General Fund type funds is included as a separate presentation, which can be found in
the appropriate sections following the notes to the basic financial statements. Data from five of these governmental
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(CONTINUED)

funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major
governmental funds is provided as Other Supplementary Information.

Additionally, the District adopts an annual appropriated budget for all funds as required by Oregon budget law.
Budgetary comparison statements / schedules have been provided to demonstrate compliance elsewhere in this
report.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 23 - 26.

Proprietary funds. The District maintains one proprietary fund type (internal service fund). The internal service
fund is an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the District’s various functions.
The District uses its internal service funds to account for insurance claims and premiums. Because these services
predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been included within
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

The District maintains two individual internal service funds. These funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation in the basic financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided as Other
Supplementary Information in this report.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements are provided on pages 27 - 29 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the District.
Fiduciary funds are not reported in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds
are not available to support the District’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is the same as that
used for proprietary funds.

The District maintains one fiduciary fund. The fund is used to report resources held in trust for students to use for
scholarships.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements are located on pages 30 - 31 of this report.

Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the basic
financial statements can be found on pages 32 - 66 of this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents
certain Required Supplementary Information (RSI) including budget to actual presentations for required major funds.
This information can be found on pages 69 - 73 of this report. Other Supplementary Information, presented on pages
77 - 120, includes combining statements for the nonmajor governmental funds, budgetary comparison for nonmajor
and other funds, and other financial schedules.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
Statement of Net Position. As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s

financial position. In the case of the District, its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources exceeded its assets and
deferred outflows of resources by $29.7 million at June 30, 2018.

11



BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(CONTINUED)

Capital assets, which consist of the District’s land, buildings, building improvements, construction in progress,
vehicles and equipment, represent 67.3 percent of total assets.

The remaining assets consist mainly of cash and investments, grants and property taxes receivable.

The District’s largest liability (91.8 percent) is for the repayment of long-term debt and obligations including post-
employment benefit obligations, the PERS net pension obligation, and all general obligation and limited tax pension
obligation bonds due in more than one year. Other liabilities, representing about 8.2 percent of the District’s total
liabilities, consist principally of the debt and obligations due within one year, capital leases due within one year,
payables on accounts, and accrued salaries and benefits.

Most of the District’s net position ($290.8 million) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings,
vehicles and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding and unspent
bond proceeds. The District uses these capital assets to provide services to students and other District residents;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the District’s investment in its capital
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources (generally property taxes), since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to
liquidate these liabilities.

The District’s restricted net position ($3.5 million) reflects resources that are subject to external restrictions on how
they may be used. The remaining balance in net position (negative $324.0 million) is unrestricted.

Beaverton School District
Net Position

Governmental Activities

June 30, June 30, Increase /
2017 2018 (Decrease)
Capital assets S 839,537,137 S 917,764,280 78,227,143
Current and other assets 563,781,726 446,473,991 (117,307,735)
Total assets 1,403,318,863 1,364,238,271 (39,080,592)
Deferred outflows of resources 236,826,672 179,283,306 (57,543,366)
Total assets and deferred
outflows of resources 1,640,145,535 1,543,521,577 (96,623,958)
Long-term liabilities 1,473,322,990 1,430,914,710 (42,408,280)
Other liabilities 144,410,839 128,013,896 (16,396,943)
Total liabilities 1,617,733,829 1,558,928,606 (58,805,223)
Deferred inflows of resources 10,775,172 14,244,449 3,469,277
Total liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources 1,628,509,001 1,573,173,055 (55,335,946)
Net position:
Netinvestmentin capital assets 268,188,162 290,846,498 22,658,336
Restricted 3,748,594 3,532,119 (216,475)
Unrestricted (260,300,222) (324,030,095) (63,729,873)
Total net position $ 11,636,534 S (29,651,478) (41,288,012)

12



BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(CONTINUED)

The District’s overall financial position changed as indicated by a decrease of $41.3 million in net position, which
includes a change of $31.5 for activity that occurred in the current year and a decrease of $9.8 million due to
restatement of the prior period net position. Unrestricted net position decreased by $63.7 million due mainly to the
change in the PERS net pension liability. At the same time, the District’s investment in capital assets, net of related
debt, increased by $22.7 million due principally to payment of related debt during the year.

Governmental activities. During the 2017-18 fiscal year, the District’s net position decreased by $41.3 million. The
key elements in this change are the following:

Beaverton School District
Changes in Net Position
Year Ended June 30,

Governmental Activities Increase /
2017 2018 (Decrease)
Revenues:

Program revenues:
Charges for services S 11,891,285 S 11,716,641 S (174,644)
Operatinggrants and contributions 30,565,670 37,291,667 6,725,997
Capital grants and contributions 361,917 472,169 110,252

General revenues:
Property taxes 178,771,515 187,038,021 8,266,506
Local option taxes 28,882,071 31,005,163 2,123,092
Construction excise tax 3,829,430 3,217,459 (611,971)
State school fund 231,739,269 258,157,569 26,418,300
Other state and local sources 19,779,176 21,452,058 1,672,882
Earnings on investments 2,351,393 4,943,574 2,592,181
Miscellaneous 2,516,646 7,232,558 4,715,912
Total revenues 510,688,372 562,526,879 51,838,507

Expenses:

Instruction 334,402,483 354,196,558 19,794,075
Support services 172,910,114 190,885,022 17,974,908
Enterprise and community services 14,011,447 14,904,678 893,231
Interest on long-term debt 30,307,560 34,035,456 3,727,896
Total expenses 551,631,604 594,021,714 42,390,110
Increase (decrease)in net position (40,943,232) (31,494,835) 9,448,397
Net position —July 1 (as restated) 52,579,766 1,843,357 (50,736,409)
Net position —June 30 $ 11,636,534 S (29,651,478) $ (41,288,012)

e Program revenues increased by $6.7 million in 2017-18 as a combination of a decrease of $175 thousand in
charges for services and an increase of $6.8 million in grants and contributions.

e General revenues increased by $45.2 million in 2017-18 largely due to increases from local property taxes and
state school fund.
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide information on relatively short-
term cash flow and funding for future basic services. Such information is useful in assessing the District’s financing
requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources
available for spending at the end of a fiscal year.

At June 30, 2018, the District’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $362.4 million, a
decrease of $97.1 million in comparison with the prior year. Approximately $332.7 million (91.8 percent) of the
ending fund balances constitutes nonspendable, restricted or committed balances. Restricted or committed ending
fund balances are constrained to specific purposes by bondholders or the governing body. Another $29.7 million
(8.2 percent) of the ending fund balances are unassigned and available for spending at the District’s discretion. Of
the fund balance, $296.6 million or 81.8 percent is designated for capital projects, as authorized by voters and the
Board, and an additional $2.2 million (0.6 percent) is dedicated for debt service obligations.

General Fund. The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the District. As of June 30, 2018, committed fund
balance was $22.9 million to fund early retirement payments, long-term planning needs, and a stability fund. As a
measure of the fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare total fund balance to total fund revenues. At the end
of the fiscal year, the General Fund balance was 11.8 percent of General Fund revenues. The fund balance decreased
by $7.3 million due to increased budgeted expenditures.

Debt Service Fund. The Debt Service Fund has a total fund balance of $2.2 million, all of which is set aside for the
payment of debt service. The fund balance stayed stable during the current year, with a net increase of $42
thousand.

Capital Projects Fund. The Capital Projects Fund has a total fund balance of $296.6 million, all of which is dedicated
for ongoing capital projects. Capital expenditures reflect costs incurred as part of the Long Range Facilities Plan. All
of the Capital Projects Fund balance is restricted or committed for capital improvements and repairs.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Original budget compared to final budget. During the year, there were two supplemental budgets with additional
appropriations that were adopted for 2017-18.

Final budget compared to actual results. The most significant difference between estimated revenue and actual
revenue was State and Local Sources. Estimated revenues were $278.3 million and actual revenue was $277.2
million with a difference of $1.2 million. The decrease of the revenue source was attributed to a change in the
common school fund revenues compared to estimates.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(CONTINUED)

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital assets. The District’s investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and improvements, vehicles and
equipment, and construction in progress. As of June 30, 2018, the District had approximately $917.8 million invested
in capital assets, net of depreciation, as shown in the following table:

Beaverton School District

Accumulated Capital Assets
(net of accumulated depreciation)

June 30, June 30, Increase

2017 2018 (Decrease)
Land S 63,208,802 S 71,449,746 S 8,240,944
Buildings and improvements 521,369,574 774,132,908 252,763,334
Vehicles and equipment 22,114,384 25,416,119 3,301,735
Construction in progress 232,844,377 46,765,507 (186,078,870)

Total capital assets, net of

related accumulated depreciation S 839,537,137 S 917,764,280 S 78,227,143

Additional information regarding the District’s capital assets can be found in Note 8 on page 44 of this report.
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Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the District had total long-term debt outstanding of $1,117
million, of the total $1,119.6 million outstanding debt. The debt consisted of general obligation bonds, full faith and
credit obligation bonds, pension obligation bonds, capital leases and unamortized premium.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a school district may issue to 7.95 percent of its total real
market value. The current debt limit is $3.69 billion, which is significantly in excess of the District’s outstanding
general obligation debt.

The District maintains an “A+” rating from Standard & Poor's and an “Aa2” rating from Moody’s for general obligation
debt.

Additional information on the District’s long-term debt can be found in Notes 9 and 10 on pages 44 - 49 of this report.

Beaverton School District
Outstanding Debt

(in thousands)

June 30, June 30, Increase
2017 2018 (Decrease)
General obligation bonds S 832,135 S 800,970 S (31,165)
Pension obligation bonds 215,470 203,740 (11,730)
Full faith and credit obligation bonds 18,115 17,455 (660)
Unamortized premium 101,872 94,836 (7,036)
Capital leases 2,574 2,607 33
S 1,170,165 S 1,119,608 S (50,557)

Economic FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET

Resources supporting District General Fund operations primarily reflect local and state revenues, with additional
income representing federal, county and other sources. The largest segment is determined by the State School Fund
formula. The majority of funding provided by the State to the District is based on the District’s average daily
membership of students. Total student enrollment in 2017-18 increased from 2016-17. Slow continual growth
trends are projected to continue in future years.

The state economic forecast reveals a slow, steady growth and slow growth in State School funding for the District
in the next few biennia.

The 2018-19 budget was based on a K-12 state funding level of $8.2 billion, which is about 11% higher than the
legislatively approved 2015-17 K-12 funding level. Local voters approved a local option levy in 2013-14 and it was
renewed by the voters in the May 2018 election. This has restored 300 teaching positions reduced in previous years
and will continue through June of 2023 to support additional classroom teachers in an effort to reduce class sizes.

In June 2018, the board adopted the District budget for the fiscal year 2018-19. The adopted budget for the General
Fund for the year ending June 30, 2019 is $488.3 million.
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The School Board has set policy that the District will target 5 percent of annual operating revenues as ending fund
balance and an additional 5 percent to a rainy-day fund reserve. The District will also budget an annual operating
contingency equal to 5 percent of budgeted revenues. The 2018-19 beginning fund balance meets board policy
requirements.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to present the user (citizens, taxpayers, investors, and creditors) with a general
overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s accountability. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the District’s
Finance Manager at 16550 SW Merlo Road, Beaverton, Oregon 97003.
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2018

ASSETS:

Cash and investments

Receivables

Inventories

OPEB net asset - RHIA

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements
Vehicles and equipment

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFFERED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred amount on refunding
PERS deferred outflows
OPEB deferred outflows
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Accrued interest payable
Unearned revenue
Accrued claims losses
Other accrued liabilities
Capital leases payable - due within one year
General obligation and full faith and credit obligation bonds - due within one year
Bonds payable - limited tax pension obligation bonds - due within one year
Capital leases payable - due in more than one year
General obligation and full faith and credit obligation bonds - due in more than one year
Bonds payable - limited tax pension obligation bonds - due in more than one year
PERS net pension liability
OPEB total liability - PHIS
TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
PERS deferred inflows
OPEB deferred inflows
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for student body

Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$ 424,931,438
20,009,798

515,050

1,017,705

71,449,746
46,765,507

774,132,908
25,416,119

1,364,238,271

645,480
175,955,715
2,682,111

179,283,306

1,543,521,577

22,847,784
45,726,181
4,772,146
2,887,555
2,690,000
2,507,218
1,007,620
33,075,392
12,500,000
1,599,571
880,185,839
191,240,000
328,358,025
29,531,275

1,558,928,606

12,015,611
2,228,838

14,244,449

1,573,173,055

290,846,498
3,532,119
(324,030,095)

S (29,651,478)




BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Functions/Programs
Governmental activities:
Regular programs
Special programs
Summer school programs
Student support services
Instructional staff support
General administration support
School administration
Business support services
Central activities support
Supplemental retirement program
Food services
Community services
Interest on long-term debt

Total governmental activities

Program Revenues Net (Expense)
Operating Capital Revenue and
Charges for Grants and Grants and Change in

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Net Position
S 261,781,198 S 5,270,449 $ 6,045,650 $ - S (250,465,099)
90,816,316 - 11,110,441 - (79,705,875)
1,599,044 - 485,873 - (1,113,171)
43,245,977 - 3,783,505 - (39,462,472)
21,579,054 - 1,778,375 - (19,800,679)
2,233,419 - - - (2,233,419)
36,716,727 - - - (36,716,727)
62,356,966 1,213,871 4,948,714 472,169 (55,722,212)
24,743,049 348,175 172,123 - (24,222,751)
9,830 - - - (9,830)
14,889,225 4,884,146 8,953,030 - (1,052,049)
15,453 - 13,956 - (1,497)
34,035,456 - - - (34,035,456)
S 594,021,714 $ 11,716,641 S 37,291,667 $ 472,169 (544,541,237)

General revenues:

Property taxes levied for general purposes
Local option taxes levied for general purposes

Property taxes levied for debt service

Construction excise tax

State school fund - general support
Common school fund

Unrestricted state and local sources
Earnings on investments

Gain on sale of capital asset
Miscellaneous

Total general revenues

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, July 1, 2017 as originally reported

Restatement (see Note 19)

NET POSITION, July 1, 2017 as restated

NET POSITION, June 30, 2018

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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128,140,820
31,005,163
58,897,201

3,217,459
258,157,569
4,191,413
17,260,645
4,943,574
298,016
6,934,542

513,046,402
(31,494,835)
11,636,534

(9,793,177)

1,843,357

5 (9651478)



BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2018

Debt Capital Nonmajor
General Service Projects Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and investments 5 89,781,644 S 330,566 S 311,476,243 S 13,824,124 § 415,412,577
Cash with fiscal agent 2,035 125,124 300,000 - 427,159
Receivables 3,889,728 162,803 3,383,170 5,432,693 12,868,394
Property taxes receivable 5,129,275 1,992,348 - - 7,121,623
Due from other funds 2,296,860 1,348,058 - - 3,644,918
Inventories - - - 515,050 515,050
TOTAL ASSETS S 101,099,542 S 3,958,899 S 315,159,413 S 19,771,867 S 439,989,721
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND
FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable S 5,035,440 S - S 16,404,371 S 654,005 S 22,093,816
Accrued salaries and benefits 37,558,925 - 72,674 2,328,152 39,959,751
Due to other funds 1,500,126 - 3,484 2,406,781 3,910,391
Unearned revenue - - - 2,887,555 2,887,555
Other liabilities 6,098 - 2,115,066 386,054 2,507,218
TOTAL LIABILITIES 44,100,589 - 18,595,595 8,662,547 71,358,731
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 4,486,927 1,759,310 - - 6,246,237
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES 48,587,516 1,759,310 18,595,595 8,662,547 77,604,968
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable
Inventories - - - 515,050 515,050
Restricted
Debt Service Fund - 561,085 - - 561,085
Capital Projects Fund - - 288,305,160 - 288,305,160
Student Body Fund - - - 3,532,119 3,532,119
Committed
Debt Service Fund - 1,638,504 - - 1,638,504
Capital Projects Fund - - 8,258,658 - 8,258,658
Special Purpose Fund - - - 1,110,005 1,110,005
Categorical Fund - - - 2,705,099 2,705,099
Nutrition Services Fund - - - 3,247,047 3,247,047
Pension Fund 61,970 - - - 61,970
Long-term Planning Fund 22,790,054 - - - 22,790,054
Unassigned 29,660,002 - - - 29,660,002
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 52,512,026 2,199,589 296,563,818 11,109,320 362,384,753
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES S 101,099,542 S 3,958,899 S 315,159,413 S 19,771,867 S 439,989,721

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2018

TOTAL FUND BALANCES S 362,384,753

Capital assets are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the
governmental funds:
Cost $ 1,206,583,217
Accumulated depreciation (288,818,937) 917,764,280

A portion of the District's revenues are collected after year-end, but are not available soon
enough to pay for the current year's operations, and therefore are not reported in the
governmental funds. 6,246,237

Internal service funds are used by the District to charge the costs of insurance premiums and
claims to the individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are
included in governmental activities in the statement of net position. 5,899,335

Compensated absences are reported when earned as a liability in the Statement of Net
Position while in the governmental funds only the portion that requires the use of current
financial resources is reported as a liability. (5,732,777)

Long-term liabilities not payable in the current year are not reported as governmental fund
liabilities. Interest on long-term debt and capital lease is not accrued in the governmental
funds, but rather is recognized as an expenditure when due. These liabilities consist of:

Accrued interest payable (4,772,146)
Bonds payable and unamortized premium (1,117,001,231)
Capital leases payable (2,607,191) (1,124,380,568)

Long-term pension assets / liabilities not payable in the current year are not reported as
governmental fund liabilities. Actuarial changes create deferred outflows and inflows of
resources. These consist of:

PERS net pension liability (328,358,025)
PERS deferred outflow of resources 175,955,715
PERS deferred inflows of resources (12,015,611) (164,417,921)

In 2015-16 bond refunding, a larger amount paid to the escrow agent than the premiums of
the bonds being refunded that was recorded as interest expense. This deferred outflow of
resources is recognized based on the schedule of maturities of the refunded bonds. 645,480

Long-term other postemployment benefits obligation assets / liabilities not payable in the
current year are not reported as governmental fund liabilities. Actuarial changes create
deferred outflows and inflows of resources. These consist of:

Total OPEB asset 1,017,705

Total OPEB liablity (29,531,275)

OPEB deferred outflow of resources 2,682,111

OPEB deferred inflows of resources (2,228,838) (28,060,297)
TOTAL NET POSITION S (29,651,478)

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

REVENUES:
Property taxes
Local option levy
Construction excise tax
State and local sources
Federal sources
Charges for services
Rentals
Investment earnings
Contributions and donations
Services to other funds
Recovery of prior years' expenditures
Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:

Instruction

Support services

Enterprise and community services
Facilities acquisition and construction
Debt service

Principal

Interest

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Sale of or compensation for loss of capital

assets
Transfers in
Transfers out
Proceeds from capital leases

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2017

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2018

Debt Capital Nonmajor
General Service Projects Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
130,772,599 S 58,897,201 - - S 189,669,800
31,005,163 - - - 31,005,163
- - 3,217,459 - 3,217,459
277,208,985 - - 8,649,941 285,858,926
- - - 24,170,167 24,170,167
2,985,139 - - 8,422,125 11,407,264
904,652 - 26,730 4,976 936,358
1,486,339 470,989 2,801,327 85,175 4,843,830
38,813 - 2,149,002 3,024,445 5,212,260
- 20,374,626 - - 20,374,626
229,367 - 4,773,963 1,150 5,004,480
1,128,550 - 472,169 1,391,865 2,992,584
445,759,607 79,742,816 13,440,650 45,749,844 584,692,917
290,977,430 - - 19,516,109 310,493,539
161,744,729 - 2,243,151 6,791,384 170,779,264
- - - 14,045,480 14,045,480
84,790 - 100,690,912 4,917,524 105,693,226
942,547 43,554,513 - - 44,497,060
75,842 37,450,611 - - 37,526,453
453,825,338 81,005,124 102,934,063 45,270,497 683,035,022
(8,065,731) (1,262,308) (89,493,413) 479,347 (98,342,105)
- - 277,750 - 277,750
1,919,285 1,304,800 - 4,820 3,228,905
(2,088,979) - (1,135,106) (4,820) (3,228,905)
976,104 - - - 976,104
806,410 1,304,800 (857,356) - 1,253,854
(7,259,321) 42,492 (90,350,769) 479,347 (97,088,251)
59,771,347 2,157,097 386,914,587 10,629,973 459,473,004
52,512,026 S 2,199,589 296,563,818 11,109,320 S 362,384,753

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES S (97,088,251)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. In the Statement of Activities the cost
of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which capital outlay exceeded depreciation in the current period:
Net change in capital assets S 99,226,762
Less net change in accumulated depreciation (20,999,619) 78,227,143

In the Statement of Activities, pension expense is adjusted based on the actuarially determined
contribution changes:

Net change in PERS net pension liability / asset 8,067,349
Net change in deferred outflow of resources (59,584,620)
Net change in deferred inflow of resources (1,240,439) (52,757,710)

Long-term debt proceeds and capital leases are reported as other financing sources in
governmental funds. In the Statement of Net Position, this debt increases liabilities. Similarly,
repayment of principal and amortization of bond premium are an expenditure in the
governmental funds but reduce the liability in the Statement of Net Position. This is the amount
by which repayments exceeded proceeds:

Debt principal repaid 43,554,513
Amortization expense 7,035,945
Capital lease issued (976,104)
Capital lease debt principal repaid 942,547 50,556,901

In refunding bonds, the amount of new bonds in excess of the refunded bonds is a deferred
outflow of resources for the Statement of Activities, whereas it is recorded as an interest expense
in the year of refunding. (640,857)

In the Statement of Activities, interest is accrued on long-term debt, whereas in the governmental
funds it is recorded as an interest expenditure when due. (2,904,091)

Certain revenues that do not meet the measurable and available criteria are not recognized in the
current year in the governmental funds. In the Statement of Activities, they are recognized as
revenue when earned. (2,631,779)

Internal service funds are used by the District to charge the costs of insurance premiums and
claims to the individual funds. The net income is reported with governmental activities. (1,757,137)

Compensated absences are recognized as an expenditure in the governmental funds when they
are paid. In the Statement of Activities compensated absences are recognized as an expense
when earned. (2,404,888)

In the Statement of Activities, other postemployment benefits expense is adjusted based on the
actuarially determined contribution changes:

Net change in total OPEB liablity / asset 2,128,449

Net change in deferred outflow of resources 6,223

Net change in deferred inflow of resources (2,228,838) (94,166)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION S (31,494,835)

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS - INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2018

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents S 9,091,702
Receivables 19,781
Due from other funds 266,542
TOTAL ASSETS 9,378,025
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 753,968
Accrued claims losses 2,690,000
Accrued salaries and benefits 33,653
Due to other funds 1,069
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,478,690
NET POSITION
Unrestricted 5,899,335
TOTAL NET POSITION S 5,899,335

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

OPERATING REVENUES:

Services to other funds S 3,720,966
Recovery of prior years' expenditures 399,357
Other 63,515
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 4,183,838

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Losses and claims 2,249,199
Insurance premiums and assessments 1,988,343
Salaries and benefits 1,124,085
Services, supplies and materials 522,837
Facilities acquisition and construction 156,256
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 6,040,720

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (1,856,882)

NONOPERATING REVENUE:

Investment earnings 99,745
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES 99,745
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (1,757,137)

NET POSITION, July 1, 2017 7,656,472
NET POSITION, June 30, 2018 $ 5,899,335

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS - INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Received from interfund services provided
Received from recovery of prior years' expenditures
Paid for goods and services
Paid to claimants
Paid to employees

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, July 1, 2017

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, June 30, 2018

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING

ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating

activities:

Changes in assets and liabilities
Receivables
Due from other funds
Accounts payable
Accrued claims losses
Accrued salaries and benefits
Due to other funds

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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3,759,081
399,357
(2,183,482)
(2,223,469)
(1,065,085)

(1,313,598)

99,745
99,745

(1,213,853)

10,305,555

9,091,702

(1,856,882)

(14,848)
(11,335)
483,954
59,000
25,730
783

(1,313,598)



BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUND - PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUND
JUNE 30, 2018

ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and investments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Scholarships payable

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET POSITION
Held in trust for:

Scholarships

TOTAL NET POSITION

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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340,620

340,620

1,000
34,000

35,000

305,620

305,620



BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUND - PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

ADDITIONS:
Contributions and donations
Investment earnings
Recovery of prior years' expenditures
Total additions
DEDUCTIONS:
Scholarships

Total deductions

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, July 1, 2017

NET POSITION, June 30, 2018

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$

88,933
3,152
1,745

93,830

52,755

52,755

41,075

264,545

305,620



BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity

Beaverton School District (the District), a consolidation of several districts, was organized under provisions of
Oregon Statutes pursuant to ORS Chapter 332 for the purpose of operating elementary and secondary schools.
The District is governed by a separately elected seven-member Board which approves the administrative officials.
The daily functioning of the District is under the supervision of the Superintendent. As required by generally
accepted accounting principles, all activities of the District have been included in the basic financial statements.

The District qualifies as a primary government since it has a separately elected governing body, is a legally
separate entity, and is fiscally independent. There are various governmental agencies and special service districts,
which provide service within the District's boundaries. However, the District is not financially accountable for any
of these entities, and therefore, none of them are considered component units or included in these basic financial
statements.

The District has granted charter to two public charter schools, Arco Iris Spanish Immersion Charter School and
Hope Chinese Charter School. These public charter schools are legally separate, tax-exempt organizations
governed by their own board of directors, and their financial statements may be obtained by contacting their
administrative offices.

Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities display information about the District. These
statements include the governmental financial activities of the overall District, except fiduciary activities.
Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities, except that interfund services
provided and used, are not eliminated in the process of consolidation. Governmental activities are financed
primarily through property taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and charges for services.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each of
its functions or programs. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a function and,
therefore, are clearly identifiable to that function. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting
of internal activities in the Statement of Activities. Program revenues include: (1) charges to students or others
for tuition, fees, rentals, material, supplies or services provided, (2) operating grants and contributions and (3)
capital grants and contributions. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including property taxes
and state support, are presented as general revenues. Certain functional expenditures contain an element of
indirect cost.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.

Net position is reported as restricted when constraints placed on net position use are either externally restricted,

imposed by creditors (such as through grantors, contributors or laws) or through constitutional provisions or
enabling resolutions.
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
JUNE 30, 2018

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the District's funds including those of a fiduciary nature.
Separate statements for each fund category (governmental, proprietary and fiduciary) are presented. The
emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental funds, each displayed in a separate column. All
remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported as other governmental funds.

The District reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - is the District's primary operating fund and accounts for all revenues and expenditures except
those required to be accounted for in another fund. This includes the Pension sub-fund to account for the
accumulation of resources to be used for payments to employees who receive supplemental early retirement
stipends and post-employment health care benefits and the Long-term Planning sub-fund to account for
funds set aside for a specific purpose carrying over one year.

Debt Service Fund - provides for the payment of principal and interest on long-term general obligation debt,
full faith and credit obligation debt, and pension obligation debt of governmental funds. Principal revenue
sources are property taxes, construction excise tax, general fund transfer and charges to other funds.

Capital Projects Fund - accounts for activities related to the acquisition, construction, and equipping of
facilities. Principal revenue sources are proceeds from the sale of bonds and interest earnings.

Additionally, the District reports the following fund types:

Special Revenue Funds account for revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific
purposes such as federal and state grants, classroom supplies and equipment, capital improvements, the
receipts, disbursements and cash balances of the various schools’ student body activity funds, individual
school activity programs and revenues and expenditures for the food dispensing programs.

Internal Service Funds account for insurance services provided to other departments of the District on a cost-
reimbursement basis.

Private-Purpose Trust Fund is used to account for scholarship resources held by the District in a fiduciary
capacity for use by students. Disbursements from this fund are made in accordance with the trust and donor
agreements.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Government-wide, internal service, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.
Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without giving equal value in exchange, include
state school fund support, property taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On the accrual basis of accounting,
revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants,
entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been
satisfied. Under terms of grant agreements, the District funds certain programs by a combination of specific cost-
reimbursement grants and general revenues. Thus, when program expenses are incurred, there are both
restricted and unrestricted net positions available to finance the program. It is the District's policy to first apply
cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs and then general revenues.
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
JUNE 30, 2018

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus
and modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and
available. The District considers all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if they are
collected within sixty days after year-end. Property taxes and interest are considered to be susceptible to accrual.
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general
long-term debt, claims and judgments, and accrued vacation which are recognized as expenditures only when
payment is due. Capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds and proceeds
from general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the District’s internal service
funds are charges for insurance services. Operating expenses for internal service funds include the cost of
materials and supplies, insurance premiums, losses and claims, administrative expenses and depreciation on
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and
expenses.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

The District's cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments
with original maturities of three months or less. These short-term investments are stated at cost, which
approximates fair value.

The District's investments consist of corporate securities, U.S. Government Treasury securities, U.S. Government
Agency securities, state and local government obligations, bank deposits and savings accounts, and the State of
Oregon Treasurer's Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP). The District’s investments are reported at fair
value based upon quoted market rates. Changes in the fair value of investments are recorded as investment
earnings. The LGIP is stated at cost which approximates fair value. Fair value of the LGIP is the same as the
District's value in the pool shares.

The Oregon State Treasury administers the LGIP. It is an open-ended no-load diversified portfolio offered to any
agency, political subdivision or public corporation of the State that by law is made the custodian of, or has control
of, any funds. The LGIP is commingled with the State’s short-term funds. In seeking to best serve local
governments of Oregon, the Oregon legislature established the Oregon Short-Term Fund Board. The purpose of
the Board is to advise the Oregon State Treasury in the management and investment options of the LGIP.

Property Taxes Receivable

Property taxes are levied and become a lien on July 1. Collection dates are November 15, February 15, and May 15
following the lien date. Discounts are allowed if the amount due is received by November 15 or February 15.
Taxes unpaid and outstanding on May 16 are considered delinquent.

Uncollected property taxes are recorded on the Statement of Net Position. Uncollected taxes are deemed to be

substantially collectible or recoverable through liens; therefore, no allowance for uncollectible taxes has been
established. All property taxes receivable are due from property owners within the District.
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
JUNE 30, 2018

Accounts and Other Receivables

Accounts and other receivables are comprised primarily of State school support, claims for reimbursement of
costs under various federal and state grants, and investment interest. Amounts are periodically reviewed for
collectability. At June 30, 2018, no allowance for doubtful accounts is considered necessary.

Grants

Unreimbursed expenditures due from grantor agencies are reflected in the basic financial statements as
receivables and revenues. Grant revenues are recorded at the time eligible expenditures are incurred. Grant
monies received prior to the occurrence of qualifying expenditures are recorded as unearned revenue.

Inventories

Inventories consist of supplies held for sale. Inventories are charged as expenditures when consumed and are
stated at cost using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. A portion of the inventory consists of donated United
States Department of Agriculture (USDA) commodities. Commodities are recorded as expenditures when
consumed and are stated at their fair market value based on guidelines provided by the USDA.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded at original or estimated original cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at their
acquisition value on the date donated. The District defines capital assets as assets with an initial cost of more
than $5,000 and an estimated life in excess of one year. Maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of
the asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-
line method over the following useful lives:

Buildings and improvements 10 to 50 years
Vehicles and equipment 5to 30 years

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position and balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) so will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until that time. The government has three items
that arise only under a full accrual basis of accounting that qualify for reporting in this category. The statement
of net position reports one type related to the net OPEB liability, one type related to the net PERS pension liability
and one type related to bond refunding. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an outflow of resources
in the period that the amounts become available.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position and balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The government has three items that arise for
reporting in this category. The balance sheet reports unavailable revenues from one source: property taxes. The
statement of net position reports one type related to the net OPEB liability and one type related to the net PERS
pension liability. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the
amounts become available.
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Retirement Plans and Other Post-Employment Benefits

Substantially all of the District's employees are participants in the State of Oregon Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS). For the purpose of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about fiduciary net position
of PERS and additions to/deductions from PERS's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis
as they are reported by PERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions)
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair
value.

The 2003 Oregon Legislature passed PERS reform legislation and essentially created a new retirement plan for
employees hired on or after August 29, 2003. These employees become members of the Oregon Public Service
Retirement Plan (OPSRP). OPSRP is a hybrid retirement plan with two components: the Pension Program
(defined benefit plan) and the Individual Account Program (defined contribution; established and maintained as
a tax-qualified governmental defined contribution plan). OPSRP is administered by PERS.

In addition, the District has other post-employment benefit plans for employees. As a member of PERS, the
District contributes to the Retirement Health Insurance Accounts (RHIA) for eligible District employees. This plan
was established by the Oregon Legislature. The District also has a Postemployment Health Insurance Subsidy
(PHIS) plan that provides postemployment insurance for eligible employees and their spouses. This plan was
established by the District in accordance with Oregon Revised Statues (ORS) 243.303.

The District offers its employees tax deferred annuity plans established pursuant to Section 403(b) and 457(b) of
the Internal Revenue Code. Contributions are made through salary reductions from participating employees up
to the amounts specified in the Code. The District makes contributions for active administrators as part of their
benefit package but is not responsible for any amount postemployment. Employees are immediately vested in
their own contributions, any District contributions, and earnings on those contributions. There are no forfeitures
on any of these plans. The plans are administrated by Carruth Compliance Consulting.

Benefit terms for the active administrators, including contribution requirements, are established in the
agreement with the Association of Beaverton School Administrators and may be amended in future agreements.
For each employee, the District is required to contribute $100 per month that may be used to purchase a
retirement financial product and to contribute 5% of salary to the 403(b) plan. For the year ended June 30, 2018,
the total of these District contributions was $931,292.

Compensated Absences

It is the District's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned, but unused vacation and sick pay benefits.
There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave since the District does not have a policy to pay any amounts
when employees separate from service with the District. All vacation pay is considered to be current as the
District policy states that vacation will lapse if not taken within six months following the year end. It is accrued
when earned in the government-wide financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in the
governmental funds only as they come due, for example, as a result of employee resignation and retirements.

Long-Term Debt
In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt is reported as a liability in the Statement of Net

Position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-
line method, which approximates the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable
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bond premium or discount. Savings realized from advance refunding of debt are recorded as deferred outflows
of resources and amortized over the remaining life of the related defeased debt.

In the fund financial statements, bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, are recognized
when incurred and are not deferred. The face amount of the debt issued, premiums received on debt issuances,
and discounts are reported as other financing sources and uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from
the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. All principal and interest debt
payments are paid by the Debt Service Fund.

Net Position

Net position is comprised of the various net earnings from operations, nonoperating revenues, expenses and
contributions of capital. Net position is classified in the following three categories:

Net investment in capital assets — consists of all capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced
by the outstanding balances of any bonds or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets. The District has unspent bond proceeds in the form of cash
and investments to fund bond expenditures in subsequent years.

Restricted — consists of external constraints placed on asset use by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws
or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation. There are net positions restricted for debt service and student body.

Unrestricted net position — consists of all other assets that are not included in other categories previously
mentioned.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of basic financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic financial
statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses/expenditures during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Governmental Fund Balances

In the governmental financial statements, fund balances are reported in classifications that comprise a hierarchy
based primarily on the extent to which the District is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for
which amounts in those funds can be spent.

Governmental Fund type fund balances are classified as follows:

Nonspendable — Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in a nonspendable form or because they
are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. Resources in nonspendable form include
inventories, prepaids and deposits, and assets held for resale.

Restricted — Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes when the constraints placed on the use of these
resources are either: (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors,
or laws or regulations of other governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.
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Committed — Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal action of the School
Board. The use of committed funds would be approved by resolution. The School Board can modify or rescind
the commitment at any time through an amending resolution.

Assigned - Amounts that are constrained by the District’s intent to use them for a specific purpose, but are neither
restricted nor committed, are reported as assigned fund balance. Intent is expressed when the School Board
approves which resources should be “reserved” during the adoption of the annual budget. Intent can be
stipulated by the governing body or by an official to whom that authority has been given by the governing body.
The Superintendent and Chief Financial Officer have been granted the authority to assign fund balances, pursuant
to School Board Resolution number 13-314.

Unassigned — All amounts not included in other spendable classifications. This residual classification represents
fund balance that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned within the General Fund. This classification is
also used to report any negative fund balance amounts in other governmental funds.

The governing body has approved the following order of spending regarding fund balance categories: Restricted
resources are spent first when both restricted and unrestricted (committed, assigned or unassigned) resources
are available for expenditures. When unrestricted resources are spent, the order of spending is committed (if
applicable), assigned (if applicable), and unassigned.

Definitions of Governmental Fund Types

The General Fund is used to account for all financial resources not accounted for in another fund. In addition,
certain funds budgeted as Special Revenue Funds are reported as part of the General Fund because their source
of funds is primarily transfers from the General Fund.

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects. The
term “proceeds of specific revenues sources” means that the revenue sources for the fund must be from
restricted or committed sources, specifically that a substantial portion of the revenue must be from these sources
and be expended in accordance with those requirements.

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or
assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other
capital assets.

Debt Service Funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or
assigned to expenditure for principal and interest. Debt service funds should be used to report resources if legally
mandated. Financial resources that are being accumulated for principal and interest maturing in future years
should also be reported in debt service funds.

Fund Balance Policy

School Board policy mandates that the District budget a minimum of five percent of its General Fund revenue as
contingency, and that a five percent fund balance be maintained. An additional five percent fund balance is
maintained in a sustainability fund to support long-term financial stability and can only be accessed through Board
action to moderate future revenue declines.

38



BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
JUNE 30, 2018

2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Budget

A budget is prepared and legally adopted for each governmental fund type, proprietary fund type, and private-
purpose trust fund on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The budgetary basis of accounting is the same
as accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for the governmental fund types and
private-purpose trust fund, except capital outlay expenditures, including items below the District's capitalization
level, which are budgeted by major function in the governmental fund types. The resolution authorizing
appropriations for each fund sets the level by which expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations.

Appropriations are established at the major function level (instruction, support services, enterprise and
community services, facilities acquisition and construction, debt service, operating contingency and transfers) for
each fund. The detail budget document, however, is required to contain more specific, detailed information for
the aforementioned expenditure categories. Unexpected additional resources may be added to the budget
through the use of a supplemental budget and appropriation resolution.

Supplemental budgets less than 10% of a fund’s original budget may be adopted by the Board at a regular
meeting. A supplemental budget greater than 10% of a fund’s original budget requires hearings before the public,
publication in newspapers and approval by the Board. Original and supplemental budgets may be modified by
the use of appropriation transfers between the levels of control (major function levels) with Board approval.
During the year, there were two supplemental budgets with additional appropriations that were adopted for
2017-18. Appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year.

3. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The District maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds. Each fund type’s portion
of this pool is displayed on the balance sheet as “Equity in pooled cash and investments.” In addition, cash and
investments are separately held by several of the District’s funds.

Cash and investments are comprised of the following at June 30, 2018:

Cash with fiscal agent S 427,159
Petty cash 390
Deposits with banks 40,261,974
Investments 384,582,535

S 425,272,058

Cash and investments are shown on the basic financial statements as:

Statement of Net Position

Cash andinvestments S 424,931,438
Statement of Net Position - Fiduciary Funds
Equity in pooled cash and investments 340,620

$ 425,272,058
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At year-end, the District’s deposits with various financial institutions had a bank value of $42,836,409 and a book
value of $40,261,974. All deposits not covered by FDIC insurance are covered by the Public Funds Collateralization
Program (PFCP) of the State of Oregon. The PFCP is a shared liability structure for participating bank depositories,
better protecting public funds though still not guaranteeing that all funds are 100% protected. Barring any
exceptions, a bank depository is required to pledge collateral valued at 10% of their quarter-end public fund
deposits if they are well capitalized, 25% of their quarter-end public fund deposits if they are adequately
capitalized, or 110% of their quarter-end public fund deposits if they are undercapitalized or assigned to pledge
110% by the Office of the State Treasurer. In the event of a participating bank failure, the entire pool of collateral
pledged by all qualified Oregon public funds bank depositories is available to repay deposits of public funds of

government entities.

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District’s deposits may not be
returned. The Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) provides insurance for the District’s deposits with
financial institutions up to $250,000 each for the aggregate of all non-interest bearing accounts and the aggregate
of all interest bearing accounts at each institution. Deposits in excess of FDIC coverage with institutions with
institutions participating in the Oregon Public Funds Collateralization Program (PFCP) are collateralized with
securities held by the Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle in the name of the institution. As of June 30, 2018,
$42,336,409 of the District’s bank balances were exposed to custodial credit risk as they were collateralized with

securities held by the pledging financial institution’s agent, but not in the District’s name.

As of June 30, 2018 the District held the following investments and maturities:

Weighted Percent of
Average Maturity Investment
Investment Type Fair Value inYears Portfolio
U.S. Treasury securities S 36,656,128 0.722 9.5%
U.S. Agency securities 210,099,141 1.079 54.6%
State and local government obligations 1,001,250 1.173 0.3%
Corporate securities 89,213,680 0.765 23.2%
Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) 47,612,336 0.003 12.4%
$ 384,582,535 0.839 100.0%

The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of
an asset. Level 1inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other
observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. Investments in U.S. Treasury securities, U.S.
Agency securities, state and local government obligations, and corporate securities are valued using quoted

market prices (Level 1 inputs).

The “weighted average maturity in years” calculation assumes that all investments are held until maturity.

40



BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
JUNE 30, 2018

As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the District’s investment
policy limits investment as follows:

Maximum %
Investment Type of Portfolio Maximum Length to Maturity

U.S. Treasury securities 100% 18 months for operating funds,
3 years for capital project funds

U.S. Agency securities 100% 18 months for operating funds,
3 years for capital project funds

State and local government obligations 30% 18 months for operating funds,
3 years for capital project funds

Time certificates of deposits 50% 18 months

Repurchase agreements 25% 30days

Bankers'acceptances 25% 6 months

Corporate securities 35% 18 months

Bank deposits and savings accounts 10% N/A

Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) 100% N/A

The maximum amount of pooled investments to be placed in the LGIP is limited by Oregon State Statues and will
increase proportionately with the Portland Consumer Price Index. The limit can be temporarily exceeded for ten
business days and does not apply either to pass-through funds or to funds invested on behalf of another

governmental unit.

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the District will
not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside
party. The District minimizes custodial credit risk by limiting investments to the types of securities allowed by
law; and pre-qualifying the financial institutions, brokers/dealers, intermediaries and advisors with which the
District will do business. All of the investments above, except for the investment in the LGIP which is not
evidenced by securities, are held in safekeeping by a financial institution counterparty in the financial institution’s
general customer account name.

The District’s credit risk policy, which adheres to State of Oregon law, is to limit its investments to the following:
Issuers within Oregon must be rated “A” (bonds) or A-2 / P-2 (commercial paper) or better by Standard and Poor’s,
Moody’s Investors Service or any other nationally recognized statistical rating organization, issuers not in Oregon
must be rated AA / Aa (bonds) or A-1 / P-1 (commercial paper) or better.

At June 30, 2018, the District’s investments were rated as follows:

Highest Rating from Moody's Investors Service or Standard & Poor's Corporation

Investment Type Total Aaa/AAA Aa/AA A/A Not Rated
U.S. Treasury securities $ 36,656,128 $ 36,656,128 S - S - S -
U.S. Agency securities 210,099,141 210,099,141 - - -
State and local government obligations 1,001,250 - 1,001,250 - -
Corporate securities 89,213,680 10,859,070 57,956,204 20,398,406 -
Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) 47,612,336 - - - 47,612,336

$384,582,535 $257,614,339 $ 58,957,454 $ 20,398,406 S 47,612,336

The Oregon State Treasurer maintains the Oregon Short-Term Fund, of which the LGIP is a part and is not
registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission. Participation by local governments is voluntary.
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The State of Oregon investment policies are governed by statute and the Oregon Investment Council. In
accordance with Oregon Statute, funds are invested as a prudent investor would do, exercising reasonable care,
skilland caution. The LGIP was created to offer a short-term investment alternative to Oregon local governments.
The investments are regulated by the Oregon Short-Term Fund Board and approved by the Oregon Investment
Council (ORS 294.805 to 294.895). Separate financial statements for the Oregon Short-Term Fund are available
from the Oregon State Treasurer. The State of Oregon LGIP is unrated for credit quality.

The District’s policy for investing in individual issuers varies depending on the type of investments. No more than
35% of the total portfolio of investments may be invested in any single U.S. government agency. No more than
10% of the total portfolio may be invested in a single issuer of bankers’ acceptances. At the time of purchase,
investments in corporate securities of any one issuer may not exceed 5% of the investment portfolio. At June 30,
2018, more than 5% of the District’s portfolio was invested in Federal Home Loan Bank Discount Notes, and
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Discount Notes. These investments were 31.7%, and 17.9%,
respectively, of the District’s total investments.

4. RECEIVABLES

Receivables are comprised of the following as of June 30, 2018:

Account Amount
Property taxes receivable
General fund $ 5,129,275
Debt service fund 1,992,348
Total property taxes receivable 7,121,623
Grants receivable
Other governmental funds 5,112,387
Total grants receivable 5,112,387
Interest and other receivables
General fund 3,889,728
Debt service fund 162,803
Capital projects fund 3,383,170
Other governmental funds 320,306
Internal service funds 19,781
Total interest and other receivables 7,775,788
Total receivables S 20,009,798
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5. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2018 is as follows:

Due from
Other Funds

S 2,296,860
1,348,058

266,542

Due to
Other Funds

General fund S 1,500,126
Debt service fund -
Capital projects fund 3,484
Other governmental funds 2,406,781
Internal service funds 1,069

Total S 3,911,460

$ 3,911,460

Thereis a $2,296,860 interfund balance in the General Fund to fund reimbursable expenditures in the Grant Fund.
The remaining $1,614,600 interfund balances between funds are the result of payroll accruals at year-end.

6. INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2018 are as follows:

Transfer In
General fund S 1,919,285
Debt service fund 1,304,800
Capital projects fund -
Other governmental funds 4,820
Total S 3,228,905

Transfer Out
S 2,088,979
1,135,106
4,820
S 3,228,905

Transfers were made from the Capital Projects Funds to the Debt Service Fund totaling $1,135,106 and from the
General Fund to the Debt Service Fund totaling $169,694 to pay principal and interest payments on the full faith
and credit obligations. Within the General Fund, transfers totaling $1,919,285 were made between the sub-
funds, with funds going into the Long-term Planning Fund. A transfer was made from the Food Service Fund to

the Special Purpose Fund totaling $4,820 for volunteer donations.

7. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The General Fund is the primary fund where the compensated absences liability is liquidated. Activity for
compensated absences for the year ended June 30, 2018, all of which are considered due within one year, as

follows:

Balance Balance
June 30, 2017 Additions Reductions June 30,2018
Compensated Absences S 3,327,889 S 7,384,827 S (4,979,939) $ 5,732,777
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8. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets activity for the year was as follows:

Balance Balance
June 30,2017 Additions Reductions June 30,2018
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land S 63,208,802 S 8,240,944 S - S 71,449,746
Construction in progress 232,844,377 40,552,751 (226,631,621) 46,765,507
Total capital assets not being
depreciated 296,053,179 48,793,695 (226,631,621) 118,215,253
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 764,757,443 276,925,443 (4,565,522) 1,037,117,364
Vehicles and equipment 46,545,833 8,015,950 (3,311,183) 51,250,600
Total capital assets being depreciated 811,303,276 284,941,393 (7,876,705) 1,088,367,964
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (243,387,869) (22,203,629) 2,607,042 (262,984,456)
Vehicles and equipment (24,431,449) (4,453,518) 3,050,486 (25,834,481)
Total accumulated depreciation (267,819,318) (26,657,147) 5,657,528 (288,818,937)
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 543,483,958 258,284,246 (2,219,177) 799,549,027
Total capital assets, net $ 839,537,137 $307,077,941 $(228,850,798) S 917,764,280

Depreciation expense for the year was charged to the following programs:

Regular programs S 13,215,158
Special programs 4,255,984
Summer school programs 89,310
Student support services 2,196,315
Instructional staffsupport 959,854
General administration support 105,399
School administration 1,921,020
Business support services 2,358,677
Central activities support 1,115,303
Food services 440,046
Community services 81

$ 26,657,147

9. CAPITAL LEASES

The District entered into a master lease purchase agreement as lessee for financing the acquisition of teacher
computers that qualifies as a capital lease for accounting purposes and, therefore, has been recorded at the net
present value of their future minimum lease payments as of the inception date. The computers had a cost of
$3.4 million with an annual payment of $873,366. Since the computers did not reach the thresholds for
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capitalization, no capital assets or depreciation was recorded. The capital lease obligations were paid from the
General Fund.

The District also entered into a master equity lease agreement as lessee for financing the acquisition of vehicles.
The first set of vehicles were delivered in 2017-18 with a total cost of approximately $976,000 and were
capitalized over the life of the lease. The capital lease obligations were paid from the General Fund. As of June
30, 2018, the second set of vehicles had been ordered but not delivered to the District under this agreement,
therefore, no accounting entries were recorded.

Future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments are as follows:

Fiscal Year
EndingJune 30, Principal Interest Total
2019 $ 1,007,620 S 63,234 $ 1,070,854
2020 1,023,428 47,426 1,070,854
2021 166,376 31,112 197,488
2022 175,360 22,127 197,487
2023 234,408 12,025 246,433

S 2,607,192 S 175,924 S 2,783,116

10. LONG-TERM DEBT

Bonds Payable

General Obligation Bonds

The District issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital
facilities. General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the government.
These bonds generally are issued as 20-year serial bonds with equal amounts of principal maturing each year.

On April 2, 2009, the District issued $42,810,000 in General Obligation Bonds, Series 2009 to finance the second
phase of capital construction and improvements related to the $195 million bond measure passed by voters on
November 7, 2006. Interest rates on the bonds ranged from 3.00% to 5.00%, payable semiannually in June and
December. Final maturity occurred in June 2018.

On August 25, 2011, the District issued $42,175,000 in General Obligation Bonds, Series 2011 to refund Series
2001 Bonds, Series 2002 Bonds, and Series 2003 Bonds and obtain a savings in total debt service requirement.
Interest rates on the bonds range from 2.00% to 5.00%, payable semiannually in June and December. Principal
is paid annually in June, with a final maturity in June 2023. The Series 2011 Bonds maturing on or after June 15,
2022 are subject to redemption prior to maturity at a price of par plus accrued interest on or after June 15, 2021.

On December 11, 2012, the District issued $33,075,000 in General Obligation Bonds, Series 2012A and
$126,325,000 in General Obligation Bonds, Series 2012B to refund Series 2004A Bonds and Series 2007 Bonds,
and obtain a savings in total debt service requirement. Interest rates on the Series 2012A Bonds range from
0.362% to 1.717%. Interest on the Series 2012B Bonds range from 1.75% to 4.00%. Interest is payable
semiannually in June and December. Principal is paid annually in June, with a final maturity in June 2019 and June
2026 for the Series 2012A Bonds and Series 2012B Bonds respectively. The Series 2012B Bonds maturing on or
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after June 15, 2023 are subject to redemption prior to maturity at a price of par plus accrued interest on or after
June 15, 2022.

On August 7, 2014, the District issued $20,393,784 in General Obligation Bonds, Series 2014A and $361,755,000
in General Obligation Bonds, Series 2014B to finance the first phase of capital construction and improvements
related to the $680 million bond measure passed by voters on May 20, 2014. Interest rates on the Series 2014A
Bonds range from 0.93% to 2.15%. Interest on the Series 2014B Bonds range from 2.00% to 5.00%. Interest is
payable semiannually in June and December. Principal is paid annually in June, with a final maturity in June 2020
and June 2034 for the Series 2014A Bonds and Series 2014B Bonds respectively. The Series 2014B Bonds maturing
on or after June 15, 2025 are subject to redemption prior to maturity at a price of par plus accrued interest on or
after June 15, 2024.

On May 11, 2017, the District issued $38,990,000 in General Obligation Bonds, Series 2017A, $76,483,176 in
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2017B, $32,980,000 in General Obligation Bonds, Series 2017C, and
$149,397,089 in General Obligation Bonds, Series 2017D to finance the second phase of capital construction and
improvements related to the $680 million bond measure passed by voters on May 20, 2014. Principal is paid in
June, with a final maturity in June 2028 for the Series 2017A Bonds, June 2034 for the Series 2017B Bonds, June
2035 for the Series 2017C Bonds, and June 2036 for the Series 2017D Bonds.

The Series 2017A are taxable bonds with interest rates from 1.49% to 3.23%. Interest is payable semiannually in
June and December for the Series 2017A Bonds. The Series 2017A Bonds maturing on June 15, 2028 are subject
to redemption prior to maturity at a price of par plus accrued interest on or after June 15, 2027.

The Series 2017B are deferred interest bonds with interest rates from 3.57% to 4.13%. Interest on the Series
2017B Bonds is payable only at maturity. The Series 2017B Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity at
a price of 100 percent of the accreted par value on the redemption date on or after June 15, 2027.

The Series 2017C are current interest bonds with an interest rate of 5.00%. Interest is payable semiannually in
June and December for the Series 2017C Series Bonds. The Series 2017C Bonds maturing in 2028 and 2035 are
subject to redemption prior to maturity at a price of par plus accrued interest on or after June 15, 2027.

The Series 2017D are convertible deferred interest bonds with an interest rate of 5.00%. The Series 2017D Bonds
will convert into current interest bonds in June 2018, after which interest will be payable semiannually in June
and December. The 2017D Series Bonds maturing in 2035 and 2036 are subject to redemption prior to maturity
at a price of 100 percent of accreted par value plus accrued interest on or after June 15, 2027.

Limited Tax Pension Obligation Bonds

On June 21, 2005 the District participated with thirteen Oregon school districts and two educational service
districts in a pooled issuance of taxable pension obligation bonds to finance the District’s estimated PERS
unfunded actuarial liability. The District issued $189,935,000 in debt as part of a pooled issuance of $475,205,000.
Except for the payment of its pension bond payments and additional charges when due, each school district has
no obligation or liability to any other participating school district’s pension bonds or liabilities to PERS.

Bond proceeds were paid to the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System. An intercept agreement with the
State of Oregon was required as a condition of issuance; therefore, a portion of State School Fund support is
withheld on a monthly basis to repay debt. Funds are accumulated and invested by a trust officer and annual
principal and interest payments are made each June 30, beginning June 2005 and ending June 2028. The bond
interest rates range from 4.11% to 4.76%.
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On February 26, 2015, the District issued $79,220,000 taxable pension obligation bonds to finance District’s
estimated PERS unfunded actuarial liability. The bond proceeds were paid to the Oregon Public Employees
Retirement System. No intercept agreement exists for the bonds issued in 2015. Annual principal and interest
payments are made each June 30, beginning in June 2015 and ending June 2034. The bond interest rates range
from 0.35% to 4.06%.

Full Faith and Credit Obligation Bonds

On March 19, 2009, the District issued $22,650,000 full faith and credit obligation bonds to provide funds for the
construction of the Transportation Service Center, an option school auditorium, bus particulate traps and an
option school remodel. Interest rates on the bonds range from 2.50% to 5.13% with a final maturity date of June
1, 2036.

On April 27, 2016, the District issued $16,260,000 full faith and credit obligation bonds, placing the proceeds of

new bonds in irrevocable trusts to provide for all future debt service payments on the old obligations. Interest
rates on the 2016 bonds range from 2.00% to 4.00% with a final maturity date of June 1, 2036.

Debt Activity

Long-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows:

Balance Balance Due Within
June 30, 2017 Additions Reductions June 30, 2018 One Year
Governmental activities:
Bonds payable:
General obligation bonds S 832,134,613 S - $31,164,513 $ 800,970,100 $25,534,593
Pension obligation bonds 215,470,000 - 11,730,000 203,740,000 12,500,000
Full faith & credit obligations 18,115,000 - 660,000 17,455,000 690,000
Unamortized premium 101,872,076 - 7,035,945 94,836,131 6,850,799
Total bonds payable, net $1,167,591,689 S - $50,590,458 $1,117,001,231

Payments on the general obligation bonds are made by the Debt Service Fund from property taxes and earnings
on investments. Payments on pension bonds are made by the Debt Service Fund from revenue from charges to
other funds. The payments on the full faith and credit obligation bonds are made by the General Fund and Capital
Projects Fund. Federal arbitrage restrictions apply to substantially all debt.
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The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions of governmental activities for the year ended June 30,

2018:
Principal
Outstandingat Outstandingat Interest
Issue Date Original Issue June 30,2017 Additions Reductions June 30, 2018 Rates
General Obligation Bonds:
April2,2009 $ 42,810,000 $§ 12,725,000 $ - $ 12,725,000 S - 3.0-5.0%
August 25,2011 42,175,000 21,125,000 - 3,120,000 18,005,000 2.0-5.0%
December 11,2012 33,075,000 3,245,000 - 1,615,000 1,630,000 0.4-1.7%
December 11,2012 126,325,000 118,350,000 - 7,045,000 111,305,000 1.8-4.0%
August 7,2014 20,393,784 19,069,348 - 6,659,513 12,409,835 0.9-2.2%
August 7,2014 361,755,000 359,770,000 - - 359,770,000 2.0-5.0%
May 11, 2017 38,990,000 38,990,000 - - 38,990,000 1.5-3.2%
May 11,2017 76,483,176 76,483,176 - - 76,483,176 3.6-4.1%
May 11,2017 32,980,000 32,980,000 - - 32,980,000 5.0%
May 11,2017 149,397,089 149,397,089 - - 149,397,089 5.0%
832,134,613 - 31,164,513 800,970,100
Limited Tax Pension Obligation Bonds:
June 21,2005 189,935,000 144,360,000 - 8,065,000 136,295,000 4.1-4.8%
February 26,2015 79,220,000 71,110,000 - 3,665,000 67,445,000 0.4-4.1%
215,470,000 - 11,730,000 203,740,000
Eull Faith and Credit Obligation Bonds:
March 19, 2009 22,650,000 1,905,000 - 610,000 1,295,000 2.5-5.1%
April 27,2016 16,260,000 16,210,000 - 50,000 16,160,000 2.0-4.0%
18,115,000 - 660,000 17,455,000
Total General Obligation and Pension
Bonds: 1,065,719,613 - 43,554,513 1,022,165,100
Unamortized Premium 101,872,076 - 7,035,945 94,836,131
Total $1,167,591,689 S - $ 50,590,458 $1,117,001,231
Debt Maturities
Future bond maturities are as follows:
Fiscal Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2019 S 38,724,593 S 44,174,895 S 82,899,488
2020 43,160,242 42,301,557 85,461,799
2021 47,635,000 40,471,591 88,106,591
2022 52,345,000 38,427,933 90,772,933
2023 50,065,000 36,147,683 86,212,683
2024-2028 315,556,304 144,358,925 459,915,229
2029-2033 272,182,412 126,230,689 398,413,101
2034-2038 202,496,549 39,256,888 241,753,437

$ 1,022,165,100 $ 511,370,161 $ 1,533,535,261
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Debt Defeased

In April 27, 2016, the District issued $16,260,000 full faith and credit obligation bonds with interest rates ranging
between 2.00% and 4.00%. The District issued the bonds to advance refund $15,880,000 of the outstanding
series 2009 full faith and credit obligation bonds with interest rates ranging between 4.625% and 5.125%. The
District used the net proceeds along with other resources to purchase U.S. government securities. These
securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service on the refunded portion of
the 2009 series bonds. As a result, the 2009 series bonds are considered defeased, and the District has removed
the liability from its accounts. The trust account assets and the liabilities for the defeased obligations are not
included in the District's basic financial statements. At June 30, 2018, the outstanding principal of the defeased
bonds is $15,880,000.

The advance refunding reduced total debt service payments over the life of the issue by nearly $2.7 million. This

resulted in an economic gain (the difference between the present value of the debt service payments on the old
and new debt) of $2.2 million.

11. EARLY RETIREMENT SUPPLEMENT PROGRAM

Early Retirement Plan 2004

Plan description — The District maintained a single-employer early retirement supplement program for its
employees. This program covered all full-time certified, classified and eligible administrative personnel of the
District who qualified prior to June 30, 2004, when the program was closed. The District does not issue a stand-
alone report for this plan. This program was established under separate collective bargaining agreements and
provide provisions for early retirement after 30 years of service or age 58 with at least 10 years of continuous
District service immediately preceding retirement. For eligible administrators, this optional early retirement
program provided the employee with medical benefits until age 62.

Summary of significant accounting policies — The plan is accounted for in the Pension Fund. The District’s
contributions are recognized when due and a formal commitment to provide the contributions has been made.
Plan investments are a part of the District’s investment pool, reported at fair value. Benefits and refunds in the
Pension Fund are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plans. The program
completed in 2017-18 and remaining funds will be transferred back to the General Fund in 2018-19.

Funding policy — The benefits from this sunsetted program were fully paid by the District and, consequently, no
contributions by employees were required. The District fully funded the obligation in the Pension Fund, which
also accounted for the resources and payments of post-employment health care benefits for early retirees. The
available committed balance of the Pension Fund at June 30, 2018 is $61,970. All commitments and obligations
have been completed, and the District's total remaining estimated liability for the plan is zero. The remaining
funds will be transferred to the General Fund in 2018-19.

Contributions — Contributions were financed by a transfer from the General Fund. A transfer to the Pension Fund
of $500,000 was made in fiscal year 2014 to fully fund this program as well as an additional single-employer early
retirement supplement program from 2012. There were also transfers of $750,000 and $1,050,000 in fiscal years
2013 and 2012, respectively, to fund both programs. Expenditures were recorded in the Pension Fund on the
pay-as-you-go basis. The cost of these benefits for the Plan 2004 in fiscal years 2018, 2017, and 2016 was $9,830,
$39,736, and $38,011 respectively.
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Program membership for Plan 2004 consisted of 183 retirees receiving benefits at July 1, 2006, the date of the
last actuarial valuation. There were two retirees receiving early retirement supplement benefits in fiscal years
2018, 2017, and 2016.

12. PENSION PLAN

Plan Overview Description

The Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) consists of a single cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit plan. All benefits of the system are established by the legislature pursuant to Oregon Revised
Statute (ORS) Chapters 238 and 238A. Oregon PERS produces an independently audited Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report which can be found at:

http://www.oregon.gov/PERS/pages/financials/Actuarial-Financial-Information.aspx

Tier One / Tier Two Retirement Benefit Plan - ORS Chapter 238

Tier One / Tier Two Retirement Benefit Plan is closed to new members hired on or after August 29, 2003.

Pension Benefits — The PERS retirement allowance is payable monthly for life. It may be selected from 13
retirement benefit options. These options include survivorship benefits and lump-sum refunds. The basic benefit
is based on years of service and final average salary. A percentage (2.0 percent for police and fire employees, and
1.67 percent for general service employees) is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final average
salary. Benefits may also be calculated under either a formula plus annuity (for members who were contributing
before August 21, 1981) or a money match computation if it results in greater benefits.

A member is considered vested and will be eligible at minimum retirement age for a service retirement allowance
if he or she has had a contribution in each of five calendar years or has reached at least 50 years of age before
ceasing employment with a participating employer (age 45 for police and fire members). General service
employees may retire after reaching age 55. Police and fire members are eligible after reaching age 50. Tier One
general service employee benefits are reduced if retirement occurs prior to age 58 with fewer than 30 years of
service. Police and fire member benefits are reduced if retirement occurs prior to age 55 with fewer than 25 years
of service. Tier Two members are eligible for full benefits at age 60. The ORS Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Pension
Plan is closed to new members hired on or after August 29, 2003.

Death Benefits — Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives a lump-sum refund of the
member’s account balance (accumulated contributions and interest). In addition, the beneficiary will receive a
lump-sum payment from employer funds equal to the account balance, provided one or more of the following
conditions are met:

e the member was employed by PERS employer at the time of death,

e the member died within 120 days after termination of PERS covered employment,

e the member died as a result of injury sustained while employed in a PERS-covered job, or

e the member was on an official leave of absence from a PERS-covered job at the time of death.

Disability Benefits — A member with 10 or more years of creditable service who becomes disabled from other

than duty-connected causes may receive a non-duty disability benefit. A disability resulting from a job-incurred
injury or iliness qualifies a member (including PERS judge members) for disability benefits regardless of the length
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of PERS-covered service. Upon qualifying for either a non-duty or duty disability, service time is computed to age
58 (55 for police and fire members) when determining the monthly benefit.

Benefit Changes After Retirement — Members may choose to continue participation in a variable equities
investment account after retiring and may experience annual benefit fluctuations due to changes in the market
value equity investments. Under ORS 238.360 monthly benefits are adjusted annually through cost-of-living
changes. The cap on the COLA will vary based on the amount of the annual benefit.

Oregon Public Service Retirement Plan Pension Defined Pension Program (OPSRP DB) - ORS Chapter 238A

The ORS Chapter 238A Defined Benefit Pension Program provides benefits to members hired on or after August
29, 2003.

Pension Benefits — This portion of OPSRP provides a life pension funded by employer contributions. Benefits are
calculated with the following formula for members who attain normal retirement age:

Police and fire: 1.8 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final average salary. Normal
retirement age for police and fire members is age 60 or age 53 with 25 years of retirement credit. To be classified
as a police and fire member, the individual must have been employed continuously as a police and fire member
for at least five years immediately preceding retirement.

General service: 1.5 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final average salary. Normal
retirement age for general service members is age 65, or age 58 with 30 years of retirement credit.

A member of the OPSRP Pension Program becomes vested on the earliest of the following dates: the date the
member completes 600 hours of service in each of five calendar years, the date the member reaches normal
retirement age, and, if the pension program is terminated, the date on which termination becomes effective.

Death Benefits — Upon the death of a non-retired member, the spouse or other person who is constitutionally
required to be treated in the same manner as the spouse, receives for life 50 percent of the pension that would
otherwise have been paid to the deceased member.

Disability Benefits — A member who has accrued 10 or more years of retirement credits before the member
becomes disabled or a member who becomes disabled due to job-related injury shall receive a disability benefit
of 45 percent of the member’s salary determined as of the last full month of employment before the disability
occurred.

Benefit Changes After Retirement — Under ORS 238A.210 monthly benefits are adjusted annually through cost-
of-living changes. The cap on the COLA will vary based on the amount of the annual benefit.

Contributions

PERS funding policy provides for monthly employer contributions at actuarially determined rates. These
contributions, expressed as a percentage of covered payroll, are intended to accumulate sufficient assets to pay
benefits when due. The funding policy applies to the PERS Defined Benefit Plan and the Other Postemployment
Benefit Plans. Employer contribution rates during the period were based on the December 31, 2015 actuarial
valuation, which became effective July 1, 2017. The state of Oregon and certain schools, community colleges,
and political subdivision have made unfunded actuarial liability payments, and their rates have been reduced.
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Employer contributions for the year ended June 30, 2018 were $37,341,000 excluding amounts to fund employer
specific liabilities. Approximately $20,374,000 was charged for the year ended June 30, 2018 as PERS benefits
expenditures to be used for bond payments as they become due. Approximately $52,758,000 was recognized as
employer pension expense during the reporting period.

At June 30, 2018, the District reported a net pension liability of $328,358,025 for its proportionate share of the
net pension liability. The pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability used
to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2015, rolled
forward to a measurement date of June 30, 2017. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was based
on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected
contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2017, the District’s proportion
was 2.44 percent, which was an increase of 0.20 from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2016.

Deferred Deferred
Outflow of (Inflow) of
Resources Resources Net
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 15,879,534 S -
Changes of assumptions 59,853,810 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
investments 3,382,857 -
Changes in proportionate share 20,887,504 (6,237,107)
Differences between employer contributions and employer's
proportionate share of system contributions 38,611,010 (5,778,504)
Subtotal - Amortized Deferrals 138,614,715 (12,015,611) $ 126,599,104
District contributions subsequent to measurement date 37,341,000 - 37,341,000
Total deferred outflow (inflow) of resources $ 175,955,715 $ (12,015,611)  $ 163,940,104

Amounts reported as deferred outflows or inflows of resources related to pension will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:

Fiscal year
endingJune 30, Amount
2019 S 70,497,138
2020 59,643,515
2021 37,800,250
2022 (5,107,518)
2023 1,106,719
Total S 163,940,104

Allassumptions, methods and plan provisions used in these calculations are described in the Oregon PERS system-
wide GASB 68 reporting summary dated February 20, 2018, which can be found at:

http://www.oregon.gov/pers/emp/pages/GASB.aspx

Oregon PERS produces an independently audited CAFR which can be found at:

http://www.oregon.gov/PERS/pages/financials/Actuarial-Financial-Information.aspx
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Actuarial Valuations

The employer contribution rates effective July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2019, were set using the entry age normal
actuarial cost method. For the Tier One/Tier Two component of the PERS Defined Benefit Plan, this method
produced an employer contribution rate consisting of (1) an amount for normal cost (estimated amount
necessary to finance benefits earned by employees during the current service year), and (2) an amount for the
amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities, which are being amortized over a fixed period with new
unfunded actuarial liabilities being amortized over 20 years.

For the OPSRP Pension Program component of the PERS Defined Benefit Plan, this method produced an employer
rate consisting of (a) an amount for normal cost (the estimated amount necessary to finance benefits earned by
the employees during the current service year), (b) an actuarially determined amount for funding a disability
benefit component, and (c) an amount for the amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities, which are
being amortized over a fixed period with new unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities being amortized over 16 years.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions:

Valuation date December 31, 2015
Measurement date June 30, 2017
Experience Study 2014, published September 2015
Actuarial assumptions:

Inflation rate 2.50 percent

Long-term expected rate of return 7.50 percent

Discount rate 7.50 percent

Projected salary increases 3.50 percent

Cost of living adjustments (COLA) Blend of 2.00% COLA and graded COLA (1.25% / 0.15%) in
accordance with Moro decision; blend based on service.
Mortality Healthy retirees and beneficiaries:

RP-2000 Sex-distinct, generational per Scale BB, with collar
adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation.

Active members:

Mortality rates are a percentage of healthy retiree rates that vary
by group, as described in the valuation.

Disabled retirees:

Mortality rates are a percentage (70% for males, 95% for females)
of the RP-2000 Sex-distinct, generational per Scale BB, disabled
mortality table.

(Source: June 30, 2017 Oregon PERS CAFR; Table 28; page 65)

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of value of reported amounts and assumptions about
the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as
actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Experience
studies are performed as of December 31 of even numbered years. The method and assumptions shown are
based on the 2014 Experience Study which is reviewed for the four-year period ending December 31, 2014.

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50 percent for the Defined
Benefit Pension Plan. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that
contributions from plan members and those of the contributing employers are made at the contractually required
rates, as actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was
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projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the
long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments for the Defined Benefit Pension Plan was applied
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Depletion Date Projection — GASB 67 generally requires that a blended discount rate be used to measure the
Total Pension Liability (the Actuarial Accrued Liability calculated using the Individual Entry Age Normal Cost
Method). The long-term expected return on plan investments may be used to discount liabilities to the extent
that the plan’s Fiduciary Net Position (fair market value of assets) is projected to cover benefit payments and
administrative expenses. A 20-year high quality (AA/Aa or higher) municipal bond rate must be used for periods
where the Fiduciary Net Position is not projected to cover benefit payments and administrative expenses.
Determining the discount rate under GASB 67 will often require that the actuary perform complex projections of
future benefit payments and asset values. GASB 67 (paragraph 43) does allow for alternative evaluations of
projected solvency, if such evaluation can reliably be made. GASB does not contemplate a specific method for
making an alternative evaluation of sufficiency; it is left to professional judgment.

The following circumstances justify an alternative evaluation of sufficiency for Oregon PERS:

e Oregon PERS has a formal written policy to calculate an Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC),
which is articulated in the actuarial valuation report.

e The ADC is based on a closed, layered amortization period, which means that payment of the full ADC
each year will bring the plan to a 100% funded position by the end of the amortization period if future
experience follows assumption.

e GASB 67 specifies that the projections regarding future solvency assume that plan assets earn the
assumed rate of return and there are no future changes in the plan provisions or actuarial methods and
assumptions, which means that the projections would not reflect any adverse future experience which
might impact the plan’s funded position.

Based on these circumstances, the detailed depletion date projections outlined in GASB 67 would clearly indicate
that the Fiduciary Net Position is always projected to be sufficient to cover benefit payments and administrative
expenses.

(Source: June 30, 2017 PERS CAFR; page 66)

Assumed Asset Allocation

Asset Class / Strategy OIC Policy Range Current Year Target
Cash 0.0-3.0% 0.0%

Debt Securities 15.0-25.0% 20.0%
Public Equity 32.5-42.5% 37.5%

Real Estate 9.5-15.5% 12.5%
Private Equity 14.0-21.0% 17.5%
Alternative Equity 0.0-12.5% 12.5%
Opportunity Portfolio 0.0-3.0% 0.0%

Total 100.0 %

(Source: June 30, 2017 Oregon PERS CAFR; page 92)
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Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the long-term expected rate of return assumption, in July 2015
the PERS Board reviewed long-term assumptions developed by both Milliman’s capital market assumptions team
and the Oregon Investment Council’s (OIC) investment advisors. The table below shows Milliman’s assumptions
for each of the asset classes in which the plan was invested at that time based on the OIC long-term target asset
allocation. The OIC’s description of each asset class was used to map the target allocation to the asset classes
shown below. Each asset class assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying assumptions, and includes
adjustment for the inflation assumption. These assumptions are not based on historical returns, but instead are
based on a forward-looking capital market economic model.

(Source: June 30, 2017 Oregon PERS CAFR; page 65-66)

Compound
Annual Annual

Target Arithmetic (Geometric) Standard

Asset Class Allocation Return Return Deviation

Core Fixed Income 8.00 % 410 % 4.00 % 4.68 %
Short-Term Bonds 8.00 3.65 3.61 2.74
Bank/Leveraged Loans 3.00 5.69 5.42 7.82
High Yield Bonds 1.00 6.67 6.20 10.28
Large / Mid Cap US Equities 15.75 7.96 6.70 17.07
Small Cap US Equities 1.31 8.93 6.99 21.35
Micro Cap US Equities 1.31 9.37 7.01 23.72
Developed Foreign Equities 13.13 8.34 6.73 19.40
Emerging Market Equities 4.12 10.56 7.25 28.45
Non-US Small Cap Equities 1.88 9.01 7.22 20.55
Private Equity 17.50 11.60 7.97 30.00
Real Estate (Property) 10.00 6.48 5.84 12.00
Real Estate (REITS) 2.50 8.74 6.69 22.02
Hedge Fund of Funds - Diversified 2.50 4.94 4.64 8.09
Hedge Fund - Event-Driven 0.63 7.07 6.72 8.90
Timber 1.88 6.60 5.85 13.00
Farmland 1.88 7.11 6.37 13.00
Infrastructure 3.75 8.31 7.13 16.50
Commodities 1.88 6.07 4.58 18.40

Assumed Inflation - Mean 2.50 % 1.85 %

(Source: June 30, 2017 Oregon PERS CAFR; Table 34; page 69)

Sensitivity — Sensitivity of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount
rate. The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 7.50 percent, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than
the current rate.

Decrease 1% Current Rate Increase 1%
6.50% 7.50% 8.50%
District's proportionate share of the
net pension liability / (asset) $ 559,582,028 $ 328,358,025 $ 135,011,939
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Additional disclosures related to Oregon PERS not applicable to specific employers are available online at the
below website, or by contacting Oregon PERS at the following address: P.O. Box 23700, Tigard, OR, 97281-3700,

http://www.oregon.gov/pers/Pages/index.aspx

OPSRP Individual Account Program (OPSRP IAP)

Plan Description — ORS Chapter 238A created the Oregon Public Service Retirement Plan (OPSRP), which consists
of the Defined Benefit Pension Program and the Individual Account Program (IAP). Membership includes public
employees hired on or after August 29, 2003. PERS members retain their existing defined benefit plan accounts,
but member contributions are deposited into the member’s IAP account. OPSRP is part of Oregon PERS, and is
administered by the Oregon PERS Board.

Pension Benefits — An IAP member becomes vested on the date the employee account is established or on the
date the rollover account was established. If the employer makes optional employer contributions for a member,
the member becomes vested on the earliest of the following dates: the date the member completes 600 hours
of service in each of five calendar years, the date the member reaches normal retirement age, the date the IAP is
terminated, the date the active member becomes disabled, or the date the active member dies. Upon retirement,
a member of the OPSRP Individual Account Program (IAP) may receive the amounts in his or her employee
account, rollover account, and vested employer account as a lump-sum payment or in equal installments over a
5-, 10-, 15-, 20-year period or an anticipated life span option. Each distribution option has a $200 minimum
distribution limit.

Death Benefits — Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives in a lump sum the member’s
account balance, rollover account balance, and vested employer optional contribution account balance. If a
retired member dies before the installment payments are completed, the beneficiary may receive the remaining
installment payments or choose a lump-sum payment.

Contributions — Employees of the District pay 6 percent of their covered payroll. The District did not make any
optional contributions to member IAP accounts for the year ended June 30, 2018.

13. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

The District offers a postemployment health insurance subsidy and tax shelter annuity, and contributes to a
retirement health insurance account through Oregon Public Employees Retirement System. The breakdown of
the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB are:

Postemployment Postemployment
Health Insurance Health Insurance
Subsidy Account Net
Total OPEB Liablity S 29,531,275 S - S 29,531,275
Total OPEB Asset - 1,017,705 1,017,705
OPEB Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,447,274 1,234,837 2,682,111
OPEB Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,757,494 471,344 2,228,838

Postemployment Health Insurance Subsidy (PHIS)

Plan description — The District operates a single-employer defined benefit plan that provides postemployment
health, dental, vision and life insurance benefits to eligible employees and their spouses. Benefits and eligibility
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for members are established through the collective bargaining agreements and Oregon State law. No assets are
accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB 75. The District’s post-retirement healthcare
plan was established in accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 243.303. ORS stipulate that for the
purpose of establishing healthcare premiums, the rate must be based on all plan members, including both active

employees and retirees.

Benefits Provided — Eligible retirees and their dependents under age 65 are allowed to continue to enroll in the
same health care coverage as offered to active employees. The retiree’s coverage selection is available only upon
retirement although coverage can continue until the retiree’s age 65. The spouse’s coverage is available until the
spouse’s age 65 but also must be selected at the time of retirement. Following the retiree’s death or attainment
of age 65, the retiree’s spouse can continue full coverage until the spouse’s age 65. The retiree or surviving spouse
is responsible for paying the full premium at the applicable tier. The difference between retiree claims costs,
which because of the effect of age is generally higher in comparison to all plan members, and the amount of
retiree healthcare premiums represents the District’s implicit employer subsidy. Eligibility is determined by:

e  For administrators and classified members, the employee must retire with an immediate service or
disability retirement benefit under the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS).

e  For certified members, the employee must retire with an immediate service benefit under OPERS, or be
eligible for a benefit under the District’s Long Term Disability program.

Employees covered by benefit terms — As of June 30, 2018, there are 4,823 active and 189 retired members in

the plan.

Total OPEB Liability

The District’s total OPEB liability of $29,531,275 was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2017,

adjusted to a measurement date of June 30, 2017.

Actuarial assumptions and other inputs

The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement unless otherwise specified:

Valuation date July 1, 2017
Measurement date June 30, 2017
Inflation 2.50%
Projected salary growth 2.75%
Discount rate 3.58%

Withdrawal, retirement, and mortality rates

December 31, 2016 Oregon PERS valuation

Election and lapse rates

50% of eligible employees
42.5% spouse coverage
4% annual lapse rate

Actuarial cost method

Entry Age Normal
Level Percent of Pay
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Demographic Assumptions:

Mortality RP-2014 sex-distinct base tables, as specified below.
Mortality improvement is projected on a generational
basis with the Unisex Social Security Data scale.

Healthy members:

RP-2014 Employee and Healthy Annuitant tables, white
collar with a one year setback

Disabled Retirees:

RP-2014 Disabled Annuitant tables, no collar adjustment
or setback

Male Dependents:

RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant male table 50% blue collar /
50% white collar, set back 12 months

Female Dependents:

RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant female table 50% blue collar /
50% white collar, no set back

Disability Percentage of the 1985 Class 1 Rates: 35% with a 0.18%
cap; Ordinary Disability only; no duty disability assumed

Retirement Based on Oregon PERS assumptions. Annual rates are
based on age, Tier / ORSRP, and duration of service

Discount Rate — Under GASB 75, unfunded plans must use a discount rate that reflects a 20-year tax-exempt
municipal bond yield or index rate. The discount rate in effect for the June 30, 2018 reporting date is 3.58%,
reflecting the Bond Buyer 20-Year General Obligation Bond Index.

Health Care Cost Trend — The actuarial calculations used an assumption that medical costs will increase 5.90% in
the first year, 5.80% in the second year, 6.10% in the third year, and varying from 6.50% to 4.30% over the
remainder of the projection period. These trends are based on a model circulated by the Society of Actuaries
that considers current trends in health care costs, the potential impacts of certain well-defined aspects of the
Affordable Care Act, and long-term constraints on trend such as growth in per capita income. It also assumes
that dental costs will increase by 4.80% in the first year and 4.00% in each future year. First year medical and
dental trends were based on actual changes to July 1, 2018 premiums compare with July 1, 2017 premiums.

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability

Increase (Decrease)
Total OPEB Liability

Balance as of June 30,2017 S 29,993,282

Changes for the year:
Service cost 2,102,068
Interest on total OPEB liability 894,060
Effect of changes to benefit terms -
Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses -
Effect of assumptions changes orinputs (1,998,247)
Benefit payments (1,459,888)

Balance as ofJune 30,2018 S 29,531,275

The effects of assumptions changes or inputs reflect a change in the discount rate from 2.85% in 2017 to 3.58%
in 2018.

58



BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
JUNE 30, 2018

Sensitivity

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the total OPEB liability
of the District for the Postemployment Health Insurance Subsidy, as well as what the total OPEB liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.58%) or 1-percentage-point
higher (4.58%) than the current discount rate:

1% Increase
4.58%
$27,003,231

1% Decrease Current
2.58%

Total OPEB liability $32,301,356

Discount Rate
$29,531,275

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. The following presents the total
OPEB liability of the District for the Postemployment Health Insurance Subsidy, as well as what the total OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using a health care cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower
(4.90% decreasing to 3.30%) or 1-percentage-point higher (6.90% decreasing to 5.30%) than the current trend
rates:

1% Current 1%
Trend Rate Increase
$29,531,275 $33,623,169

Decrease
Total OPEB liability $26,106,053

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized an OPEB expense of $1,308,101 related to the PHIS
OPEB. At June 30, 2018, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred

Outflow of (Inflow) of

Resources Resources Net
Differences between expected and actual experience S - S -
Changes of assumptions or inputs - (1,757,494)
Subtotal - Amortized Deferrals - (1,757,494) S (1,757,494)
District contributions subsequent to measurement date 1,447,274 - 1,447,274
Total deferred outflow (inflow) of resources S 1,447,274 S (1,757,494) S (310,220)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the PHIS OPEB
will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Fiscal year
endedJune 30: Amount

2019 S 1,206,521
2020 (240,753)
2021 (240,753)
2022 (240,753)
2023 (240,753)

Thereafter (553,729)
Total S (310,220)
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Retirement Health Insurance Account (RHIA)

Plan description - As a member of Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS), the District contributes
to the Retirement Health Insurance Account (RHIA) for each of its eligible employees. RHIA is a cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit other postemployment benefit plan administered by OPERS. Oregon Revised
Statute (ORS) 238.420 established this trust fund. Authority to establish and amend the benefit provisions of
RHIA resides with the Oregon Legislature. The plan is closed to new entrants hired on or after August 29, 2003.
OPERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information. That report may be obtained by writing to Oregon Public Employees Retirement System, P.O. Box
23700, Tigard, OR 97281-3700.

Benefits - RHIA pays a $60 monthly contribution toward the cost of Medicare companion health insurance
premiums of eligible retirees.

Contributions - Because RHIA was created by enabling legislation (ORS 238.420), contribution requirements of
the plan members and the participating employers were established and may be amended only by the Oregon
Legislature. ORS require that an amount equal to $60 or the total monthly cost of Medicare companion health
insurance premiums coverage, whichever is less, shall be paid from the Retirement Health Insurance Account
established by the employer, and any monthly cost in excess of $60 shall be paid by the eligible retired member
in the manner provided in ORS 238.410. To be eligible to receive this monthly payment toward the premium cost
the member must: (1) have eight years or more of qualifying service in PERS at the time of retirement or receive
a disability allowance as if the member had eight years or more of creditable service in PERS, (2) receive both
Medicare Parts A and B coverage, and (3) enroll in a PERS-sponsored health plan. A surviving spouse or
dependent of a deceased PERS retiree who was eligible to receive the subsidy is eligible to receive the subsidy if
he or she (1) is receiving a retirement benefit or allowance from PERS or (2) was insured at the time the member
died and the member retired before May 1, 1991.

Participating employers are contractually required to contribute to RHIA at a rate assessed each year by OPERS,
currently 0.50% of Tier 1 and Tier 2 payroll and 0.43% of OPSRP of annual covered payroll. The OPERS Board of
Trustees sets the employer contribution rate based on the annual required contribution (ARC) of the employers,
an amount actuarially determined. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is
projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) of
the plan over a period not to exceed thirty years. The District's contributions to RHIA for the years ended June
30, 2018, 2017, and 2016, were approximately $1,225,000, $1,216,000, and $1,162,000 which equaled the
required contributions each year.

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to OPEB

At June 30, 2018, the District reported an asset of $1,017,705 for its proportionate share of the net OPEB liability.
The net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net
OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2015, rolled forward to the
measurement date. The District’s proportion of the net OPEB liability was based on the District’s actual, legally
required contributions made during the fiscal year being compared to the total actual contributions made in the
fiscal year by all employers. The District’s proportionate share as of the measurement date is 2.43854589%,
changed from 2.38890380% for the prior measurement date.

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized OPEB expense reduction of ($1,213,935) related to the

RHIA OPEB. At June 30, 2018, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to the RHIA OPEB from the following sources:

60



BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

JUNE 30, 2018

Deferred Deferred

Outflow of (Inflow) of

Resources Resources Net
Differences between expected and actual experience S - S -
Changes of assumptions - -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
investments - (471,344)
Changes in proportionate share 9,837 -
Differences between employer contributions and employer's
proportionate share of system contributions - -
Subtotal - Amortized Deferrals 9,837 (471,344) S (461,507)
District contributions subsequent to measurement date 1,225,000 - 1,225,000
Total deferred outflow (inflow) of resources S 1,234,837 S  (471,344) S 763,493

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the RHIA OPEB
will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Fiscal year
endingJune 30, Amount
2018 $ 1,110,808
2019 (114,192)
2020 (115,287)
2021 (117,836)
Total S 763,493

Actuarial assumptions and other inputs

The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement unless otherwise specified:

Valuation date December 31, 2015
Measurement date June 30, 2017
Experience Study 2014, published September 23, 2015
Actuarial assumptions:
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal
Inflation rate 2.50%
Long-term expected rate of return 7.50%
Discount rate 7.50%
Projected salary increases 3.50%
Retiree healthcare participation Healthy retirees: 38%
Disabled retirees: 20%
Healthcare cost trend rate Not applicable. Statute stipulates $60 monthly payment
for healthcare insurance.

(Source: June 30, 2017 Oregon PERS CAFR; Table 31; page 68)
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Mortality Healthy retirees and beneficiaries:

RP-2000 Sex-distinct, generational per Scale BB, with
collar adjustments and set-backs as described in the
valuation.

Active members:

Mortality rates are a percentage of healthy retiree rates
that vary by group, as described in the valuation.
Disabled retirees:

Mortality rates are a percentage (70% for males, 95% for
females) of the RP-2000 Sex-distinct, generational per
Scale BB, disabled mortality table.

(Source: June 30, 2017 Oregon PERS CAFR; Table 31, page 68)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability at June 30, 2017 was 7.50 percent. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from contributing employers are
made at the contractually required rates, as actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the RHIA plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments for the RHIA plan was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the long-term expected rate of return assumption, in July 2015
the PERS Board reviewed long-term assumptions developed by both Milliman’s capital market assumptions team
and the Oregon Investment Council’s (OIC) investment advisors. Each asset class assumption is based on a
consistent set of underlying assumptions and includes adjustment for the inflation assumption. These
assumptions are not based on historical returns, but instead are based on a forward-looking capital market
economic model. For more information on the long-term expected rate of return for each major asset class,
calculated using both the arithmetic and geometric means, see the breakdown in Footnote 12.

(Source: June 30, 2017 Oregon PERS CAFR; page 67)
Sensitivity Analysis

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the total OPEB liability
of the District for the Retirement Health Insurance Account, as well as what the total OPEB liability would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.50%) or 1-percentage-point higher
(8.50%) than the current discount rate:

Increase 1%
8.50%
(2,003,990)

Current Rate
7.50%
(1,017,705) S

Decrease 1%
6.50%
141,866 S

District's net OPEB liablity (asset) S

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. The total OPEB liability of the
District for the Postemployment Health Insurance Subsidy is (51,017,705). The ORS stipulates a $60 monthly
payment, so there would be no change to the total OPEB liability if it were calculated using health care cost trend
rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current rates.

62



BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
JUNE 30, 2018

Changes Subsequent to Measurement Date

The PERS Board lowered the Assumed Rate of Return from 7.50% to 7.20% on July 28, 2017. This change is
effective January 1, 2018 and will change the net OPEB liability (asset) in future periods.

14. RiISK MANAGEMENT

Self-Insurance

Internal Service Funds (Insurance Reserve and Workers' Compensation Funds) account for the costs incurred for
workers' compensation claims, general liability claims, and property and fire losses.

The District provides currently for estimated losses to be incurred from pending claims and for claims incurred
but not reported (IBNR). IBNR claims are claims that are incurred through the end of the fiscal year, but not
reported until after that date. These liabilities are based on actuarial valuations or District estimates.

The District is self-insured for costs up to policy deductible limits as follows:

e  General Liability and School Board errors and omissions — $500,000 per occurrence

e  Fire loss, property damage, all risk (theft, vandalism, etc.) — $500,000 per occurrence

e  Workers' compensation claims — $400,000 per claim

e Long-term disability claims — payment of all claims for the first fifty-one months of disability for eligible
administrator and classified staff. Eligible certified staff are fully insured for disability claims.

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft or damage to and destruction of assets, errors
and omissions, and natural disasters for which the District carries commercial insurance. The District does not
engage in risk financing activities where the risk is greater than the self-insurance amounts. Settlements have
not exceeded insurance coverage for the years ended June 30, 2018, 2017, and 2016. The District has one
settlement in 2018-19 that will exceed the insurance coverage and has accrued an expenditure up to the policy
deductible limit in association with it. There have also been no reductions to the District’s insurance coverage
during the year. The District anticipates that all accrued claims losses will be paid within twelve months.

Changes in the balances of claims liabilities at the end of the year are as follows:

2018 2017 2016
Accrued claims losses, July 1 S 2,631,000 $ 2,520,000 $ 1,942,000
Incurred claims, includingan estimate of claims
incurred but not reported (IBNR) 2,308,199 1,610,516 2,473,543
Claims payments (2,249,199) (1,499,516) (1,895,543)
Accrued claim losses, June 30 S 2,690,000 S 2,631,000 $ 2,520,000

15. ScHOOL FUNDING

The District is dependent on the State of Oregon for a substantial portion of its operating funds. Due to funding
fluctuations at the State level, future funding for school districts is impacted by the economic growth statewide.
The ultimate effect of this on the District's future operations is not yet determinable.
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The largest segment is determined by the State School Fund formula, with the majority of funding provided by
the State to the District based on the District’s average daily membership of students (ADMr). The State gives
additional weightings for certain categories of individuals including students in poverty, students in ESL programs,
and students on Individual Education Plans. The State then proportions the State School Fund based on the
resulting weighted average daily membership (ADMw) of the District compared that of the State. For 2017-18,
the District had an estimated ADMw of 48,419.61 within the State estimated ADMw of 706,126. For 2016-17,
these were 48,743.17 and 707,042, respectively.

16. TAX ABATEMENTS

Washington County Tax Abatements

The District’s property tax revenues were reduced by approximately $317,000 under agreements entered into by
Washington County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.

17. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by these agencies,
principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute
a liability of the District. The amount, if any, of costs which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be
determined at this time, although District management expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

The District is committed under various accepted bid agreements and contracts for approximately $75.4 million
for goods, services, and construction of facilities, as follows:

General fund S 3,347,014
Capital projects fund 70,854,545
Other governmental funds 1,000,538
Internal service funds 224,167

Total S 75,426,264

The District, in the regular course of business, is named as a defendant in various lawsuits. The likely outcome of
these lawsuits is not presently determinable.

18. NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS IMPLEMENTED

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the District implemented the following new accounting standards:

GASB Statement No. 75 “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions.” The statement establishes accounting and financial reporting requirements related to other
postemployment benefits (OPEB), replacing GASB Statements No. 45 and No. 57. The statement is effective
for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017. The District restated the prior year net position to reduce net
position by $9,793,177 as a result of implementing this statement. Additional details are shown in Footnote
19.
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GASB Statement No. 81 “Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements.” This Statement requires that a government
that receives resources pursuant to an irrevocable split-interest agreement recognize assets, liabilities, and
deferred inflows of resources at the inception of the agreement. Furthermore, this Statement requires that a
government recognize assets representing its beneficial interests in irrevocable split-interest agreements that
are administered by a third party, if the government controls the present service capacity of the beneficial
interests. The statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016. The District
anticipates no financial impact as a result of implementing this statement.

GASB Statement No. 85 “Omnibus 2017.” This Statement addresses practice issues identified during
implementation of other GASB Statements, including blending component units, goodwill, fair value
measurement and application, and postemployment benefits. The statement is effective for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2017. The District anticipates no financial impact as a result of implementing this
statement.

GASB Statement No. 86 “Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues.” This Statement addresses the accounting and
financial reporting for in-substance defeasement of debt where existing resources are placed in an irrevocable
trust for the sole purpose of extinguishing debt. The statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after
June 15, 2017. The District anticipates no financial impact as a result of implementing this statement.

19. RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEAR NET POSITION

Due to the implementation of GASB 75 a restatement of the prior year net position was required to remove the
other postemployment benefit obligation liability, record the total OPEB liability, and record the deferred
outflows associated with contributions.

The total restatement is as follows:

Net Position -July 1, 2017 as originally reported S 11,636,534
Removal of Other postemployment benefit obligation S 18,172,954
Addition of Total OPEB liability (30,642,019)
Addition of OPEB deferred outflows 2,675,888
Total restatement (9,793,177)
Net Position-July 1,2017 as restated S 1,843,357

The breakdown of the total OPEB liability and the OPEB deferred outflows is as follows:

PHIS RHIA Total
Total OPEB liability S 29,993,282 S 648,737 S 30,642,019
OPEB deferred outflows 1,459,888 1,216,000 2,675,888

20. NEW PRONOUNCEMENTS

The District will implement new GASB pronouncements no later than the required fiscal year. Management has
not determined the effect on the financial statements from implementing any of the following pronouncements.

GASB Statement No. 83 “Certain Asset Retirement Obligations.” This Statement establishes criteria for
determining the timing and pattern or recognition of a liability and a corresponding deferred outflow of

65



BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
JUNE 30, 2018

resources for asset retirement obligations. The statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15,
2018.

GASB Statement No. 84 “Fiduciary Activities.” This Statement establishes criteria and guidance for identifying
fiduciary activities of all state and local governments for accounting and financial reporting purposes, as well
as the reporting requirements for these fiduciary funds. The statement is effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2018.

GASB Statement No. 87 “Leases.” This Statement addresses the accounting and financial reporting for leases
by governments, requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that were previously
classified as operating leases. The statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019.

GASB Statement No. 88 “Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings and Direct
Placements.” This Statement addresses the definition of debt and specifies required essential information
related to debt for disclosure in the notes to the financial statements. The statement is effective for fiscal
years beginning after June 15, 2018.

GASB Statement No. 89 “Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period.” This
Statement establishes the accounting requirements for interest costs incurred before the end of a
construction period, which previously were included in the historical cost of a capital asset. The statement is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019.

GASB Statement No. 90 “Majority Equity Interest — An Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 61.”
This Statement defines the majority equity interest and specifies the treatment of majority equity interest in
a legally separate organization, either as an investment or as a component unit based on the factors. The
statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018.
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY FOR PERS
JUNE 30, 2018

Plan fiduciary

Employer's Employer's NPLas a net position as
Year proportion of proportionate share percentage a percentage of
Ended the net pension of the net pension Covered of covered the total pension
June 30, liability (NPL) liability (NPL) * payroll 2 payroll liability
2018 2.44% S 328,358,025 S 266,160,397 123.4% 83.1%
2017° 2.24% 336,425,374 243,813,517 138.0% 80.5%
2016 * 2.05% 117,982,257 219,944,988 53.6% 91.9%
2015° 2.72% (61,675,451) 200,544,298 -30.8% 103.6%
2014 2.72% 138,852,440 187,686,710 74.0% 92.0%

BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS FOR PERS
JUNE 30, 2018

Contributions in Contributions
Year Statutorily relation to the Contribution as a percent
Ended required statutorily required deficiency Covered of covered

June 30, contribution contribution (excess) payroll payroll

2018 S 37,341,000 S 37,341,000 S - S 281,109,676 13.3%
2017 21,355,242 21,355,242 - 266,160,397 8.0%
2016 20,427,165 20,427,165 - 243,813,517 8.4%
2015 29,448,081 29,448,081 - 219,944,988 13.4%
2014 28,332,951 28,332,951 - 200,544,298 14.1%

Notes:

These schedules are required to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend has been compiled, information is
presented only for the years for which the required supplementary information is available.

! The amounts presented for each fiscal year were actuarially determined at December 31 and rolled forward to the measurment date.
2 Amounts for covered payroll use the prior year's data to match the measurement date used by the pension plan for each fiscal year.
3 The June 30, 2015 NPL reflects benefit changes from the Senate Bills 822 and 861.

“The June 30, 2016 NPL reflects benefit changes from the Oregon Supreme Court's ruling in Moro v. State of Oregon, which overturned
portions of Senate Bills 822 and 861.

> The June 30, 2017 NPL reflects assumption changes reducing inflation rate from 2.75% to 2.50%, the long-term expected rate of return
from 7.75% to 7.50%, the discount rate from 7.75% to 7.50% and the projected salary increases from 3.75% to 3.50%.
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NOLas a Plan fiduciary
District's District's District's percentage net position as
Year proportion of proportionate share covered- of covered- a percentage of
Ended the net OPEB of the net OPEB employee employee the total OPEB
June 30, liability liability (NOL) ! payroll 2 payroll liability
2018 2.44% (1,017,705) S 266,160,397 -0.4% 108.9%
2017 2.39% 648,737 243,813,517 0.3% 94.1%
BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS FOR RHIA
JUNE 30, 2018
Contributions in Contributions
Year Statutorily relation to the Contribution as a percent
Ended required statutorily required deficiency Covered of covered
June 30, contribution contribution (excess) payroll payroll
2018 S 1,225,000 S 1,225,000 S - S 281,109,676 0.4%
2017 1,216,000 1,216,000 - 266,160,397 0.5%
Notes:

These schedules are required to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend has been compiled, information is
presented only for the years for which the required supplementary information is available.

! The amounts presented for each fiscal year were actuarially determined at December 31 and rolled forward to the measurment date.

2 Amounts for covered payroll use the prior year's data to match the measurement date used by the pension plan for each fiscal year.
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY - PHIS
JUNE 30, 2018

(DOLLAR AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

Difference Changes of Net change
Year Change of between assumptions in total
Ended Service Benefit expected and or other Benefit OPEB
June 30, Cost Interest Terms actual results inputs payments liablity
2018 S 2,102 S 894 S - S - S (1,998) S (1,460) S (462)

BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS - PHIS
JUNE 30, 2018

(DOLLAR AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

Total OPEB
Total Net change Total liability as
Year OPEB in total OPEB percentage of
Ended liabilty OPEB liabilty Covered covered Discount
June 30, beginning liablity ending payroll 2 payroll Rate
2018 S 29,993 S (462) S 29,531 S 266,160 11.1% 3.58%
2017 - - 29,993 243,814 12.3% 2.85%

Notes:

These schedules are required to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend has been compiled, information is

presented only for the years for which the required supplementary information is available.

Changes of assumptions. Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect the effects of changes to the discount rate each period.
! The amounts presented for each fiscal year were actuarially determined at July 1 of odd years and rolled forward to the measurment

date.

2 Amounts for covered payroll use the prior year's data to match the measurement date used by the pension plan for each fiscal year.
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETARY TO REPORTING FUNDS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (GAAP BASIS)

GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

REVENUES:
Property taxes
Local option levy
State and local sources
Charges for services
Rentals
Investment earnings
Contributions and donations
Recovery of prior years' expenditures
Other

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Instruction
Support services
Facilities acquisition and construction
Debt service:
Principal
Interest

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Proceeds from capital leases

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2017

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2018

Budgetary Funds Total
General Long-Term (reported as

Fund Pension Planning General Fund)
130,772,599 $ - $ - 130,772,599
31,005,163 - - 31,005,163
277,208,985 - - 277,208,985
2,636,964 - 348,175 2,985,139
904,652 - - 904,652
1,455,919 763 29,657 1,486,339
38,813 - - 38,813
229,367 - - 229,367
1,128,550 - - 1,128,550
445,381,012 763 377,832 445,759,607
290,977,430 - - 290,977,430
160,523,013 9,830 1,211,886 161,744,729
76,818 - 7,972 84,790
942,547 - - 942,547
75,842 - - 75,842
452,595,650 9,830 1,219,858 453,825,338
(7,214,638) (9,067) (842,026) (8,065,731)
- - 1,919,285 1,919,285
(2,088,979) - - (2,088,979)
976,104 - - 976,104
(1,112,875) - 1,919,285 806,410
(8,327,513) (9,067) 1,077,259 (7,259,321)
37,945,300 71,037 21,755,010 59,771,347
29,617,787 S 61,970 S 22,832,269 52,512,026
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

REVENUES:
Property taxes
Local option levy
State and local sources
Charges for services
Rentals
Investment earnings
Contributions and donations
Recovery of prior years' expenditures
Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Instruction
Support services
Facilities acquisition and construction
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Contingencies

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers out
Proceeds from capital leases

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2017

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2018

Note: GAAP serves as the basis of budgeting.

Budget Variance with
Adopted Final Actual Final Budget

130,460,000 S 130,460,000 130,772,599 S 312,599
30,000,000 30,600,000 31,005,163 405,163
267,183,157 278,383,157 277,208,985 (1,174,172)
3,055,000 3,055,000 2,636,964 (418,036)
722,000 722,000 904,652 182,652
600,000 1,000,000 1,455,919 455,919

- - 38,813 38,813

50,000 50,000 229,367 179,367
1,100,000 1,100,000 1,128,550 28,550
433,170,157 445,370,157 445,381,012 10,855
282,746,091 291,466,091 290,977,430 488,661
158,712,718 163,712,718 160,523,013 3,189,705
2,800,000 2,800,000 76,818 2,723,182

- 1,250,000 942,547 307,453

- 250,000 75,842 174,158
23,564,237 23,944,237 - 23,944,237
467,823,046 483,423,046 452,595,650 30,827,396
(34,652,889) (38,052,889) (7,214,638) 30,838,251
(3,461,694) (2,161,694) (2,088,979) 72,715

- 1,500,000 976,104 (523,896)
(3,461,694) (661,694) (1,112,875) (451,181)
(38,114,583) (38,714,583) (8,327,513) 30,387,070
38,114,583 38,714,583 37,945,300 (769,283)
- $ - 29,617,787 S 29,617,787
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

75



ip’] BEAVERTON

W 4 SCHOOL DISTRICT



BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
DEBT SERVICE FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

REVENUES:
Property taxes
Investment earnings
Services to other funds

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Debt service:
Principal

Interest

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2017

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2018

Budget Variance with

Adopted Final Actual Final Budget
58,558,709 S 58,558,709 ¢ 58,897,201 S 338,492
70,000 70,000 470,989 400,989
19,494,964 19,494,964 20,374,626 879,662
78,123,673 78,123,673 79,742,816 1,619,143

43,554,513 43,554,513 43,554,513 -
37,453,960 37,453,960 37,450,611 3,349
81,008,473 81,008,473 81,005,124 3,349
(2,884,800) (2,884,800) (1,262,308) 1,622,492

1,304,800 1,304,800 1,304,800 -

1,304,800 1,304,800 1,304,800 -
(1,580,000) (1,580,000) 42,492 1,622,492
1,580,000 1,580,000 2,157,097 577,097
- $ - S 2,199,589 S 2,199,589
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Budget Variance with
Adopted Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Construction excise tax S 3,690,000 S 3,690,000 S 3,217,459 S (472,541)
Rentals 35,000 35,000 26,730 (8,270)
Investment earnings 3,526,000 3,526,000 2,801,327 (724,673)
Contributions and donations 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,149,002 (350,998)
Recovery of prior years' expenditures - - 4,773,963 4,773,963
Other 2,500,000 2,500,000 472,169 (2,027,831)
Total revenues 12,251,000 12,251,000 13,440,650 1,189,650
EXPENDITURES:
Support services 5,531,686 5,531,686 2,243,151 3,288,535
Facilities acquisition and construction 346,259,690 346,259,690 100,690,912 245,568,778
Contingencies 52,129,518 52,129,518 - 52,129,518
Total expenditures 403,920,894 403,920,894 102,934,063 300,986,831
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (391,669,894) (391,669,894) (89,493,413) 302,176,481
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Sale of or compensation for loss of capital
assets - - 277,750 277,750
Transfers out (1,135,106) (1,135,106) (1,135,106) -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (1,135,106) (1,135,106) (857,356) 277,750
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (392,805,000) (392,805,000) (90,350,769) 302,454,231
FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2017 392,805,000 392,805,000 386,914,587 (5,890,413)
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2018 S - S - S 296,563,818 S 296,563,818
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GENERAL FUND

These funds account for the accumulation of resources for particular activities or functions
from designated sources. Funds included in this category combine into the General Fund in
the combined basic financial statements and are:

General Fund — accounts for the basic financial operations of the District.

Pension Fund — accounts for the accumulation of resources to be used for payments
to employees who earned supplemental early retirement stipends and post-
employment health care benefits. Resources are contributed by the District's
General Fund at actuarially determined amounts. These are special revenue funds
in control of the District and not held in trust.

Long-Term Planning Fund — accounts for funds for capital equipment replacement

and sustainability. Principal resources are transfers from other funds and state
grants.
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
PENSION FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

REVENUES:
Investment earnings

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Support services

Contingencies

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2017

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2018

Budget Variance with
Adopted Final Actual Final Budget
- - 763 S 763
- - 763 763
25,000 25,000 9,830 15,170
50,000 50,000 - 50,000
75,000 75,000 9,830 65,170
(75,000) (75,000) (9,067) 65,933
(75,000) (75,000) (9,067) 65,933
75,000 75,000 71,037 (3,963)
- - 61,970 S 61,970
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

LONG-TERM PLANNING FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Budget Variance with
Adopted Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Charges for services S - S - S 348,175 S 348,175
Investment earnings 5,000 5,000 29,657 24,657
Contributions and donations 250,000 250,000 - (250,000)
Total revenues 255,000 255,000 377,832 122,832
EXPENDITURES:
Instruction 56,000 56,000 - 56,000
Support services 3,581,000 3,356,000 1,211,886 2,144,114
Facilities acquisition and construction 75,000 300,000 7,972 292,028
Contingencies 20,677,827 20,677,827 - 20,677,827
Total expenditures 24,389,827 24,389,827 1,219,858 23,169,969
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (24,134,827) (24,134,827) (842,026) 23,292,801
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 2,157,000 2,157,000 1,919,285 (237,715)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 2,157,000 2,157,000 1,919,285 (237,715)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (21,977,827) (21,977,827) 1,077,259 23,055,086
FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2017 21,977,827 21,977,827 21,755,010 (222,817)
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2018 S - S - S 22,832,269 S 22,832,269
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETARY TO REPORTING FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

GENERAL FUND

JUNE 30, 2018

Budgetary Funds

Total

General Long-Term (reported as
Fund Pension Planning General Fund)
ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and investments S 66,849,865 S 61,970 22,869,809 S 89,781,644
Cash with fiscal agent 2,035 - - 2,035
Receivables 3,885,053 - 4,675 3,889,728
Property taxes receivable 5,129,275 - - 5,129,275
Due from other funds 2,296,860 - - 2,296,860
TOTAL ASSETS S 78,163,088 S 61,970 22,874,484 S 101,099,542
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable S 4,993,225 S - 42,215 S 5,035,440
Accrued salaries and benefits 37,558,925 - - 37,558,925
Due to other funds 1,500,126 - - 1,500,126
Other liabilities 6,098 - - 6,098
TOTAL LIABILITIES 44,058,374 - 42,215 44,100,589
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Property tax revenue 4,486,927 - - 4,486,927
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES 48,545,301 - 42,215 48,587,516
Fund Balances:
Committed - 61,970 22,790,054 22,852,024
Unassigned 29,617,787 - 42,215 29,660,002
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 29,617,787 61,970 22,832,269 52,512,026
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES S 78,163,088 S 61,970 22,874,484 S 101,099,542
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

These funds account for revenues and expenditures restricted for specific educational
projects, the District's food dispensing program and student participation fees. Included
are the following funds:

Student Body Fund — accounts for the receipts, disbursements and cash balances of
the various schools’ student body activity funds.

Special Purpose Fund — accounts for the District's individual school activity
programs. The major sources of revenue are contributions and miscellaneous
revenue.

Categorical Fund — accounts for resources reserved for expenditures on classroom
supplies and equipment, capital improvements and replacements. Principal
revenue source is the State of Oregon facility grant.

Grant Fund — accounts for revenues and expenditures of grants restricted for
specific educational projects. Principal revenue sources are federal and state
grants.

Nutrition Services Fund — accounts for revenues and expenditures for the food
dispensing programs. Principal revenue sources are sales of food and subsidies
under the National School Lunch and Breakfast Programs received through the
State of Oregon.
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2018

Special Revenue Funds

Student Special Nutrition
Body Purpose Categorical Grant Services Total
ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 3,557,544 S 998,218 $ 5,236,168 S - S 4,032,194 S 13,824,124
Receivables - 309,917 - 4,503,096 619,680 5,432,693
Inventories - - - - 515,050 515,050
TOTAL ASSETS S 3557544 S 1308,135 $ 5236168 S 4,503,096 S 5166924 S 19,771,867
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable S 21,497 S 80,533 S 158,299 S 316,367 S 77,309 S 654,005
Accrued salaries and benefits 2,539 112,731 - 1,310,878 902,004 2,328,152
Due to other funds 156 4,866 - 2,361,066 40,693 2,406,781
Unearned revenue - - 2,372,770 514,785 - 2,887,555
Other liabilities 1,233 - - - 384,821 386,054
TOTAL LIABILITIES 25,425 198,130 2,531,069 4,503,096 1,404,827 8,662,547
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable - - - - 515,050 515,050
Restricted 3,532,119 - - - - 3,532,119
Committed - 1,110,005 2,705,099 - 3,247,047 7,062,151
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 3,532,119 1,110,005 2,705,099 - 3,762,097 11,109,320

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 3557544 S 1308135 $§ 5236168 S 4,503,096 S 5166924 $ 19,771,867
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

REVENUES:
State and local sources
Federal sources
Charges for services
Rentals
Investment earnings
Contributions and donations
Recovery of prior years' expenditures
Other

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Instruction
Support services

Enterprise and community services
Facilities, acquisition and construction

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in
Transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2017

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2018

Special Revenue Funds

Student Special Nutrition
Body Purpose Categorical Grant Services Total

S - S - S 2,280,917 6,099,466 S 269,558 S 8,649,941
- - - 15,435,149 8,735,018 24,170,167
3,542,955 - - - 4,879,170 8,422,125
, - - - 4,976 4,976
- - 54,998 - 30,177 85,175
850,972 1,563,783 108,982 500,658 50 3,024,445
25 1,125 - - - 1,150
49,028 1,336,207 1,916 - 4,714 1,391,865
4,442,980 2,901,115 2,446,813 22,035,273 13,923,663 45,749,844
4,089,469 1,930,131 77,034 13,419,475 - 19,516,109
- 539,952 - 6,237,887 13,545 6,791,384
- 1,321 - 231,918 13,812,241 14,045,480
- 571,897 2,199,634 2,145,993 - 4,917,524
4,089,469 3,043,301 2,276,668 22,035,273 13,825,786 45,270,497
353,511 (142,186) 170,145 - 97,877 479,347
- 4,820 - - - 4,820
R - - - (4,820) (4,820)

- 4,820 - - (4,820) -
353,511 (137,366) 170,145 - 93,057 479,347
3,178,608 1,247,371 2,534,954 - 3,669,040 10,629,973
$ 3532119 S 1,110,005 $ 2,705,099 - S 3,762,097 S 11,109,320
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
STUDENT BODY FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

REVENUES:
Charges for services
Extracurricular activities
Contributions and donations
Recovery of prior years' expenditures
Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Instruction

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2017

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2018

Budget Variance with
Adopted Final Actual Final Budget
- S - S 3,542,955 S 3,542,955
7,700,000 7,700,000 - (7,700,000)
- - 850,972 850,972
- - 25 25
R - 49,028 49,028
7,700,000 7,700,000 4,442,980 (3,257,020)
10,700,000 10,700,000 4,089,469 6,610,531
10,700,000 10,700,000 4,089,469 6,610,531
(3,000,000) (3,000,000) 353,511 3,353,511
(3,000,000) (3,000,000) 353,511 3,353,511
3,000,000 3,000,000 3,178,608 178,608
- $ - S 3,532,119 §$ 3,532,119
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
SPECIAL PURPOSE FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

REVENUES:
Contributions and donations
Recovery of prior years' expenditures
Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Instruction
Support services
Enterprise and community services
Facilities acquisition and construction

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2017

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2018

Budget Variance with

Adopted Final Actual Final Budget
8,539,089 S 8,539,089 1,563,783 $ (6,975,306)
- - 1,125 1,125
2,100,000 2,100,000 1,336,207 (763,793)
10,639,089 10,639,089 2,901,115 (7,737,974)
4,318,760 4,318,760 1,930,131 2,388,629
740,329 740,329 539,952 200,377
200,000 200,000 1,321 198,679
6,750,000 6,750,000 571,897 6,178,103
12,009,089 12,009,089 3,043,301 8,965,788
(1,370,000) (1,370,000) (142,186) 1,227,814
120,000 120,000 4,820 (115,180)
120,000 120,000 4,820 (115,180)
(1,250,000) (1,250,000) (137,366) 1,112,634
1,250,000 1,250,000 1,247,371 (2,629)
- S - 1,110,005 S 1,110,005
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
CATEGORICAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

REVENUES:
State and local sources
Investment earnings
Contributions and donations
Other

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Instruction
Support services

Facilities acquisition and construction

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2017

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2018

Budget Variance with

Adopted Final Actual Final Budget
7,000,000 S 7,000,000 $ 2,280,917 S (4,719,083)
25,000 25,000 54,998 29,998
400,000 400,000 108,982 (291,018)
- - 1,916 1,916
7,425,000 7,425,000 2,446,813 (4,978,187)
- 500,000 77,034 422,966
125,000 125,000 - 125,000
10,600,000 10,100,000 2,199,634 7,900,366
10,725,000 10,725,000 2,276,668 8,448,332
(3,300,000) (3,300,000) 170,145 3,470,145
(3,300,000) (3,300,000) 170,145 3,470,145
3,300,000 3,300,000 2,534,954 (765,046)
- $ - $ 2,705,099 S 2,705,099

91



BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GRANT FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

REVENUES:
State and local sources
Federal sources
Contributions and donations

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES:
Instruction
Support services
Enterprise and community services

Facilities acquisition and construction

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2017

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2018

Budget Variance with

Adopted Final Actual Final Budget
$ 7,601,866 S 10,101,866 ¢ 6,099,466 S (4,002,400)
24,027,147 25,527,147 15,435,149 (10,091,998)
1,381,252 1,381,252 500,658 (880,594)
33,010,265 37,010,265 22,035,273 (14,974,992)
19,092,674 21,992,674 13,419,475 8,573,199
10,055,901 11,155,901 6,237,887 4,918,014
546,690 546,690 231,918 314,772
3,315,000 3,315,000 2,145,993 1,169,007
33,010,265 37,010,265 22,035,273 14,974,992

$ - $ - $ - $ -
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

NUTRITION SERVICES FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Budget Variance with
Adopted Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
State and local sources S 180,000 S 180,000 S 269,558 S 89,558
Federal sources 9,950,319 9,950,319 8,735,018 (1,215,301)
Charges for services 6,242,917 6,242,917 4,879,170 (1,363,747)
Rentals - - 4,976 4,976
Investment earnings 20,000 20,000 30,177 10,177
Contributions and donations - - 50 50
Recovery of prior years' expenditures 200 200 - (200)
Other - - 4,714 4,714
Total revenues 16,393,436 16,393,436 13,923,663 (2,469,773)
EXPENDITURES:
Support services 13,783 13,783 13,545 238
Enterprise and community services 16,902,198 16,902,198 13,812,241 3,089,957
Contingencies 2,606,320 2,606,320 - 2,606,320
Total expenditures 19,522,301 19,522,301 13,825,786 5,696,515
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (3,128,865) (3,128,865) 97,877 3,226,742
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers out (120,000) (120,000) (4,820) 115,180
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (120,000) (120,000) (4,820) 115,180
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (3,248,865) (3,248,865) 93,057 3,341,922
FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2017 3,248,865 3,248,865 3,669,040 420,175
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2018 S - S - S 3,762,097 S 3,762,097
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by

one District department to other District departments, on a cost reimbursement basis.
Included are:

Insurance Reserve Fund — accounts for costs incurred by the District under its self-

insurance programs, except workers' compensation, up to insurance policy
deductible limits.

Workers' Compensation Fund — accounts for workers' compensation claims relating
to on-the-job injuries up to insurance policy deductible limits.
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2018

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Due from other funds

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued claims losses
Accrued salaries and benefits
Due to other funds

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET POSITION
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

Insurance Workers'
Reserve Compensation Total
S 4,326,086 4,765,616 9,091,702
2,003 17,778 19,781
141,517 125,025 266,542
4,469,606 4,908,419 9,378,025
704,481 49,487 753,968
875,000 1,815,000 2,690,000
7,370 26,283 33,653
447 622 1,069
1,587,298 1,891,392 3,478,690
2,882,308 3,017,027 5,899,335
S 2,882,308 3,017,027 5,899,335
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

OPERATING REVENUES:
Services to other funds
Recovery of prior years' expenditures
Other

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Losses and claims
Insurance premiums and assessments
Salaries and benefits
Services, supplies and materials
Facilities acquisition and construction

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUE:
Investment earnings

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, July 1, 2017

NET POSITION, June 30, 2018

Insurance Workers'
Reserve Compensation Total
S 2,034,829 S 1,686,137 S 3,720,966
332,119 67,238 399,357
63,515 - 63,515
2,430,463 1,753,375 4,183,838
966,598 1,282,601 2,249,199
1,865,896 122,447 1,988,343
681,637 442,448 1,124,085
360,927 161,910 522,837
156,256 - 156,256
4,031,314 2,009,406 6,040,720
(1,600,851) (256,031) (1,856,882)
46,933 52,812 99,745
46,933 52,812 99,745
(1,553,918) (203,219) (1,757,137)
4,436,226 3,220,246 7,656,472
S 2,882,308 $ 3,017,027 $ 5,899,335
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Received from interfund services provided
Received from recovery of prior years' expenditures
Paid for goods and services
Paid to claimants
Paid to employees

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, July 1, 2017

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, June 30, 2018

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Changes in assets and liabilities
Receivables
Due from other funds
Accounts payable
Accrued claims losses
Accrued salaries and benefits
Due to other funds

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Insurance Workers'
Reserve Compensation Total
S 2,094,540 S 1,664,541 S 3,759,081
332,119 67,238 399,357
(1,948,612) (234,870) (2,183,482)
(960,610) (1,262,859) (2,223,469)
(603,637) (461,448) (1,065,085)
(1,086,200) (227,398) (1,313,598)
46,933 52,812 99,745
46,933 52,812 99,745
(1,039,267) (174,586) (1,213,853)
5,365,353 4,940,202 10,305,555
S 4,326,086 S 4,765,616 S 9,091,702
S (1,600,851) S (256,031) S (1,856,882)
2,911 (17,759) (14,848)
(7,091) (4,244) (11,335)
434,467 49,487 483,954
78,000 (19,000) 59,000
5,988 19,742 25,730
376 407 783
S (1,086,200) S (227,398) S (1,313,598)
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

INSURANCE RESERVE FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Budget Variance with
Adopted Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Investment earnings S 18,000 S 18,000 S 46,933 S 28,933
Services to other funds 1,931,971 1,931,971 2,034,829 102,858
Recovery of prior years' expenditures 120,000 120,000 332,119 212,119
Other 35,000 35,000 63,515 28,515
Total revenues 2,104,971 2,104,971 2,477,396 372,425
EXPENDITURES:
Support services 5,010,835 5,010,835 3,875,058 1,135,777
Facilities acquisition and construction 260,308 560,308 156,256 404,052
Contingencies 1,568,828 1,268,828 - 1,268,828
Total expenditures 6,839,971 6,839,971 4,031,314 2,808,657
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (4,735,000) (4,735,000) (1,553,918) 3,181,082
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 1,135,000 1,135,000 - (1,135,000)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 1,135,000 1,135,000 - (1,135,000)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (3,600,000) (3,600,000) (1,553,918) 2,046,082
FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2017 3,600,000 3,600,000 4,436,226 836,226
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2018 S - S - S 2,882,308 S 2,882,308
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

WORKERS' COMPENSATION FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Budget Variance with
Adopted Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Investment earnings S 21,000 S 21,000 S 52,812 S 31,812
Services to other funds 1,635,532 1,635,532 1,686,137 50,605
Recovery of prior years' expenditures 80,000 80,000 67,238 (12,762)
Total revenues 1,736,532 1,736,532 1,806,187 69,655
EXPENDITURES:
Support services 2,516,942 2,516,942 2,009,406 507,536
Contingencies 1,219,590 1,219,590 - 1,219,590
Total expenditures 3,736,532 3,736,532 2,009,406 1,727,126
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (2,000,000) (2,000,000) (203,219) 1,796,781
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (2,000,000) (2,000,000) (203,219) 1,796,781
FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2017 2,000,000 2,000,000 3,220,246 1,220,246
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2018 $ - $ - $ 3,017,027 $ 3,017,027
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FIDUCIARY FUND

This fund accounts for the District’s scholarship program provided by bequests and
donations. Included is:

Private Purpose Trust Fund — accounts for fund-raising and scholarship resources
received and held by the District in a fiduciary capacity. Disbursements from this
fund are made in accordance with the trust and fund-raising agreements.

103



ip’] BEAVERTON

W 4 SCHOOL DISTRICT



BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET (NON-GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Budget Variance with
Adopted Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES:
Investment earnings S - S - S 3,152 3,152
Contributions and donations 75,000 75,000 88,933 13,933
Recovery of prior years' expenditures - - 1,745 1,745
Total revenues 75,000 75,000 93,830 18,830
EXPENDITURES:
Enterprise and community services 400,000 400,000 61,755 338,245
Total expenditures 400,000 400,000 61,755 338,245
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (325,000) (325,000) 32,075 357,075
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (325,000) (325,000) 32,075 357,075
FUND BALANCE, July 1, 2017 325,000 325,000 307,545 (17,455)
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2018 S - S - S 339,620 339,620
RECONCILIATION TO GAAP BASIS:
FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2018 S 339,620
Scholarships payable (34,000)
NET POSITION, June 30, 2018 S 305,620
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OTHER FINANCIAL SCHEDULES
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION AS REQUIRED BY THE OREGON DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

A Energy Bill for Heating - All Funds:

Objects 325, 326, & 327

Please enter your expenditures for electricity, Function 2540 S 7,164,072
heating fuel, and water & sewage for these Function 2550 -
Functions & Objects.

B Replacement of Equipment - General Fund:
Include all General Fund expenditures in Object 542, except for the following exclusions:
Exclude these functions: Exclude these functions: | S 8,756
1113,1122 & 1132 Co-curricular Activities 2550 Pupil Transportation
1140 Pre-Kindergarten 3100 Food Service
1300 Continuing Education 3300 Community Services
1400 Summer School 4150 Construction
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION AS REQUIRED BY BOND DISCLOSURE AGREEMENTS
GENERAL FUND ADOPTED BUDGETS

FOR FISCAL YEARS 2017-18 AND 2018-19

Fiscal Years
2017-18 2018-19

Resources

Local Sources S 166,987,000 S 174,699,500

Intermediate Sources 12,193,180 12,455,000

State Sources 266,189,977 267,108,769

Miscellaneous 40,214,583 34,065,000
Total Resources S 485,584,740 S 488,328,269
Expenditures

Salaries S 263,696,772 S 263,647,996

Associated Payroll Costs 148,490,821 149,144,093

Purchased Services 24,139,287 25,775,991

Supplies and Materials 18,049,716 17,925,924

Capital Outlay 3,100,125 1,018,000

Other Objects 2,002,088 2,319,158

Transfers 2,161,694 4,080,694

Other Uses of Funds 23,944,237 24,416,413

Total Expenditures S 485,584,740 S 488,328,269
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B E AVE RTO N District Goal: WE empower all students to achieve post-high school success.
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STATISTICAL SECTION OVERVIEW

This section provides further details as a context for a better understanding of the financial statements.

Contents Page
Financial Trends 123

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how financial
performance has changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 130
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the Beaverton School District's
most significant local revenue sources, state school fund and property taxes.

Debt Capacity 134
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the School
District's current levels of outstanding debt and the ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 137
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the School District's financial activities take place.

Operating Information 139
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the

information in the School District's financial report relates to the services the School District
provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: The information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual financial reports for fiscal years ended June 30, 2009-18,
unless otherwise noted. Beaverton School District implemented GASB Statement 75 in Fiscal Year 2018.

121



ip’] BEAVERTON

W 4 SCHOOL DISTRICT



‘59 SVD 03 aNp pajelsal sem €10 Jeak [easiy
'89 SVD 03 aNp pajelsal sem GTOZ Jeak [easiy
'SL SVD 03 aNp pajelsal sem £T0Z 1eak [easiy

910N
S6ETCT'TLT S ¥S9'TSZ'T6T  §  9TL'6LY'66T  $  ETTI06'€0C  $  $SSLTTEOC S 991'895'85C S 6/90TE6KT S 99L'6L5'TS S LSE'EP8T S (8.7'159'67) 3 uoiysod 33u Juawuianos Arewid eio)
579'806'ST Y8L'TET'LT 6€0VYS'S (ev£'888°CT) (zs6'€56'07) TTEV8Y'T (2L6'vL1'6TT) (912'192'STT) (66€€60°0£7) (560°0€0%Z€) pajLisaiun
8TH'E0V'T S69°£00°L YLT'EEY'S 856'SEY'9 0L8'TTE'S 680'992S 8€9'0€6'Y L10'T92'S ¥65'87L'E 6TT'TES'E paLIsay
TYEOT8TST ¢ SLTTIT'89T ¢ €0S'TOS'88T  $  866'ESE0TT ¢ 9€9'8S8°8T¢ S S9LLI8IST  $  €10'SSS'€9T ¢ S96'6/ST9¢  $ T9T'88T'89T  $  86v'9v806T S s1asse |eided ul Juawisanul 1N
SOIHAIIOE |BIUBWIUIRAO0D
6002 0702 1102 2102 €107 ¥102 ST0T 9702 L10T 8102

Jed) |edsly

(buiauno2p Jo sisoq |pnNJ2Ip)

SYVIA TVISI4 NIL LSV
LN3INOdINOD A9 NOILISOd 1IN
1J141S1d T00HIS NOLY3AVv3Ig

123



‘69 gSVO 03 aNp pajeIsal sem €10 Jeak |easy
‘89 @SV 03 aNp Pajelsal sem ST0Z 4eah [edsty
‘G SV 03 9np palelsal sem £LT0Z ek [edsy

:9JON
(ce6'9sevie)  §  (S/z'ese’soe) s (veToew'ite)  § (498'16z'eve) s (Svo'zeTvwe)  $ (61€'90L'%we)  $  (L41'eeT’ste) ¢ (OTL'zie'6ws) S (2eL'Tis’80S) S (LETTHSYYS) S 95UadX® 12U JUsWILIAA0S Asewid (ejoL
anuanay/(asuadx3) 19N
v%2'269'7y 0T¥'829'LS 6YC'SLT'T9 70T'668'EY 025'8Y9'TY 6€9'€EL VY 022'665°€Y 09L€8C'Ty 8818y LLY'08Y'6 senuanas weugoud Juswulanos Atewd [eo
vL9'€€6'S 0LS¥8E'T TSL'095 - - - - YEEITT'T LT6'T9€E 69TTLY suoiINqLIU0d pue sjuels [eyded
TSE'868°0E 60T°T2L'TY ¥06'769'S £S5ST8'8C TI6'0€1'9C €9Y'265'6T 9TTYTE'8T S6v'508°8T 0£9'595°0€ £99'T6T'LE suonNq13uod pue sjued Buijesado
€2T'%S0'S ory'v68'y 8L6°9EL'Y 1180697 ¥65'SEEY 8EL'LET'Y T0T'06T'Y L9L'9tY'Y TITTEY'Y 9rT'¥88Y Se0INIDS
Ayunwwod pue asudiajug
TTST6LT 6925071 S8ETY8 910128 9£0°8L8 S¥9'706 909'LL8 €8'098 TYL'8TY'T 970'295'T s901A43s Joddng
vLSVT0'T Te0'cee’s TECTVE'S vS9'TL5'6 6€6€00°0T €6L'860°0T 98¢'L12'0T 162'796'9 €EE'TE0'9 677°0LT'S uondNAIsu|
$92IAI3S J0) Sa8iey)
1S3I}AIOE [BJUBWUIBA0D
sanuanay weisoud
9/1'6L0'65€ 589'T86'G9€ €05T09'8LE T/6'061'98€ G9T'T8L'S8E 856'6E7'68E L6€'768'85€E 0£7'959'T65 709'TE9'TSS ¥1.'T20'76S sasuadxa Juawusanos Arewnd |ejo)
667'166'7C SYT'S8T'9C S6T°2SS'7T TL9'%9L'VT ¥8S'6TL'SE OrS'€9T'9T 665 ETY'VE 0LE'6ST'9E 095'£0€°0€ 95%'SE0'VE 109p W91-8U0| UO 153433
088585 LSL'00T'T SOV'TEET - - - - - - - SIDINIDS SAY10R
TLL'98 L5806 €80'LE YrSLE - - - - - - SR0INIDS
uaJp|Iyd Jo aJed pue Apoisn)
T67'0€T 60602T 806°0VT 09929 S8€'8TT 765°8€T 69Y'Lt €Le'er TLSY €SY'ST 901135 Ajunwwo)
T9E'868'TT 818'8LT'TT L18'065TT 9/6'029'TT TIST08'TT 99'€ILTT L6L'9EL'TT TYS'ETY'ST 9/8'900'7T STT'688YT S30IAIBS UOILINN
LEO'6LT v6v°78 LOE'S8 67STTL LLOYIET S6E°96L €6800T TT0'8€ 9€L'6€ 0€8'6 Juawaunal [eyuawalddng
600605 T 67L'€85YT TLT'LET'IT STHYOE'ST 6€6'868'ST 102'628'9T LYO'ELE'ET €8L'T¥8'TT TL¥'795'TT 6V0°EVL'YT poddns sainide [eua)
T6Y'EVT'SY LYT'6T6'SY TLTTIL VY T20'8L8'Ey 0607507y S66°£50°9 TTTTEYTY TE6'Y8E'SS TIT'891'9S 9969529 o035 Jioddns ssauisng
S99VTT'ET £2v'860°TC 98T€LE'TT vSL'568'TT 899'8T€'€T T00'vLY'vT 76059161 678°€68'VE LYT'TVY'EE LTL'9TL'9E uonesIsIuIWpE |00YdS
S86'7€8'T T6T'€95'T €LT'LTST YLY'ESY'T €€STSY'T 0rv095'T LTIESY'T ¥95'STET ¥60'vYT'C 6TH'EET'T 1oddns uoijeslsiuIpe [eJaU3D
LTS'LYEDT S9.'806'ST 8ET'YTEIT €L5'9%0YT 6.8'€5'6 8L7SEV'OT 8€T'TZT'OT 00Z'szz’oe £88°£05°0C ¥S0'6L5°TT 1oddns yjels [euononuisul
TIE0T9'TT S98vTY'ET S96'8TE VT 6TL°067'ST €VL'9LT'vT SYE9I8'ST 950'8TE'TT 9/L'v8T'6€ £99'StL'8€E LL6'SYT'EY sa218s Loddns syuapnis
ETY'6LL 6/8TE §50°291 SOvvey 08€'T9E 0089t 188'€78 0St'9vY'T TYv'20T'T ¥%0'665'T sweJgoud jooyos Jawwng
9TTLTIT'TS 976'£0'SS €80'SET'8S £90°LTL'8S 69T'ETE'TI 0£8'SST‘T9 0v6°0TL'2S 6TE'9€Y'S8 61965518 9TE'9T8'06 sweigoud |eads
L0STS9OYT  $  6SS'LTELVT S SYS'€T8'SST  $  TST'L96'S9T  $  90T'8SS'SST ¢ SISESKTLT  $ 9vS'SE9TST S TOv'veT'sLz S €erOv9'TST ¢ 86T'I8LT9T S swe.goud Je|ngay
:S3I1AIIOE |BJUBWUIBA0D
sasuadx3y
6002 010 1102 210C €107 v10C ST0T 9702 L10T 870C

Jed) |edsly

(buiauno2p Jo sisoq |pnNJ2Ip)
SYVIA TVISI4 NIL LSV

INN3AIY/(ISNIAX3) 1IN ANV ‘SINNIATY INVYDO0Ud ‘SISNIdX3

1O141S1d T00HIS NOLY3IAV3IE

124



'S9 SVD 03 anp pajelsal sem €10 Jeak [easly
'89 SVD 03 aNp pajelsal sem GTOZ Jeak [easiy
'SL 9SVD 03 anp pajelsal sem £T0T 1eak [easy

8TTYIV'TT $  T€6'880°6T S 790'8TT'L S Lev'Tey'y S (659°€L9) S TI9'0vE'SS S 0c€'9L6'0TT (€16°0€L'96) S (zeT’eve’on) S (SE8'v6YTE) $
09T'T08'SZE 907 TYY'LTE 9EEYSIVLE Y9E'ETLIVE 986'850'EVE 1£6'970'007 16Y'697'9EY 161 TY9'TSY 005'698°29% Z0v'9v0'ETS
968'8Y8'T LSTLEL'Y 6SL'LLS'Y 9SL'S0L'E S9L'EVT'E €£6'09L'T LOEVTT'Y 799'895'T 90T'LLET TYS'vE6’9
- - - - - €08'L9L 00z 0ST'ST OpS6ET 910'867
8TTYYY'E 729719 655'06L TW9'L19 YPT€0S YLS'LTS 8TL'TYS'T 9£9'86T'E €6€'TSET YLS'EV6Y
9€5'8ST'ZT T9Y'206'6 0v9'8€9°TT 0£E'EE8'LT £LE°06Y'8 TSS0TT'ZT 169'0LL'ST 902'900°€T 9Z€'L9L'YT S¥9'092'LT
6LE'€€8'T Te8'L8Y'E YY6'6TY'E 020'292'E OET'SSI'E TWT'LES'E vL0'96L'E 98.'169'7 0S8'TT0'S ETY'T6T'Y
6T0'998'TLT 76€'89T V9T TLT'859'LST YYELEL'LIT YL9'SLY'TLT 9TE'695'66T £95°097'9TT 0£8'598'87C 697'6€L'TET 695'L5T'85T
868'€TT'T £68'EVE'T ¥19°08T'T TH0'LST'T 696'€98'T 0TS'L0Y'T 9TT'L66'C 690'690'€ 0EV'678'E 6SY'LTT'E
€5L'99L'LE Y9LTYS'SY 8TE'BY8 VY 795 TYT'8Y OvLTST'LY TLOTEL'EY 626'0VY'TS 058'205'TS S7S'006'2S T02'L68'8S
9TE'6E LSL'0T [43 - - 0TZ'090'6T TE6'ETT'VT 00526192 T.L0'788'8C €91'500'TE
SYT'0EL'V6 8ET'SEY'L6 88T'0rS‘00T 899'857'70T T6T'7L0'90T 6L9'€85'0TT TS6'EE6'YTT 896'0£5'0CT 066'0L8'STT 078'0YT'8TT
(zee'ose'vTe) ¢ (SLz'ese’80€)  §  (pLToey'Lre)  $ (L98'T6TTwE) S (SKO'TET'PYE)  §  (BTE'90L'WYE)  §  (LLT'€6T'STE) (0Tz'zLe'svs)  $  (TeL'zis’80s) ¢ (LETTYSWWS) S
6002 0102 1102 2102 €107 ¥102 ST0C 9102 L102 8107

Jed) |edsly

910N

jJuawuIanos Asewnd |ejo)
uoisod 13N ul asueyd

JuawuIanos Asewnd |ejog

SNOBUE||ISIA
1asse |eyded Jo ajes uo uien
S1UBWI1SAAUI UO sBuluIe]
$92.N0S |BI0| PUE 31L]S PAIDLIISAIUN
puny |0oyds uowwo)

puny jooyos aje1s

X} 3S[9X3 UOI12NJISUO)

ERIINEN

199p J0j palnd| saxe) Auadoud
sasodind esauad
10} palA3)| saxe) uondo [e207
sasodund
|e4auas 1oy paina| saxe} Auadoud
saxe|
:SIUAIIOR [BIUSWUIDA0D
uonisod
13N ul sa8uey) JaY1Q Pue SANUINIY |e1aUdD

asuadxa 1au Juswuianos Atewnd [ejo)
anuanay / (asuadx3) 1eN

(buiauno2p Jo sisoq |pnNJ2Ip)
SYVIA TVISI4 NIL LSV

NOILISOd 13N NI 3I9NVH)I V101 ANV SINNIATY TVHINIO
1J141S1d T00HIS NOLY3AVv3Ig

125



‘S gSYD 01 anp palelsal a1am saduejeq 0TOZ JedA [edsi]
:910N

126

/33'610'68 €ST'ETS LY 8/8'685'SE £65156'6C S L0T'6/0'%C S 6£C'8/SYT 589'T/8°0CY ¥80°8¥5'9LT [S9'T0L'66€ S LCLTL860E S SpuNy [e3UBLILIBA0S 13430 [[e [e30L
- 6€1'S9T0T ZI9LTY T TIT'0ET'S 895'58Y'8 78v'205'6 LYT'06E'6 T96'€Ly°0T YYTTLT YT €T£'656'9T paiwwo)
- 6€6'796'9€ 19'944'€T Tr0'8SY'TT L19'9%T'ST £9T°6L9'Y ST6'06T'TTY £6898'592 666'TVZ'S8E Y9£'86£267 paruIsay
- SLT'E8€E 505'S6€ ovz'e9e 226'9vE ¥65°T6€ €19'06C 0£2£82 v15'/82 050°STS a|qepuads-uoN
/8T'TIS'ST - - - - - - - - - spuny anuaAai [eads
TUT'Y98TL - - - - - - - - - spuny syoafoud |eyded
8TY'E0V'T - - - $ - $ - - - - $ - $ puny 221A135 3920
‘Ul payodal ‘pansasalun
Spun4 |EIUBWUIBA0D YO ||V
SL6'78T'LT YT vL1'8C 0/6'815'TC 9722856 S 5900758 S TOT'VEL'CE 6526695 S0/'TE8'E9 LVETLL6S S 92071525 S puny |esauas |e30L
- 8€1'98%'9C 158'95T°0C T8v'696'L 8¥5'055'L 6EEVYETE TEL'B6E'SS 187°616'Ty vLT¥S0'3E 200'099'6C pausisseun
- ¥01'889'T €TT'29€°T SYLTI9'T 15696 77868 820'665°T 825802 SLTLTLTT 2025822 parwwo)
SL6'Z8T'LT - - - $ - $ - - - - $ - $ paniasaiun
pun4 |esauan
6002 0102 1102 2102 €102 v10Z ST0Z 9107 £10Z 8107
Jed  |edsly

(6uiauno22p Jo sisbq |pN122D patfipow)

SYVIA TVISI4 NIL LSV

SANN4 TVLNINNYIAOD ‘SIONVIVE ANNd
1J141S1d T00HIS NOLY3AVv3Ig



m S9NUaAal |10

$92.N0S |J0] [BI0L

SaNuaAal JaY10
aWodUl JaY10 pue 153J33u|
S3|es JIAIIS POOS
Ans| uondo |e207
S9Xe) WAIOJeA Py
:5324n0S 8207

$924N0S 9}eIpawJajul pue alels [ejo]

43410

S32IAJDS UOIILIINN

puny |0oyds uoWWo)

uoddns jooyos aie1s
1530IN0S 1BIPAWIIIUI PUB d1e1S

$92UN0S |elopay |e10]

S90IAIDS POO4
S sjueus |esapaq
:5324n0S [e4apa4

9€9'9/6'8LE S657S9°S6€ 879'LT9'L6E 120's£9°007 89¥'SLT°96€ S 9ET99v'SSY S8E0VL'S6Y Y9E'SY6'ETS 180°207°62S L16'269'78S
S9S'TvL'9ST ¥9€'9T6°9LT 01 'v6€°08T 7S8'8LE'S8T S92'L¥9L8T 0€6'69E'LTT 802797 V€T SET'620THT £0v'082°TST ST8'€99VLT
6vL'T20'TT TL89ETY 1€8°00TY S66'6LTE €78'TL0C TEYTSTT 716'768°E £18'879C TLE'LLY'T 116'SL6°9
90£'015'6 0€8'VTT'ST €9/'Tv6'ST €10°9€6'9C ¥¥0'9SS'LT €5L/98Y'EE STT'ShY'SE 6L9'VSLLE 206'TTSLE T8L'EET TV
09%'2S6'Y 6597087 06£'0697 ST9Tv9'y V65'SEEY SELLETY 015'88T'Y 699'STY'Y ST8'6TY'y 0LT'6L8Y
9TE'6E £SL°0T [43 €E€T'T 686 0TZ°090°6T TEG'ETTVT 0052619 107888 €91°500°'TE
VEE'BTTTET LYT'6V8'TT ¥TL'659'SYT 966'8T9°0ST ST8'789€ST 865'7€S6ST 0€£'TT5'99T 0LY'LT0TLT VET'896'LLT 008'699'68T
809'T6LT6T SYT'EV6'8LT L09'LLTELT 769'7€8'88T LLT'TY9'V8T 0T1'£T2'STT 8SC'IVTLET T€6'820'8YC 2T8'6TS'€ST G76'858'S8T
0ST'€S9°L £02°06v°8 16L°8V1°8 TI0'v¥9'9 898'/89°9 TL6°L8E°0T 9LS'9vL YT ¥86'7S¥'0T 6920101 €8V YITCT
8€6'9T 998°7ST €0S°0ST €05°0ST 89€'€9T 20L'8ST 7€8°9ST 999'€9¢7 ¥98'6€C 855'69¢C
6LE'EEST 19C'vCT 6€9°9CT 020292t 0€T'SS9'E wT'LeS'e ¥L0'96L'E 98L'1697 0S8‘TT0'S €TV I6TY
Tv0°8L1Z8T TT6'SLTOLT L9'TS8'V9T 09T°9LL'8LT TI8VET VLT S6T'EET'TOT 9LL'9vY'8TT S6Y'8T9CET 6T7'S9T'8ET TLY'€E8T'69T
€97 Th'6C 98676 6€ 188'SY6'EY SLY'EIY'9T 920'/88'ET 961'6/8'CC 6T6'TEE VT 86C'L88'ET 958°90v 7T £9T'0LT'VT
v0°9LY9 S96'STE'L 79£°068°L EVL'EST'8 €25°001°8 0TO'LOE8 9TT'VESS v/8'76'8 065'80L'8 8T0'SEL'S
Tr'996°ceT TT0'6LY'TE 6T5°550°9€ CE€L'60C°8T €05°98L°ST S 98TTLSYT €6L°L6LST vTr'e96'vT 997'869°ST 6YT'SEV'ST
6002 0102 1102 (4544 €102 102 ST0T 910¢ L10T 810C
aed |edsly

(6uiauno22p Jo sisbq |pN122D patfipow)
SYVIA TVISI4 NIL LSV

SINNIAIY SANNT TVLINIINNYIAOD

1O141S1d T00HIS NOLY3IAV3IE

127



VT4 4% %ST'ST %60°ST %9¢€°ST %CT9T %LE'ST %81 V1T %01 %LOVT %68°TT sainypuadxa |eyidesuou
Jo 98ejuadiad e se 321AI9S 1090
¥80°50€'98 8YL'8YL'TY $  090°0LEVT $  798'S0€9 $  vI6'66TL S €09'T8¥'ST €55°6LLTE $  956'800°9CT 18LT66°96T $  (619'666'07) S s1asse |eyides 1oy sainypuadxl
¥8EveT Ty 062°029°9zy S 98£'S879TY S 6EV'6L8°9TY S 68LVST'EOV S 9LS'vE0‘OvY L¥9'LYE"80S S 0T6'0/8'6%9 126'618°0vL S TvS'686'899 S s3Un3puadxs |e3o)
- - - 668T8C LYEETOT - ST9YYS ¥S0'8ST - - 53500 d2UENSS| pUOy
90€'9£0°9C €LT'8VS'8T TSL'L€9°9C V8oL VT 78€'89Y°TC 18%°0296T LV6'L9SEE §8/9TL'9€ €00°T8€"SE €S¥°92S'LE 1saJ431u|
€LL'SEELT Yy L 6T 86L'766'€E 6VZ'€TE'SE €8C'8VETY 90€'SLE'SY S9£°058°€E 6YETYL9E 208LST'TY 090°L6V' 71 |edpuLld
90IAJ95 192Q
- - - - - - - - - - Aepino |eyded JaylQ
69T'676'78 S66°'LET'TY 92£L0S'ST 0£0'6£9'S 659'688'9 £61809'9T 9UY'T65 Ty TTW'8TL LYT 0v8'SY0'80C 922'€69'S0T uoINIISUOd/uoIsiNbIE S3|1DES
Aepno |eude)
805'0T0°CT 98Y'SECTT 80T'2LSCT LTEYSSTT C0E'STLTT Y06'vTLCT 60V TVE'ET Ovr'v99'€T €GC'09T'ET - s9018s Ajunwwio)
- €6T'18 6T0'S8 S65'V0L TLT'T6T'T TIT'Y9L €9T'SYT TT0'8E 9€L'6E 086 uswWaunal [euswWa|ddng
6T9°20S€C Tv6'T0C'€ET YrY'9€8'CT TLE'90S'ET 885'66€€C SSLTYY'vT T0T'vL2°9C 0LE'TL6°9T 8V VLT0E 6LEVBLVE jue|d jo @dueURIUIEW pue UolRIBdO
S79'6L0°LT LTT'6V0'ST 6LETSTLT TS9'8Y9'ST 0SL'0€8'ST 8v£'T0L'9T 95£'608°6T 199'102°0C 88€'G80°0C 00Z'0€v'CT $321AI3S uoljeIodsues] JuapNIs
895'76C'ST YY6'SSLYT 887'608'CT LT6'789CT 68T'€EV9'CT 99S'SYY'ET £8S'0SYET £65'80S'ST 087'805'9T 861'96T'8T SVIAIBS |eAJUI)
89€'8Y6'C LEB'TEYT 788'66Y°C 99%'9£2C 0vL'£50'C 0S¥'£S2T 900'T¥9'Y ¥86°009'C S9E'SEEY Tv0'LE6'T SIVINIBS |BISY
T5v'789TT ¥8S'6EV'TT 807'808'TC S85'57CTT S9T'V6ETT 9€5'LTL'ET 96€£'685°ST 8€9'865LT SET'E0L 6T 062'2SSCE uoneJjsiuiwpe jooyss
6TY'TCS'T 672°0TY'T 6T9LTET 8€0'V8C'T TZS9€T'T SSO'ETV'T T99'€LY'T 875'909'T CETLYI'T 9SY'ovL'T uopiensiuiwpe [esausn
¥98'SL¢T 625'S0T 0L5'LLT 9LY'TET Ly¥'99T 6LT'V0T €TT'V8T [444 741 765881 €8TLET uoneINnpa Jo pJeog
T/8'STT'S €09°0€9°€ 9EEVER'E Ly8'L8L'E 961'SLY'T 950°2v9C 0L0'9TT'V €22'7809 L€6'€589 STY'98C°L Buiuied) Jjeis [euononiisul
685°£9SL 8€6'58'Y LS9'EE6Y 895°090°€ 586°08¢°€ vLTCTTY €L0°08TY ST8'89SY 90C'STEY 8YE'68EY SIVINIBS
1UaWdO[IAP WIN|NDLLND PUE UOIIINIISU|
TE0TUTL 969°9%0°L 865250°L €L8'LEL'9 TEE'EOV'E €€9'8TY'E 9LS'EET'Y 525’6009 88G°LEEL 899°/£78°L $9JIAISS BIPaW |BUOIONIISU|
ESTVETTT £78°89LTT oLT'zeL'st ¥0S€65 7T 965TEE'ET 026°€2T'ST 9vT'v68°LT €6%°060°'TE 0T0'€09'vE 957°T8Y'8E $321A19S [duuosiad Juapnis
£90°775°88T ¥¥9°968°96T $ €EL'YYT 60T S €02°259'8T¢ $  L€8°L07°L0T S Y06'TES'LTT 9L5'65v°TS¢C S vLL'80v'TLT CL0'€8T 18T $  6ES‘EBYOTE S uondnasu|
600C 0102 1102 10T £10C 10T ST0Z 9102 L10T 810C

Jed) |edsly

(6uiauno22p Jo sisbq |pN122D patfipow)
SYVIA TVISI4 NIL LSV

OILLVY 3DIAY3S 1930 ANV STUNLIANIdX3T SANNL TVLINIINNYIAOD

1O141S1d T00HIS NOLY3IAV3IE

128



S saduejeq puny ul 98ueyd 19N

(sasn) / se24nos Supueuly Jay1o [e10]

juase
MO0J2S3 puoq papunyal 0} JuswAed
wnjwaud spuoq Suipunjay
panssi spuoq Suipunjay
juawAed wns dwn| 1y SY¥3d
panss| 1qap w.a1-8uo| uo wniwalid
199p Jo Iduenss|
sasea| |lende)
1IN0 SIaysuel|
ul s1aysuel)

sjasse [eyded
0 550] J0j UoIleSUadWOD JO JO 3[es
(sasn) / s@2anos Supueuly JSY30

S sainypuadxa
(43pun) / 1310 saNUBA3I JO SSBIXT

(ve0'seL'eT) S (S69°5197€) S (Lv9'8Ls'sT) (899'555°LT) $  (800'7S6'9) S STLEITYT S wvo'LSTTEY  $  (SS9'68YLET) S STT'E60'6TT s (157'880L6)
YTLTSY'0L (000'059°T) TTT'68 (052'TSET) €TE'ST (zev'8TET) 90€'VIL'EVY (60T¥95'T) 950'90£'0E€E vS8'EST'T

- - - (T90095'LY) (TSLTVE'6LT) - - (€9L°€98'LT) - -

- - - 118'899'S T5L'796°0C - - 62€'99L'T - -

- - - 000SLT Ty 000°007'6ST - - 000'092'9T - -

- - - - - - (6€9°0£9'8L) - - -
S97'SSE’E - - - - - 196'S62'€9 - L0T'0LT'0E -
0000959 - - - - - ¥8L'89€'T9Y - S97°058'L6C -
6YY'LES'T - TITY¥8'T - - - - - 000'LtY'E v01'9L6
(€L£'Te9'6T) (8£2'290'8) (Sv¥'zeT’9) (5€5'795°8) (96LLLT'Y) (9zz'09v'y) (zs0'15€'s) (606°LEL'ET) (609°L2t'Y) (S06'822°€)
€L1'TTv'8T 8L7TTY'9 SYY'LLEY SES'6T6'9 96L'LLT'E T66°€LET TS0TTT'E 606'700°TC 609°LTV'E S06'822°€

- - - - [41X°] €08'£9L 00z sTe's ¥89°8€T 0sL'LLt
(8vL'LvT'e8) S (569'596'0€) S (85£'299'8T) (8T¥¥0T'9T) S (T2e'6L6'9) S 099'TEV'ST S (292'209'zT) S (ovs'sge'ser)  §  (Tv8TI9TTZ) ¢ (SOT'TreE'86)

6002 010 1102 210C €107 v10C ST0T 9102 L1027 8102
Jed  |edsly

(6uiauno22p Jo sisbq |pN122D patfipow)
SYVIA TVISI4 NIL LSV

SANNH TVLNINNYIAO0D ‘SIINVIVE ANN4A NI IDNVHD 1IN ANV SISN ANV SIDUNOS DNIDNVNIH ¥IHLO

1O141S1d T00HIS NOLY3IAv3IE

129



uollexe] '@ JUBWISSaSSY Jo 1dag Ajuno) uoldulysepy :a24nos

*asn 159 pue 153y81y syt ul pasn asam Aiadoud ay3 Ji 19y ew aAI1IdWO e Ul 4oy |95 pjnom ALiadoud e 1eym uo paseq ‘anjea [enjoe sy sl anjeA 193RI [y q

*aN|eA Passasse J0 000'TS 43d ,

LE°8S 80T‘689'€5€'SE TTEv¥89SL L6L'V¥8'965VE 79599 €EVTYS'9€9°0C TIEYY8'9SL TT1'869'6L8°6T 600¢
8t'v9 0ST'ET6660°CE 6LT'SLT'V69 TL8'LEL'SOV'TE 6489 6TV TOT TVETT 6LT'SLT'V69 0vT'926°L¥9°0T 010¢C
v1°0L £69°089°0Z€TE TL67TE869 97/L'GS€TT9'0€E 7849 198'819°£96°TC TL67TE'869 068°€6269C°TC T10C
8T'SL €68°6Y1TV0'0E 90v‘z6v'6TL L8V°159'TTE'6T 0989 9EV'ETOLTI'TT 90v‘z6v'6TL 0€0'T2SL68°TT 10t
TL8L G€LG87°0€9'6C 08S‘TYTevL SSTvY1°888'8T SLL9 08L79T'TTE €T 08S‘TVTehL 002°1206L5°TT €10¢
6L9L 680T06'TOV'TE TC6T9€°9SL 89T°6€5'G9°0€ ¥S0°8 T€9'8T6VTT VL 126°T9€°9SL 0TL'955'8S€‘€T 10T
'L 06£'S20°00LvE T0960%99L 68T°9T9'€E6'EE LEO'8 6LT'6YY'EVTST T09°607°99L 8/9°6€0°LLE VT S10¢
65°0L L0LTTETITLE 87€€80°LT8 6LE'6TT'VEV'9E LS6°L 9TZ’'859°T0€'9T 8C€'€80°LT8 888VLSVLY'ST 910¢
6099 TL6LLL'STL'TY 786°G88°7S8 686168'SL8'0V T¢6°'L 8T9'€8T LLS LT 786°G88°7S8 9€9°/6T'vTL 9T £10T
% vC'C9 €7S'07S'€6E9Y 685266768 ¥56°C2S005 St €50'8 GES'8L6'€L88T 685°166'768 9%6°086°086°LT 810¢
AINY j0 anjep Anadoud Anadoag R anjep Auadoug Ayadoud Jed\
a8ejuadiad e se 19)4. Al |edY |euosiad |ennuapisay 1341 a|gexe] |euosiad |ennuapisay |easiq
anjep passassy |exol q 2NIeA 3B |eay |elol |lelol anjep passassy

SYVIA TVISI4 NIL LSV
ALd3d0OYd F319VXVL 40 INTVA LDIYVIN TVIY ANV INTVA @3SSISSV
1J141S1d T00HIS NOLY3AVv3Ig

130



‘UOIIBXE] PUB JUBWISSISSY JO SuaILIedaq 0D YRWOUYNIAl PUE 0D UOIBUIYSEA :324N0S

‘SjuswWaJinbal s,JeaA Yyoes uo paseq 13S aJe 9IAIDS 1P JO) SIIRY 'SIBIA PAIIGUINU USAS Ul UOIIIID [BJaudd JaquIaAON a3 ul 3dadxa ‘159 U013193|3 Ajiofew 3|gnop ay) 193w 3snwW S3IA3| uoldo |BIO| JO) SUOIDB|3
*sy09foud |ended Joy sieah ual pue suonesado 1oj sieah aAly 01 payiwi| aJe saIA9| uoido [e207 “Ajuoyine a1es Jusuewsad J19y) ASeaJdUl Jouued S1OLISIP SullsiX3 'S9INILIS 91L1S PUB UOIINYIISUOD U030 Jo 91e)1S ayy Aq paulw.alap aJe sajes xe) uondo |edo| pue Juauewad ayl

¥ST'0 v6€°S 0L0°0 0800 86£0 ¥86°C SIT'Y €8T 6Tv'T 889°'C T6EL L8€E'S €050 ¥95°9 18T - €69t 6002
¥ST°0 €0v'S 0L0°0 9800 LEVO ¥86°C 6611 S68'T vEL'T 121 vz8'L L8€'S €€9°0 6489 981°C - €69t 0102
¥ST'0 G8€'S 0L0°0 8800 6070 086'C €0TY €88'T VLT e 808°L L8€'S 9£9°0 ¥8L°9 160°C - €69t 1102
¥ST°0 ovv's 0L0°0 8500 STE0 vL6°CT 64TV 0€6'T 6€L'T S6L°E 889°L ¥9t°9 865°0 098'9 L9T°C - €69t 7102
¥ST'0 vevr's 0L0°0 - ¥0v°0 0L6'CT 8ETY ST6'T 0€L'T 0S€9 €9€°L TvS'L 5990 SLL9 780°C - €69t €10C
¥ST°0 1IS'Y 0L0°0 - L9Y°0 896'C 9LEY 906'T 8T 9/€€E 086°L L8€'S v€L'0 ¥50'8 111 0sZ'T €69t ¥102
¥ST'0 T6V'Y 000 - 65t°0 8€8'C LLEY 168'T LTLT 8LT'Y 68°L L8€E'S (44N L£0'8 ¥60°C 0sT'T €69t ST0C
¥ST°0 LYY 0L0°0 - 88€°0 8€8°'C LLEY 80T°C S79'T €87°9 €9/°L L8€'S 985°0 1S6°L $10°C 0sZ'T €69t 9102
¥ST'0 €6EY 0L0°0 - L6€°0 656'C SLEY 860'C 619'T 196V 1L6'L L8€E'S 6490 126'L 86T 0sT'T €69t LT0T
¥STOS €6EV S 0L00$ -$ 60V0S 8S6C S SYEV $ 8/0C $ TI9T $ T/8CS ¥88LS [8E€S S G090 S €S08$ OTT'CS 0SCTTS €69V S 8I0C
as3i >u::ou puejpuod WA pulsIq >u::OU uolioneag 9Nndsay uoljealday ﬂ‘_mm_._. puejjaod oJsoqs|iiH wmw__ou |eiol spuog :O_uao wmo&:n_ Jea\
_mco_mwz yewoujjnin jo -l 9JIAIRS :Oum:_—_mmg mo R 94 3 ied jo *O jo >u_:=EEOU _muo._ |eJauan |easi4
MN uod [JLETT] A Aajjep SIiH A A A puejuiod sajey 1a41q PMISIq

unejeny  unejeny

sajey Suiddejsang

(anjpA passasso fo 000‘TS 42d 33v.)

SYVIA TVISI4 NIL LSV

S3LVY XV1 AL43dOdd DNIddVTHIIAO ANV 133dIa
1J141S1d T00HIS NOLY3AVv3Ig

131



UOIIeXE] 13 JUSWSSSSY JO Judwiedag AJuno) uo18uIyse M :324n0S

*PaIA3| SAXE) UO paseq payuey :310N

% 0°00T 6V8'TTI'€98'evS % 0°00T €EVTYS'9€9°0CS % 0°00T [8ELY9'0VET9S % 0°00T GEG'8/6'€L8'8TS PUISIg XeL JO 3N|eA PISSISSY |B10]
€76 STTTLV LY OV 6°C6 TTLT6S'SLT'6T 806 026077260995 €'€6 92¥'061€56'9C siahedxe] 43430 |1V
L'L T€9'69'68€°E T'L 12L'6¥6'09Y'T 6 £9%°906°0€L'S L9 60T‘88T°026'T siahedxe] 1s981e7 U] JO |RIOIGNS
0T 7 €86'805'8¢EY TT 7 88ETESVET €0 L 0008EV'YTT SUOIIEIIUNWILIOY UOZLIDA

€0 6 000Z8€‘T6T €0 6 00009016 suonedjunwwo) Januol4

L0 9 06%'0S1°98¢C S0 8 002'596°66 90 9 0T2¢'£96°SSE S0 14 000°€L0‘TST seo |eJnieN 1SaMYyuoN

80 14 0S6‘LTV'eve 90 14 086°6€T'SCT 80 € 9TT’88T'TCS S0 € TLE'STSTST 0D 913393 |eJsuaH pueHod

L0 v 00L'TLE'T9V 01 7 00LTSEWLT uones0dio) 35edW0)

SamIN oIand

€0 0T  006°T0S‘L9 971 ‘us|Biaquiy

(4] 0T 9¢6°'S08‘C0T S0 L 976'S08°20T d1 sy4ed ssauisng Sd

€0 6 0T6'CIV'STT 90 S 0T6'CIV'STT diyssaunied p1] Sunesado dy3

€0 8 €0G'66C'SET L0 € T00'8L6'VET JUl XIUOJPRL

€0 8  0.5°95668T *JU| Y293UBUID

90 S 0TL'99€'€8¢C 90 S YTL'YYY6LE sa1e1d0ssy Ajeay dyyioed

S'¢ T 078'9SETOT'T 8¢ T 8/T'V6L°18EC [91u]

€0 0T 006TTC'V6 D77 uolaAeag

€0 8  €ST0TLLL 211 ‘sa1adold JUBWISAAU YISIEH

7’0 L 0T6'VSS'STT Ul INHI ‘@IN

7’0 L 06V LEV'TLT 90 9 0TS'S06'8¢CT 70 9 08'0v8‘1CT "2U| ‘S19NPO.d PaleISIU| WIXE|A|

S0 6 LYS'€T0V6 0 0T 06€'STY'IST 7’0 S 076'v76°6CT J71 aJenbs uoidulysep ¥dd

% 60 € 6V T8 TIIY S % LT T 6G€°G89°/SE S % VT 4 6/5°866'9/8 S % S'C T S/S'ST6'TIL S oul ‘IN

anjep  juey anjep anjep  juey anjen anjep  juey anjen anjep  juey anjen T9kedxe]
ajqexe} passassy ajqexe] passassy ajqexe] passassy ajqexel passassy
|elol a|qexe) |elol ajqexe] |lelol a|qexe] |elo1 ajqexe]

10 % 0% 10 % 10 %

Auno) uojSuiysem

1914351Q |O0YIS UOLIdARG

Auno) uojSuiysep

1914351Q |OOYIS UOLIDARRY

600¢ dunr

810C dunr

dOIdd SYVIA ININ ANV dV3IA INIHEND
SYIAVAXVL ALYIdOYd TVdIONIYd
1J141S1d T00HIS NOLY3AVv3Ig

132



*SpJ023J [eldUBULY 1I113SIQ [O0YIS UOLISABDgG PUB UOIIEXE] PUB JUBWISSISSY 4O Judwedaq Aluno) uojduiysepn :a24nos

*s1eaA Jolid Ul PaIAS| SaXE) 10) PIAISIAL SNUBARI JEDA JUSIIND SIPN|IUI SIBA JUBNbAsSYNS Ul SUOII3||0) @
*Ajluanbasgns Jn220 1ey) SJUSWS[1IBS 10 3|qe1ID||0dUN 10} SYUBWISNIPE INOYUM ‘O dunf 03 T Ajnf JeaA uondaj|od Xe] ay) uodn paseq aJe SJUNOWY

LV'L6 LV6'€80'TET OT¥'LOE'Y 6716 LE€S9LLLTT YSLYTS'SET 6002
80°L6 6v6'TIY TPT SET'V06'E w6 ¥18L0S'8ET 8/5'969'9%1T 010Z
L1796 S8€'659EVT T$9'SL9°T L9'V6 YL '€E86°0VT SOE'TT6'SYT 1102
99'96 6v2'196'6YT 0LS'19€C v1'6 69'€6SLYT 0LS'6ET'SST (41014
ST'L6 TL6'98€°€ST £€99'S8L°T 81°S6 60€'T09°0ST T¥8'92L LST €T0¢
0896 000°T69°LLT 9TT‘090°€ v1'S6 ¥880€9'VLT €€2°095€8T ¥102
7896 9ST'T60'68T T0v'86€°T 09°'S6 ¥SL'T69'98T L80'76T7'S6T STOC
¥5°96 106'S6LS6T ¥850L6'T 15'S6 LTE'ST8'E6T 6TT'ET8°20C 9107
60°96 ¥50°S6L 70T €9L'€VE‘T 9t°S6 T6C'TSY 0T 669'6TT'ETT LT0T
% 8%'S6 ' LEV'LTT S - S % 8Y'S6 ' LEV'LTT S LT0'62L°LTT S 810¢
Ana1 jo unowy (z) S1B9A Ana1 jo unowy (1) €A |easly 1ed\
mmmu:wu‘_wn_ ucw:men:m wmmu:wuhmm 9y} 10} |easi4
9}eQ 03 suol}dv||0) |eroL ul suondI||o) >>w._ 9Y3 JO JeDA |edsiy PoIAD7 soxe]

3U3 UM pa303]|0)

SYVIA TVISI4 NIL LSV
SNOILI3T10J ANV S3IAIT XV1 ALHIdOUd
1J141S1d T00HIS NOLY3AVv3Ig

133



‘Bunuiid Jo se a|gejieAe Jou uoljewloju| - /U

‘ssejjop xe} Apadoad yum Ajpdauip predad Jou aue Aay) 9ouls 10aQ papuog [BJaUS9 19N 3Y) Ul papN|oul 10U 31 spuog uoliesijqo uoisuad q
"Jeah Jepuajed Joud ay3 Joj uoizeindod pue dwodul [euosiad Suisn paje|ndjed dJe soljel 3say | “ejep uoizeindod pue dwodU| [euosiad Joj S13sIFRIS JlWouod3 pue dlydesdowaq d9s

667'C ST6'C 000°€ 887'079 059‘s 059'C¢ STT'T8T SY9'T 9T'T 09e‘'sor  (gov‘?) 8781 GE6°S6E 6002
€€€T 12T 008 7TL'88S 950"y S65°TC ST8'8LT 90S'T AN 988°6/€  (TL€%€) L00‘€T 052°0LE 0102
9/T'T LOV'T STS'T 1SL'¥SS 080t 0v0'ze 0L8'SLT TUET LTT'T 1eL'6v€  (0€0°€) 98T‘TT SLSTYE 1102
800°C LTT°T L8TC SST'LTS [4%X4r4 0£0'TC SYETLT €€T'T LSO'T 67941 (6€6%) 8v6°cT 079°20€ 7102
006'T SL6'T ¥0T'CT S95°06Y 80T'T SLT'0T S61'89T 9sT'T L00'T 96t‘86C  (165°7) 61°8C S68TLT €10C
SL9'T 089'T €8T 08L'TvY €85 08%'6T GLE'E€9T 146 G180 610957 (€2€0) 8.7t 095°€€T ¥102
vr's 80T'€ G89°€ €5'926 L6T SE6'ST 0v0'9€T 88T 606'T L£€699  (¥90°2) £S0C8 Y¥E‘68S ST0C
9T’ % S08'C 69€'€ 161988 - 0S.'8T S62'92¢ YEET 9TL'T 597'6€9  (188°T) L€0°8L 60T°€9S 9102
vLTY e/u ovey 8€E'69T'T vLST STT'ST 0L¥'STT 6CE'E SETT 609'c€6  (0L9) %0'T0T GETTE8 LT0T
SI6'c S e/u % 8L8'E 8096TT'T L09°C $ SSYLT S OvL'€0T §  TET'E % T€6'T 908668 - S 9€8'v6 $ 0L6'008 S  8T0C
mma_amu Lwoou| anjep JuawWuIdN0D sased spuog ,Spuog mﬂ_amu Auadoud jo 192a juawAeday wnjwaad spuog lea)\
J3d |euosiad jo a|gexe] jo Aewnd leude) uonesdiqo  uonesiqo 1ad anjeA |enpy jo papuog 10} 3|qejleny pazniowe uonesiqo |easiq
a8ejuadiad sy  aSejuadiad sy 244 uoisuad 98ejuadiad sy |esauan junowy ssa1 -un |eaduan
193q |ejoL 192Q papuog |es3udaD 1N

(p31dp3 43d 1da3x3 ‘spubsnoyy ui sipjjop)
SYVIA TVISI4 NIL LSV

3dAL A9 193d SNIANV1SLNO
1J141S1d T00HIS NOLY3AVv3Ig

134



J2INSeal] ayY3 JO 1O - UoSaIQ JO 31e]S :924n0S

00€°7¥0°TOTS J0 Winiwaid pazijoweun sapnpdu]

“uoIsIAIQ Juswaseue| 1gaq ‘Adnseau a1e1s uo8alQ Aq papinoid aue 1eyl SuiddeluanQ 1usdiad sawil 1gag paydeg xel-Auadoud 19N Suisn Aq paiejnajed si 1gag Suiddepsano g

“393p 1P3JD 7 Y3led [|n4 Surioddns-43S s3] pue 3gap 09 Xey-paywijun Suioddns-4135 ss3] 3qaQ padoeq xel-Auadoud ssouo si 3gaq paxdeg xey-Auadoid 1N

‘Juawuianos Suiddepsano yaes jo 1qap ay3 SuiAedau Joy a|qisuodsal 210249yl pue ‘quapisal e s JaAedxel Aians 1eyy

Ajdwi 30U S30p S1Y} ‘JSASMOH "JUNOIIE 03U} UBXR} B PINOYS SISSBUISNY PUB SIUBPISAI 3Y3 Ag BUI0q USPING 3G3P 413U Y3 ‘1qap wudl-3uol Aedas pue anss) 03 Ayjige s,3013510 Y3 BULIBPISUOD UBYM ‘Jey3 s3ZIuS0dal $$3204d SIY] "3013SId BY3 JO S3ssauUIsng
pue sjuapisai ay3 Aq auioq si 1eyl syuawulianos Suiddelsano asoyy Jo 1gap Suipuelsino ayi jo uolpiod ay3 sa1eWIISa 3|NPaYIS SIYy] 12141s1Q Y3 Jo saliepunog d1ydesS0as ay3 yum ‘ued ul 3sea| 1e ‘9ploulod eyl asoy) aJe sjuawuianos SuiddejsanQ 910N

¥89°0L0'v61‘T S

€68°L0V'LSE

70t 100 0£5298°C

879°cT ¥6'8€ 000°SE

69529 100 000'STT'6LY

¥€1'S9T 600 90T266°9LT

8€6'66€ 110 L1T1°0L6°69€

¥¥S‘SSEE 0L'9T 905880°0C

¥.5'7S0°S 96'TT 000082ty

TTT'60S°ST €905 000'5€9°0€

19€°0€T'TE 81°ST 000S€£S0T

€TSLE9'EE 0£'86 YESLTTYE

€68TVE‘SL 9696 €ETLOL'LL

TWT'80L L8 06T 99v‘TL0‘T9Y

ST6°TT6'0T 88'Ly T9L'STT'6TT

, TE8TI9'9ETT S % 00°00T TES'8T9'SE0T S
43920 Suiddejiano 113S1Q |o0YdS . Suipueising
pue 122.41q Jo UIyl/W Juadiad 199Q paydeg

3Jieys pajewnsy

xej}-Ajuadoud 19N

1q9p Suiddejsano pue 3o3.1p |e30L

1gap Suiddejiano ‘|er019ns

puog - 10M3sIq |ooyds oJogs||iH
as3 |euoi3ay 1SOMYMON
1L1ISIQ |ooYdS 040gS||IH
puejuod jo Aud

Ayuno) yewouynip

psesiL jo Ao

0Jogs||IH 40 AuD

2Nnd2say pue aJl4 A3jleA unejeny
011N

uolaAeag jo Ay

1014351Q UOI1BII3Y pue yJied S||IH ullejen]
9389]|0D Allunwwo) puejod
Auno) uojduiysem

1013sIQ |00Y2S UoHdARDG

Jun |ejudwWuUIan0D

810 ‘0€ AINNT 40 SV
1934 S3ILLIAILIV TVLININYINAOD SNIddVTYIAO ANV LO3dIa
1J141S1d T00HIS NOLY3AVv3Ig

135



wS6L 28e1Ua213d 3|qemo||y

i GL00" X ¥ ‘@peJsd yyam1 ysnoayy yiuiN o

%567 GS00° X 6 ‘@pes3 yaysis ysSnouyy usuesiapury v
:an|e/ 193Je |\ [e9Y JO 98e1U2Iad 3|geMO||Y

o ‘NeA 1IeW B3 Y3 JO (5£00°) 3ua213d 3UO JO SYIPRIPUNY-3UO DAI-AJUBASS ‘S|00YIS $91843d0 1214151 DY YIIYM JOJ U1§[9M] 01 YIulu Wou) apess yoes uo4
v ‘Onjen1iew [eal 3y jo (S500°) 3ua243d BUO JO SYIPaIPUNY-BUO DAIJ-ALl ‘S|OOYDS S3IBIDdO 1I1ISIF BYI YIIYM Joj Yy1ySia 01 uapiesiapul wouy apess yoes o4

U0 paseq 121IsIQ Y1 ulyum saisadoud jgexe) ||e Jo anjeA 1axJew [eaJ Ag pausanosd aue sa1e8a438y '$101ISIP [00YIS J0) SSIUPSIGIPUI PIpUO] JO Jalaweled e SaYsI|geIsd Gz 8ZE SHO .

60tT ¥8T'€89VIV'C 000°SE6°S6€ ¥87'8T9018°C 600C
LOYT S60°€6T°T92'C 000°0sC‘0LE S60°EVY'TEYC 0T0¢
TLET STT'6TY'8YTC 000°SLSTVE STT'V66'681°C 110C
88'CT 9T6°0€4°080°C 000°029°20€ 9T6°0S€E'88€'C 10t
89’11 9TLTTL'T80C 000568°CLC 9TLL09'GSE'T €10C
9€'6 LET'T68'T9C'T 000095°€€C LET'TSY96Y'T ¥10¢
9€'1¢ 0S0°80€°69T°'C 000v¥€‘68S 0S0759'8SL'T S10C
1061 09€°S9T°66€'C 000'60T°€9S 09€VLT'T96'C 910¢
80°S¢ 678°70€'S8Y'C 000SET CES 6V8LEV'LTIE'E L10C
% CLTC €88VTE'L88'T S 000046008 S €88'787'889°¢€ S 810¢
MW 193 Jo a8eualIdd B se Hwi uiSie| 193 |eSal Hwi 0} 9|qesiddy ywi] 193a Jea |easiy
ayj 01 3jqediddy 192 19N |e10L 1933 19N |ejol
€88'VTE'L88C S uiSJe 192 e8e1
000°0L6'008 1w 01 3jgeal|ddy 1gaq
£88'787'889°€ (;3N1eA 3B [BRY JO %S6°L) HWIT 31G3Q
€75‘07S'€6E9 S anjeA 19Je |eay

8T0T JB3A |eIsl4 10} uonejndje) uisie 1qaq |esal

SYVIA TVISI4 NIL LSV
NOILVINYOLNI NIDYVIA 1930 TvO31
1J141S1d T00HIS NOLY3AVv3Ig

136



‘paisnipe Ajjeuoseas JoN “Aluno) uolBulysepn Joj e3eQ 2104 Joge] ‘1. Joge] uo3alQ

“sisAjeuy /Wou093 JO Nealng ‘2U3WWI0) 40 JuawLedad 'S’

"e3ep J23U3) YdIeasay uonendod NSd UO Paseq sajewisa 4sg PUe YaIeasay ssauisng pue djuiouod] jo neaing ,

‘Bunuuid Jo se a|qejieAe Jou uoljewlou| - /U IS9ION

16 S9v'6€ 987's0T’1e 978t 600C

16 909‘0v STL985°TT €62°7SC otoc

L'L 6€9ty 959'tv0’€T Y16'7ST TT0C

TL 96€vY IVEVTIE YT 795745t [41014

€9 LSL'YY 116'6€8VT 661°85C €70C

LS €TL9Y 9916679 8LL'€9T ¥10¢

8'Y 606TS 195218°6C €20'69¢ ST0C

(44 €0CT'vS L6€E°88STE SY8'ELT 910C

% S'€ e/u e/u 971'08¢ LT0T

e/u e/u e/u €70°98¢ 8T0C

(A3uno) uoibuiysom) awodu| |euosiad (spunsnoy] uj) paiowiisy eI

,91ey wawAhojdwaun eyde) Jad 4oWodu| jeuosiad L[uonejndod Jepuajed

SYVIA YVANITVO NIL LSV
SJILSILVLS JINONOD3 ANV JIHdVYO0OW3a
1J141S1d T00HIS NOLd3Av3Ig

137



840°0jujAljenD Juswedag JuswAoljdw3 uo8aiQ pue SISIT JO 300g [BUINOS SSBUISNG PUB|HIOJ :924N0S

‘uojulysepn ul S913UNO
BIUBWIEYS PUE 3JE|) SE [|9M SE ‘U0ZR.Q Ul SBI3UNOD [|IYWEA PUB BIqWIN|OD ‘Seweyde|) ‘U03ISUlYSeA\ ‘YeWOUN|Al SIPN[DUL YoIym ealy [ed13siiels ueljodolid|n 040qgs||iH-19AN0JUBA-PUBILOd 3Y3 S YSIAI PUBlHOd |

% 00°00T 6TC'660'T % 00°00T SLT6SC'T awAo|dw3 YSINd Puejiod [e1oL
1026 0EV‘TT0T S6°06 YSrTT siahojdw3z Jay310 IV
66°L 68L°L8 S0'6 TE6'ETT siahojdwi3 1s984€7 UB] JO |BIOIGNS
€0 (o) 00S‘€ dio) Jauljysial4
9€'0 6 L6’ U] 'SO) Jenquaaln
w0 8 €L8'V o8.4e4 s|I9M
SL°0 S 1CC'8 1SOMUMION dluduew.ad Jasie)
o 0T £02°S 1214351Q |00YS UoHIdAEDg
050 6 9979 Auno) yewouyny
¥S'0 8 08.‘9 $]00Y2S 21|gqNnd pue|lIod
950 L €v0°L puejiod 4o AD
LL0 1% 0058 80 9 L€9°0T $3401S JBA3IN pau4
0.0 L 8¥9°L S6°0 S 000°CT Ul AN
SL0 9 96T'8 €0'T v SS6°CT wa1sAs YijeaH Aedan
SO'T € 00S‘TT 6C'1 € 00Z9T Ausianiun s2ua1dS 7@ yieaH uodaiQ
€€T z 6€9'7T 6€T z €VSLT wa1sAs YijeaH 22uapInold
% TS'1 T ovL'9T % €91 T 00€°6T *dio) a1y
sisoAojdw3 3sa8ieq ua
jawAojdwy Nuey saalojdwy jawAiojdwy Nuey saalkojdw3 FELCIVE]
|elol jo |ejo] jo
agejuadiad agejuadiad
800¢ ‘T€ Jaquiadaqg LT0T ‘T€ J9qwadeq

YOldd SHV3IA ININ ANV INIHHND

VIYV OY13N ANV1LYOd FHL HO4 SYIAO1dING TVdIDNIUd
1J141S1d T00HIS NOLd3Av3Ig

138



78’1 00T 00T 00T 00T STT STT STT STT €T STT 0S6°CLT 981'80T
69 EEV6T 86'6LT ¢L°08T cL9LT 00°69T S0'0LT LS°L9T 99°991 ET'ELT ¥1°S8T 9v€66 781°8C
(r1°€) 00'T 00'T 00'T 00’1 00'T 00'T 00°C 00°C 00°C v6'T 0S6CLT  981°80T
a4 8€'60C LIETT [Awand 61°90¢ 5067 €9'10C 16'80¢ YSv1C 08'8¢¢C CE'LST 9¥€'66 S97°0€
- 00'C ev'T 00T 00T jAA 00'C 00'¢ 00'¢ 00'¢ 00'¢ 0S6°CLT 981'80T
0z’s ve8T St'8T 60°8T ve9T 1€t 66'7T 9€'91 0691 7891 0LLT 9v€66 781°8C
95T €496 8E'T6 ov'T6 0€'68 SL'€E8 95'88 SE'L6 S9'€0T 75601 SETTT 0S6°CLT 981'80T
vLT SC'90T T9'v0T 98901 SEYOT 0T'€0T €8°¢0T ¥8°€0T ST'0TT scoct SeCaa £TS°L9 781°8C
LT€ SO'ST 8€0T 98°0T €6'CT 0T'sT LETT 0T'6 LE'6 0E'TT L9'TT L1838 196y
(9t'2) 00'€ 00'€ 00'€ 00'€ SL'T SL'T SL'T TL'E €9°¢ S'€ 0S6°CLT 981'80T
(£8°1) 009 LT'S 00°'S €0'S €S'T €0'S (0159 T€'S LS LTS STI8LST T81'8T
S0'S 00°€ 00°E 00°C 00'C 96°'C 96°'C 00'€ 6°C 18°¢ 00t 0S6‘7LT  981°80T
(1€72) L'9¢ 9€'9¢ 08'Ce 8'CE 8G'EY 09°€V 19°SY 9L'Ly €0°Ly 76'St L7519 781°8¢
(91°8) 65971 1066 60°'T0T 8'TL LT9T €°0¢C 66'TE T1°CS 8L°L9 ST'?9 T°L1'88 £96°CY
L9'9T 88'¢ 00'S LY'E L6'C 68°€ L6'E 00t 00°'S 009 00°L 0S6‘CLT  981°80T
97T 96°0L 69 009 cL9L 4 AL] 6599 SG'EL 76°S8 €7'86 09°C1T TE6LTT  8L8'ST
6C'T [4ard)» 9961 98'88T L9°€8T 08°0LT 85°9/T 85°C6T LLETT S8'6TC 89'Cct T°L1'88 £96°CY
- 00°E 00T 00T 00T - - - - - - 0S6‘CLT  981°80T
(€£0) ¥S9'€9¢C 99'8/¢C SC'9S¢ 69°6S¢C 90°s¢e T8€ETC €¢'8¢c TT'9€C 8.°09¢ £8'8SC 169°€L 781°8C
00°E 0T'0cYy 05'SEY 6G°9¢t cLL6E Tv'€6¢E 98'€8¢ 00°€ETy 16'0¢t 06°Ccy 81'9St T°L1'88 £96°CY
[45%3 09°S8 €0'8L 0€'9L S9°LL 19°86 87'60T coe0t 8T'LTT 0L'TET 80°9¢T LYY'8S 781'8¢
% €C0 00°065‘T L8'TLS'T 89'78ST S0'8LS'T 6'61€T €0'9vY'T 65'69S'T 06'0€L'T SP'€9L'T €5°49L'T TLT'88 S L96°TY S
8T0T 03 £LT0C 6002 0102 T10C Z10¢ €10¢ v10¢ ST0C 910¢ LT0C 8T0¢ a3uey Asejes 8T0¢
a8ueyd % 0€ aunr jo se saaAojdw3 jJuajeainbz awn-|jn4

uonessiuIwpy
uoddng
uoneyodsues
uolnessIuIWpYy
Moddng
sanljoey
uonessiuIwpy
uoddng
ssauisng |e1duan

S92InI9S 1oddng ssauisng

uolessiuIWpY
uoddng
paynts)

lwpy jooyds

uolessiuIWpY
uoddng
Joddng uonensiuiwpy [eJauan

uolessIuIwpy
Moddng
payiu=)

Joddng Jjels [euondonasul

uonessiuIWpY
1oddng
payiu=)

S3JIAI3S 1Joddng Juspnis

uonessIuIWpY
1oddng
payi=)

Swiesgoid [epads

uoddng

pai=)
uonNIIsu|

SYVIA TVISI4 NIL LSV

3dAL A9 SIIAOTAINIG LI1¥1SIA LNFTVAINDI FNIL-TINA
1J141S1d T00HIS NOLY3AVv3Ig

139



“SpJ02aJ }213s1g |00YydS uoliaAeaq :@24nos

‘uoljew.ojul pa1aspng sem pajuasaid elep ayl ‘sieah Joud uj “sjenioe 193}43. 03 parepdn uaaq sey pajuasaid elep ayl

*(sanoy y3ie 1e sAep 09g) JeaA Jad sinoy 08O’z Uo paseq paulwialap s suonisod Jay3o ||e Jo)
JuawAoldwa JuajeAinba-awin-||n4 ‘JuswAo|dwa Jus|eAinba-awil-||ny uleIgo 01 HS‘T AQ PapIAIp aJe saahojdwa payilad Aq sinoy yiom [e10] “1eah sad sinoy S T 4o Aep Jad sinoy 1yS1a 1e ‘sAep €6T 404 paAo|dwa ale 1213SIp 3y Jo saaAkojdwa palyiad awn-||nd

iS9I0N
69549 $ Aiejes saydea) aSesany
L22'T TLT'88 S 8¥99Y S asuey s, Ja15e|N
€0€ SET'T8 S L96°TY S asuey s,Jo3ydeg
siaydea) 28uey Alejes 8102
40 JaquinN
ST'T89'e  PT6T9E  8L'96S'E  89'€E6V'E  6E'SOT'E  SL'89Z'E  TY'TI6V'E  TTE08'E  SS'086'E  €6'790V |elol
- 00°C 00'C 81T 00T 9T'T 16T 00T 660 00T 00T 0S6‘CLT  981°80T
(veeT) 79T 0T'vT 67°0T YT'E LGE oS’y SO°LT 817'6C GG'EE T'6C 9¥€'66 L7599 yoddng
- - - - - - - 00T 6Tt 00°S 00°S - - payiie)
UOI}dNIISUO) pue uonisinbay saniPe]
- SCT 6t'C SS'T 69T 1T SET - - - - LTE'€0T  8/8'ST uoddng
- 750 €390 S0 €90 S0 LEO 8€0 - - - - - paynte)
S9JIAI3S UDJP[IY) JO 248) pue Apoisn) 'g S9JIAISS AlunWwilio)
- 00T 00T 00T 00T 00T 00T 00T 00T 00T 00T 0S6‘CLT  981°80T uonensiuiwpy
179 ST'66 6T°€0T SG'e0T T0'€0T €8°L6 L0'C0T 9t°00T ST'T0T ¥S'T0T S8°L0T 61685 $ €/5°€C $ uoddng
S3JINI3S poo4
086 00'8 06°L 00°L 159 00°L 00°L [4: A €18 00'6 88'6 0S6'CLT  981'80T uonessiuiwpy
6G°C 0869 789 L899 £8°09 00°09 60°L9 0569 69°L8 7166 0L°T0T LTEE0T  T8T'8T Hoddng
819 0S'S 6t 0g’s 6C'S f4n74 o'y oSt 00°'S SS'Y S8’ T°LT1'88 L96°TY payie)
$32IA19S Hoddng [ejuld)
% 96'L S0t SL'6 00°0T L9'6 00'8 8L'8 0L’L ot'8 6L'6 LG0T 6T5'S8 781'8¢ yoddns
Hoddng uonessiuiwpy 1240
{panunuo)) sadinias Hoddng ssauisng
8T0T 03 £LT0C 6002 0102 T10C Z10¢ €10¢ 102 S10¢ 910¢ L10C 810C a3uey Asejes 8107
a8ueyd % 0€ aunr jo se saaAojdw3 jJuajeainbz awn-|jn4

SYVIA TVISI4 NIL LSV

(panunuod) 3dAL Ad SIIA0TAING 1D1¥1SIA LNITVAINDI INIL-TIN

1O141S1d T00HIS NOLY3IAV3IE

140



*SPJ023. 111SIQ [00YDS UOLISARSG 1324N0S

‘Bunuiid Jo se a|qe|jieAe Jou uoljewlou| - /U

'SJ0]35UNOD puE ‘SI3YdEd} UOIIEINPS |eIadS ‘UoIIeINPS |edIsAYd ‘DIsnw ‘WooJsse|d sapnpu|

*Auanoe 921A19s 1qap pue s1aafoid [euded apnjoul sasuadx3 q

‘sAejino |eydes pue 221A13s 3G3p SS3| SAINHPUBAXS PuUNy [EIUBWUIRA0S || Bk sainyipuadxa Buljesado ,

910N

8'q€ ¥9T 0LE'C LT 687'CT v8€vTT T9Y SS'T 659°8 €€/'889°STE 0E'TLY'EY €19°LE 600C
8'8¢ €91 61EC (98'8) 00Z'TT 062'029'9ty (eTT) 1958 8/9680'92¢€ S EE6'EY 060°8€ 0TO0T
8'6¢ 6997 97€C (vzv) SzL'0T 98€'G8T9TY 9¢'C €9.°8 TIT'SPTOvE [ANAZ R 77 ¥18'8€ 110C
9'0v 9¢€°LT 0S¢t (VA 740)] 2901 6EV'6L8°9TY 9’1 L06°8 Ty 8v8’Lye I 2AX4: 3747 ¥50°6€ 102
¥'6€ €5°0¢ T26'T (tz'v) yaalols 68LVST'E0Y (z9°9) 907'8 STT'SEVTEE S0'96LvY LTY'6E €10C
L'8€ €e6T 70T €6'8 8ET'TT 9/5'v€0'0vY 6°L 7L06 166'6C1'8S€E ¥8'£80°SY 605'6€ ¥10¢
€'6€ 96°LT [4444 9€vT LEL'TT L¥9'LYE'80S 186 £96'6 vv8T6L L6€ 61°L6L'SY 016'6€ ST0C
€LE L9t 9EV'C 8C°ST 856'ST 016°0/86%9 LS'S [440) 8 10€'SCS‘8Ty 79'899°8Y SeL'or 910¢
Sve LT9T S1SC LY'ET 80T'ST 126'618°0VL 86'S ¢STTT 9/T'SET9SY ST EVL8Y 16'0v L10T
% L'SE TT9T 0€SC % (€6°6) 0T€9T S T¥5'686'899 S % TCS YEL'TT S €08TLTI8Y S T96IV'8y 910'T¥ 8T0¢
S|ea\ ddlid oney Heis asuey) uapnis nmom:onxm a8uey) juapnis (Sa4nypuadx3 MAQY juawjjosuz FEETN
-pasnpay Jayoea) payina) a8ejuadiad Jad a8ejuadiad sad Sunesado |easi4
10 3344 yes 150) 150)
EOTIYEREN] payiua)
SjuapNIs Jo -Juapnis
98ejuadiad

SYVIA TVISI4 NIL LSV
SJILSILV1S ONILVY3IdO
1J141S1d T00HIS NOLY3AVv3Ig

141



oce

“S213s13e1S 101ISIQ [enuuy 1D141SIJ |O0YdS uolianeag :@24nos

00€ LTE LTE LTE 8T€ LSE T1€ 0TE 66¢C
fa4 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14
000°9€ 000°9€ 0009€ 000°9€ 0009€ 0009€ 0009€ 0009€ 000°9¢ 000°9¢
Ly T T T T T T T T T T
L0905 L09°0V L09°0V L09°0V L09°0V L09°0¥ L09°0¥ L09°0¥ L09°0¥ L09°0¥
143 € C C C C C C C C 4
%66 %06 %C6 %C6 %16 %C6 %E6 %6 %56 %LL
889'TT SSO'TT TIETT ovE'TT LTTTT 97Tt SOv'TT 88S'TT T08'TT 866'TT
€78 1T 1S€CT YSETT vLETCT vLECT [{ol A 90€‘CT [44 % 4" 8Th'eT 80S'ST
YL vYST 97L'v99°T 801'599°T 801'599°T 801'599°T 80€£'€S9°T 80€£'€S9'T 80€£'€S9°T 767'699°T 767'666°T
0S 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 0T
%66 %¢C0T %V0T %90T %L0T %L0T %80T %80T %TTT %CTT
veT's Sov‘s £95°8 vEL'S we's 0,88 £90°6 00¢'6 95¢'6 vS€‘6
06T°8 144} LYT'8 vST'8 vST'8 vST'8 v6€°8 025°8 v6€8 99¢°8
8€S9T0T 8€S9T0°T 8€S9T0T 8€S9T0T 8€S9T0T 8€S9T0T 8€S9T0T 8€S9T0T 8€S9T0'T 8€ST8T'T
8¢ 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 6
%06 %EB %8 %8 %S98 %58 %8 %98 %8 %6L
T08°LT SYyLT 8T8'LT LT6°LT S6°LT L86°LT 6T6°LT SYE8T €L0°8T 08°LT
6v8'61 ovTTe STT'1e L0T'1T L0T'1T 68T°TC [4%0 14 LLETT LTV'TT 6092t
€€€698'T LY0TT0'T LY0TT0'T LY0TT0'T LY0TT0'T LY0TTO‘T LY0TTO‘T LY0TTO0'T 7896€0°C YIT'ELT T
Ly 43 €€ €€ €€ €€ €€ €€ €€ €€ 143
(sseah un) 600¢ 0T0C 1102 (44114 €102 v10¢ ST0C 9102 £10C 8T0C
sSulpjing Jed |easly
jo @8y
98esany

sasng
s8uip|ing/sadelen

NOILVLYOdSNVYL

199} aJenbs
s3uip|ing
JAILVYLSININGY

1994 aJenbs
s8ulp|ing
#4y10

pasn juadiad

jJuswW|0Ju]

Aoede)

1994 aJenbs

sulp|ing
ysiH

pasn Jua2J4ad
jJuswW|04u]
Ayoede)
1994 aJenbs
s3uip|ing
SIPPIN

pasn Jua2J4ad
jJuswW|04u]
Ayoede)
1994 aJenbs
s3uip|ing
Aejuawa|3z
S100HDS

SYVIA TVISI4 NIL LSV

NOILVINYOINI 13SSV 1V1IdVI
1O141S1d T00HIS NOLY3IAV3IE

142



SINGLE AUDIT
SECTION

EMBRACE
EQUITY

B E AV E RTO N District Goal: WE empower all students to achieve post-high school success.

SCHOOL DISTRICT

uondas upny a|buis






4|I||m “"th

GROVE, MUELLER & SWANK, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS
475 Cottage Street NE, Suite 200, Salem, Oregon 97301
(503) 581-7788

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

School Board
Beaverton School District
Beaverton, Oregon

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Beaverton School District, Washington County, Oregon, as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 26, 2018.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the District’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have
not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of
our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the District’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not

suitable for any other purpose.
"/ "&L £

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

November 26, 2018
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GROVE, MUELLER & SWANK, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS
475 Cottage Street NE, Suite 200, Salem, Oregon 97301
(503) 581-7788

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
UNIFORM GUIDANCE

School Board
Beaverton School District
Beaverton, Oregon

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Beaverton School District’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in
the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the District’s major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. The District’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its
federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the District’s major federal programs based
on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the District’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the District’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Beaverton School District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for
the year ended June 30, 2018.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered the District’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could
have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are
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appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than
a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.

Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.
uetlon "&L £

CERTFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

November 26, 2018
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Pass
Federal Through 2017-18
CFDA Entity Period Grant Revenue and
Program Title Number Number Covered Amount Expenditures
U.S. Department of Education
Direct:
Indian Education Grants to Local Education Agencies 84.060 S060A172500 07/01/17 - 06/30/18 34,622 29,604
29,604
Beaverton Active Students Succeed (PEP) 84.215 S$215F160097 10/01/16 - 09/30/19 669,484 202,881
202,881
Total Direct 232,485
Passed through Oregon Department of Education:
Title |
Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 41009 07/01/16 - 09/30/18 6,348,852 1,180,987
Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 45546 07/01/17 - 09/30/18 6,345,329 5,002,685
Total Title | 6,183,672
Migrant Education
Migrant Education - State Grant Program 84.011 41212 07/01/16 - 09/30/17 208,108 1,554
Migrant Education - State Grant Program 84.011 41231 07/01/16 - 09/30/17 11,531 3,782
Migrant Education - State Grant Program 84.011 44977 07/01/17 - 09/30/18 434,439 307,347
Migrant Education - State Grant Program 84.011 44894 07/01/17 - 09/30/18 22,074 10,717
Migrant Education - State Grant Program 84.011 48586 04/01/18 - 09/30/18 13,364 13,364
Migrant Education - State Grant Program 84.011 48622 04/01/18 - 09/30/18 67,700 4,002
Migrant Education - State Grant Program 84.011 43674 04/01/17 - 09/30/17 48,512 39,846
Total Migrant Education Program 380,612
Migrant Education - Consortium Incentive Grants 84.144 44029 06/01/17 - 09/30/17 2,400 2,301
Total Migrant Education Consortium Incentive 2,301
Supporting Effective Instruction
Supporting Effective Instruction State Grants 84.367 41264 07/01/16 - 09/30/18 797,875 128,875
Supporting Effective Instruction State Grants 84.367 45760 07/01/17 - 09/30/18 978,788 338,341
Supporting Effective Instruction State Grants 84.367 36122 07/01/15 - 09/30/17 801,127 8,479
Total Supporting Effective Instruction 475,695
English Language Acquisition
English Language Acquisition State Grants 84.365 41741 07/01/16 - 09/30/17 657,274 460,344
English Language Acquisition State Grants 84.365 44197 07/01/17 - 09/30/18 655,029 286,141
English Language Acquisition State Grants 84.365 41731 07/01/16 - 09/30/17 14,720 229
English Language Acquisition State Grants 84.365 36305 07/01/15 - 09/30/17 628,902 708
Total English Language Acquisition 747,422
Career and Technical Education
Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States 84.048 44279 07/01/17 - 09/30/18 285,400 254,439
Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States 84.048 40305 07/01/16 - 09/30/17 311,796 5,826
Total Career and Technical Education 260,265
Special Education Cluster (IDEA)
Special Education Grants to States 84.027 41469 07/01/16 - 09/30/18 6,876,494 257,543
Special Education Grants to States 84.027 45134 07/01/17 - 09/30/19 6,793,364 6,593,324
Special Education Grants to States 84.027 36811 07/01/15 - 09/30/17 6,522,240 8,217
Special Education Grants to States 84.027 45022 07/01/17 - 06/30/18 13,187 12,169
Special Education Grants to States 84.027 44334 07/01/17 - 06/30/18 29,043 24,636
Special Education Grants to States 84.027 48385 06/01/17 - 09/30/17 4,800 4,800
Total Special Education 6,900,689
Special Education Preschool Grants 84.173 45342 07/01/17 - 09/30/19 25,712 25,712
Total Special Education Preschool 25,712
Total Special Education Cluster (IDEA) 6,926,401
Student Support and Academic Enrichment 84.424 47674 07/01/17 - 06/30/18 114,004 732
Total Student Support and Academic Enrichment 732
Total Passed through Oregon Department of Education: 14,977,100
Total U.S. Department of Education 15,209,585

See additional information in the Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal, State, and Local Awards.
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL AWARDS (Continued)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Pass
Federal Through 2017-18
CFDA Entity Period Grant Revenue and
Program Title Number Number Covered Amount Expenditures
U.S. Department of Health & Human Services
Passed through Administration for Children and Families
CCDF Cluster
Child Care and Development Block Grant 93.575 10955 07/01/17 - 12/31/17 50,000 $ 39,664
Child Care and Development Block Grant 93.575 156140 01/01/18 - 06/30/19 338,760 47,541
87,205
Child Care Development Matching 93.596 10955 07/01/17 - 12/31/17 10,000 10,000
10,000
Total CCDF Cluster 97,205
Passed through Oregon Department of Education
Foster Care Transportation Reimbursement 93.658 47364 07/01/17 - 06/30/19 6,701 6,701
Total Foster Care Transportation Reimbursement 6,701
Total U.S. Department of Health & Human Services 103,906
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed through Oregon Department of Education:
Child Nutrition Cluster:
School Breakfast Program 10.553 N/A 07/01/17 - 06/30/18 1,381,453 1,381,453
National School Lunch Program 10.555 N/A 07/01/17 - 06/30/18 5,788,728 5,788,728
National School Lunch Program Commaodities 10.555 N/A 07/01/17 - 06/30/18 918,178 918,178
Summer Food Service Program for Children 10.559 N/A 07/01/17 - 06/30/18 334,007 334,007
Summer Food Service Program Commodities 10.559 N/A 07/01/17 - 06/30/18 1,353 1,353
Total Child Nutrition Cluster 8,423,719
Child and Adult Food Care Program 10.558 34-02006 07/01/17 - open 17,418 15,569
Child and Adult Food Care Program 10.558 N/A 07/01/17 - 06/30/18 291,633 291,633
307,202
Fresh Fruits and Vegetable - Vose 10.582 46309 10/01/17 - 09/30/18 30,950 28,471
Fresh Fruits and Vegetable - Vose 10.582 42984 10/01/16 - 09/30/17 3,635 3,635
Fresh Fruits and Vegetable - William Walker 10.582 46352 10/01/17 - 09/30/18 24,650 22,969
Fresh Fruits and Vegetable - William Walker 10.582 43025 10/01/16 - 09/30/17 2,537 2,492
57,567
Reallocation SAE 10.560 N/A 07/01/17 - 06/30/18 19,667 19,667
19,667
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 8,808,155
U.S. Department of Transportation
Passed through Metro
Federal Transit Cluster
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area) 20.507 933347 07/01/15 - 10/31/17 158,000 21,479
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urbanized Area) 20.507 934625 10/01/17 - 07/31/19 75,000 27,042
Total Federal Transit Cluster 48,521
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 48,521
Total Federal Awards $ 24,170,167
State and local awards:
U of O CTL Fuision N/A N/A 07/01/17 - open 3,000 $ 1,000
MACC Resilient Border Router N/A N/A 01/01/09 - open 46,698 2,776
AHS Nike Innovation N/A N/A 07/01/17 - open 20,000 8,492
ORPATS Autism Workshop N/A N/A 10/05/17 - 10/06/17 1,462 1,462
Confucius Classroom N/A N/A 03/01/14 - open 49,940 14,308
BEF: Innovation Expo iX18 N/A N/A 01/29/18 - open 11,000 10,976
AHS Building Construction Tech CTE N/A 46909 07/01/17 - 09/30/18 7,829 4,606
HS2 Health Professionals CTE N/A 46915 07/01/17 - 09/30/18 8,185 7,510
SHS Pre-Engineering CTE N/A 46918 07/01/17 - 09/30/18 2,000 2,000
Marathon Kids N/A N/A 04/01/17 - 06/30/18 6,062 423
Washington County Kindergarten Partnership Innovation N/A BCC17-1148 07/01/17 - 06/30/18 131,780 75,007
Intel Science Fair N/A N/A 07/01/17 - open 12,960 6,080

See additional information in the Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal, State, and Local Awards.
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL AWARDS (Continued)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Pass
Federal Through 2017-18
CFDA Entity Period Grant Revenue and
Program Title Number Number Covered Amount Expenditures
State and local awards (continued):

ELWC Washington County Early Learning Community Hub N/A BCC17-1148 07/01/17 - 06/30/18 $ 134,516 $ 134,516
Nike School Innovation fund N/A N/A 02/05/18 - 06/30/19 124,830 46,946
SRHS Marketing N/A 46917 07/01/17 - 09/30/18 10,320 10,159
AHS Automotive Mechanics N/A 46911 07/01/17 - 09/30/18 40,569 14,126
Farm to School N/A 45952 07/01/17 - 06/30/19 69,836 69,836
AHS Marketing CTE N/A N/A 07/01/17 - 09/30/18 3,559 1,548
BEF: Mt. View Extended Day N/A N/A 07/01/17 - 06/30/18 12,000 12,000
SRHS Nike Engineering Digital Filmmaking N/A N/A 11/17/16 - open 12,055 6,956
BEF: Stoller Extended Day N/A N/A 07/01/17 - 06/30/18 7,500 5,147
BEF: Cedar Park Extended Day N/A N/A 07/01/17 - 06/30/18 10,000 8,087
BEF: Meadow Park Extended Day N/A N/A 07/01/17 - 06/30/18 10,000 10,000
BEF: Five Oaks Extended Day N/A N/A 07/01/17 - 06/30/18 10,000 9,813
BEF: Sunset Summer School N/A N/A 04/14/17 - 09/30/17 10,000 8,252
High School Success (Measure 98) N/A 44610 07/01/17 - 06/30/19 5,463,054 4,370,470
Kaiser: Child Healthcare Program N/A N/A 01/01/18-12/31/18 12,500 12,500
CEYP "Tax Credit" Donations N/A N/A 10/01/02 - open 114,300 4,745
State Dyslexia Training N/A 47872 07/01/17 - 06/30/19 90,086 13,340
Outdoor School OSU (Measure 99) N/A TQQ32243 09/06/17 - 06/30/23 610,003 522,534
MACC N/A N/A 02/01/14 - open 39,267 36,295
City of Beaverton Safe Routes to School N/A N/A 07/01/18 - 06/30/19 70,125 26,561
WHS Restaurant/Food Services N/A 46924 07/01/17 - 09/30/18 27,758 8,718
Mentor Grant N/A 46167 09/01/17 - 06/30/19 1,190,000 515,733
SHS Nike Innovation N/A N/A 12/08/15 - 12/31/16 20,000 461
Gray Family Foundation Outdoor School N/A N/A 07/01/16 - open 57,800 11,136
Child Care 3 Star Rating N/A N/A 04/01/16 - open 1,500 548
BHS Marketing CTE N/A 46913 07/01/17 - 09/30/18 27,402 20,026
SRHS Design Technology Curriculum, Murdock N/A N/A 05/31/16 - 04/01/18 7,000 2,547
BEF: Future Bus N/A N/A 05/14/16 - open 62,980 32,975
BHS Health Diagnostic CTE N/A 46912 07/01/17 - 09/30/18 36,655 22,084
Marathon Kids Carol M White PEP N/A N/A 01/01/18 - 09/30/19 100,000 3,571
ACT 10th grade Testing N/A N/A 05/01/18 - 05/31/18 30,660 30,660
Farm to School N/A 48125 07/01/17 - 06/30/19 146,796 70,559
McKinney Vento Consortium N/A N/A 07/01/17 - 06/30/18 20,639 14,905
WHS CAD Drafting CTE N/A 46922 07/01/17 - 09/30/18 8,541 6,280
MACC N/A N/A 01/01/14 - open 44,772 25,353
BEF: Conestoga Extended Day N/A N/A 07/01/17 - 06/30/18 10,000 8,440
BEF: Whitford Extended Day N/A N/A 07/01/17 - 06/30/18 11,000 10,311
SRHS CTE Revitalization N/A 46803 01/01/18 - 06/30/19 317,286 30,412
WHS Digital Communication N/A 46921 07/01/17 - 09/30/18 2,000 1,669
WHS Child Development CTE N/A 46923 07/01/17 - 09/30/18 2,847 2,727
After School Meals Start Up Expansion N/A 48115 01/03/18 - 05/31/18 20,000 20,000
Vose Verizon STEM N/A N/A 01/11/16 - 06/30/18 20,000 7,456
PAX Training N/A N/A 10/10/17 - 06/30/19 10,000 991
HS2 PreEngineering CTE N/A 46914 07/01/17 - 09/30/18 29,537 24,620
SHS Computer Engineering CTE N/A 46919 07/01/17 - 09/30/18 13,523 12,362
SRHS Computer Engineering CTE N/A 46916 07/01/17 - 09/30/18 2,000 780
SHS Marketing CTE N/A 46920 07/01/17 - 09/30/18 43,416 16,921
NWRESD FAFSA N/A N/A 03/22/17 - 06/30/18 11,100 10,511
NSIF Nike School Innovation Fund N/A N/A 03/01/17 - open 247,680 132,422
BEF: Bethany, Rock Creek, Terra Linda Summer School N/A N/A 04/14/17 - 09/30/17 30,000 30,000
BEF: Highland Park Extended Day N/A N/A 07/01/17 - 06/30/18 10,000 6,476
BEF: Cedar Mill, Ridgewood, West TV Summer School N/A N/A 04/14/17 - 09/30/17 30,000 30,000
BEF: McKay, Raleigh Hills, Raleigh Park Summer School N/A N/A 04/14/17 - 09/30/17 30,000 30,000

Total State and Local Awards $ 6,600,125

Total Federal, State, and Local Awards $ 30,770,292

See additional information in the Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal, State, and Local Awards.
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

PURPOSE OF THE SCHEDULE

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal, State and Local Awards (the “Schedule”) includes the
federal award activity of the District under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2017.
The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (“Uniform Guidance”). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the
District, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position, or cash flows of
the District.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance and OMB Circular
A-87 Cost Principles for State, Local and Indian Tribal Governments, where applicable, wherein certain types of
expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

Indirect Cost Rate

The District has not elected to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under Uniform
Guidance.

Federal Financial Assistance

Pursuant to Uniform Guidance, federal financial assistance is defined as assistance provided by a federal agency,
either directly or indirectly, in the form of grants, contracts, cooperative agreements, loans, loan guarantees,
property, interest subsidies, insurance or direct appropriations. Accordingly, non-monetary federal assistance,
including federal surplus property, is included in federal financial assistance and, therefore, is reported on the
Schedule, if applicable. Federal financial assistance does not include direct federal cash assistance to individuals.
Solicited contracts between the state and federal government for which the federal government procures tangible
goods or services are not considered to be federal financial assistance.

Major Programs

Uniform Guidance establishes criteria to be used in defining major federal financial assistance programs. Major
programs for the District are those programs selected for testing by the auditor using a risk-assessment model, as
well as certain minimum expenditure requirements, as outlined in Uniform Guidance. Programs with similar
requirements may be grouped into a cluster for testing purposes.

Reporting Entity

The reporting entity is fully described in notes to the financial statements. The Schedule includes all federal
programs administered by the District for the year ended June 30, 2018.
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL AWARDS (Continued)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Revenue and Expenditure Recognition

The receipt and expenditure of federal awards are accounted for under the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recorded when measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when the liability is incurred.
Donated commodities are valued at their estimated fair value.
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BEAVERTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
» Material weakness(es) identified? No
* Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No

Federal Awards
Internal control over major federal programs:

* Material weakness(es) identified? No
* Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None reported
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major federal programs: Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with
2 CFR section 200.516(a)? No

Identification of major federal programs:

CEDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

10.553, 10.555 & 10.559 Child Nutrition Cluster

84.011 Migrant Education - State Grant Program (Title I, Part C of ESEA)
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

None.

FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

None.

PRIOR YEAR FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

None.

PRIOR YEAR FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

None.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
REQUIRED BY OREGON STATE REGULATIONS

Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-320 incorporated in the
Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, prescribed by the
Secretary of State in cooperation with the Oregon State Board of Accountancy;
enumerate the financial statements, schedules, and comments and disclosures required
in all audit reports. The required statements and schedules are set forth in the
preceding sections of this report. Required independent auditor’s report and
comments and disclosures related to the audit of such statements and schedules are set
forth in the following pages.
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GROVE, MUELLER & SWANK, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS
475 Cottage Street NE, Suite 200, Salem, Oregon 97301
(503) 581-7788

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
REQUIRED BY OREGON STATE REGULATIONS

School Board
Beaverton School District
Beaverton, Oregon

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the basic financial statements of Beaverton School District, Washington County,
Oregon (the District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and have issued our report thereon dated
November 26, 2018.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-
000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statements amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we
do not express such an opinion.

We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required comments and disclosures
which included, but were not limited to the following:

. Deposit of public funds with financial institutions (ORS Chapter 295).

. Indebtedness limitations, restrictions and repayment.

. Budgets legally required (ORS Chapter 294).

. Insurance and fidelity bonds in force or required by law.
. Programs funded from outside sources.

] Authorized investment of surplus funds (ORS Chapter 294).
" Public contracts and purchasing (ORS Chapters 279A, 279B, 279C).
Ll State school fund factors and calculation.

In connection with our testing nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe the District was not in
substantial compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, including the provisions
of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of the
Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations.
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Internal Control

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District's internal control over
financial reporting to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District's internal control.

Restriction on Use
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the school board and management of the Beaverton

School District and the Oregon Secretary of State and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these parties.

GROVE, MUELLER & SWANK, P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

, Py &

Larry E. G(ant, A Sharehofder
November 26, 2018
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